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G A S  D I S T R I B U T I O N  

KeySpan is the largest gas distribution company in the Northeast with 2.5 

million customers. i ts subsidiaries include a number of companies operating 

under the KeySpan brand. KeySpan Energy Delivery New York provides gas 

distribution services to customers in the New York City boroughs of Brooklyn, 

Staten Island and a portion of Queens. KeySpan Energy Delivery Long Island 

provides similar services to customers on Long island and the Rockaway 

Peninsula in Queens. Other subsidiaries, doing business as KeySpan Energy 

Delivery New England provide gas distribution services to customers in 

Massachusetts and New Hampshire. 

E L E C T R I C  S E R V I C E S  

Keyspan's eiectric services is the largest electric generator in New York State. 

We own and operate eiectric generation in New York City and Long isiand 

with total capacity of approximately 6,600 megawatts, including a new 250 

,I megawatt generating plant at the Company's Ravenswood facility - the first 

/ baseioad generating facility built In New York City since deregulation. This 

business segment also manages Long island's eiectric transmission and 
I \  

distribution system for 1.1 million customers under long-term contracts with 

the Long isiand Power Authority. 

E N E R G Y  S E R V I C E S  

The energy services segment markets services in the New York City 

metropolitan area as well as Rhode Island, Pennsylvania, Massachusetts 

and New Hampshire. Lines of business include KeySpan Home Energy Services, 

a group of energy product, repair and servlces companies for residential 

and small commercial customers and KeySpan Business Solutions, an 

integrated engineering, mechanical contracting and facility services company 

for large commercial and industrial customers. 

E N E R G Y  I N V E S T M E N T S  

The energy investments segment consists of strategic investments in 

natural gas exploration and production, gas processing assets, pipeline 

transportation, distribution and storage. At year's end these investments 

primarily included a 55 percent ownership of The Houston Exploration 

Company, a 60 percent ownership in KeySpan Canada and a 20 percent 

interest in the Iroquois gas pipeline in the Northeast United States. 



To Our 
SHAREHOLDERS 

services and energy asset businesses, and with our strong dividend 

yield we offer a total return of 10 to 11 percent to  our shareholders. 

Our gas distribution business, sewing New York City, Long 

Island and New England, continued to grow in 2003, exceeding 

2002 results by $44 million or 8 percent. Electric Services' year-end 
2003 marked the five year anniversary of the merger that created 

contribution to operating income was $269 million, lower than 
KeySpan. Much has changed in our industry and in the business 

originally projected, due to cooler than normal summer conditions 
world in those five years. We've seen corporate giants collapse, 

and a maintenance outage at a generating facility in early 2003. 
energy policy stall and our national economy struggle and rebound. 

However, projections for 2004 in our core electric business are in the 
In the last year alone, our country has become involved in an 

range of $305 to $325 million, an increase of approximately 12 
international conflict that could dramatically impact future energy 

percent over 2003 projections, assuming normal weather conditions. 
supplies and we experienced an unprecedented regional electric 

We continue to work to  achieve our financial objectives in our 
blackout that raised questions regarding the reliability of our energy 

Energy Sewices segment, which posted a year-end operating loss. 
delivery systems. We certainly live in challenging times. 

But the business plays a key role in supporting the core utility, con- 
And these challenges have created opportunities. We continue 

tributing to a customer satisfaction rate of 
to leverage our strengths and grow the ener- 

Over the last two years, KeySpan more than 90 percent. We continue to 
gy businesses that best fit our competencies 

has executed a straightforward strategy refine the business model for Energy 
and strategies. We have reconfirmed that we 

that delivers solid, steady growth and Services and believe that we will deliver a 
had the right strategic vision for KeySpan's 

maximizes shareholder value. modest earnings contribution in 2004. 
arowth over the next decade. 
d 

We demonstrated that a corporate strategy doesn't have to be 

rocket science. It simply has to deliver. Over the last two years, 

KeySpan has executed a straightforward strategy that delivers solid, 

steady growth and maximizes shareholder value. 

Our financial results for 2003 are a reflection of that disciplined 

growth strategy. Consolidated earnings from continuing operations 

for the twelve months ended December 31, 2003 were $417.3 mil- 

lion, or $2.64 per share. The results represent a 7 percent increase 

over total 2002 earnings and exceed the Company's 2003 earnings 

guidance of $2.45 to $2.60 per share. Core earnings -which 

exclude earninas from exploration and production operations - 

were $2.16 per share. We continued our history of paying a solid, 

stable dividend at $1.78 per share and we continue to explore 

opportunities to increase the dividend in the future. 

We are proud to have delivered shareholder value in 2003 

and, over the course of the year, we have taken a number of steps 

to ensure that we continue to deliver in the future. In January 2003, 

we realigned our business segments into two groups - a customer- 

focused group and an energy asset and supply management group 

- t o  optimize the execution of our strategy. We launched a 

multi-year, enterprise-wide business review process to increase 

efficiency of operations and reduce costs, and we strengthened our 

risk mitigation measures. 

We also made significant strides in improving our balance 

sheet. Through a number of financial steps, the strategic monetiza- 

tion of certain non-core assets, and the issuance of equity early in 

the year, we reduced KeySpan's debt level from 65 percent to 58 

percent. We remain committed to continuing to monetize Assets 

that are not aligned with our core businesses. We also remain 

committed to 5 to 6 percent annual growth in our core gas, electric, 

We remain committed to investing in 

assets that support our core operations. In late 2002, we purchased 

a 600,000 barrel liquefied natural gas (LNG) storage and receiving 

facility in Providence, Rhode Island. The facility is a key component 

in the supply mix in the Northeast, playing a critical role in meeting 

peak-day gas supply. In 2003, we began exploring a major expan- 

sion of that facility, to increase its vaporization capacity and to 

enable it to accept marine deliveries by 2005. The expansion would 



liability and create more diversity in supply, putting 

7 the forefront of providing additional supplies to 

east. 

he electric side of our business, we have completed the 

.ion of a new 250 megawatt generating plant at our 

,ood generating station, the first base load plant built in 

;k City since deregulation. The new facility brings critically 

power to  the New York City load pocket, in time for a 

r that is projected to  need additional electric supply. 

?fining our strategy, realigning our businesses, strengthening 

.lance sheet, investing in infrastructure critical to  our core 

tions - all steps taken to ensure KeySpan's competitive edge. 

ur Company's success going forward will ultimately depend on 

led leadership - leadership that is focused on the future. 

To ensure depth and continuity in KeySpan's leadership, our 

.d of Directors engaged in a very detailed management succes- 

, process in 2003, resulting in the September promotion of 

)ert J. Fani to  the position of President and Chief Operating 

.'icer. Bob has distinguished himself across a spectrum of leader- 

~p roles at KeySpan over the last 27 years and brings strong 

anagement skills to  the day-to-day execution of our near and long 

trm strategies. I look forward to  working closely with him to 

osition KeySpan for solid growth in the years ahead. 

Steven L. Zelkowitz, Chief Administrative Officer, steps into 

3ob's former role of President of KeySpan's Energy Assets and 

Supply Group, bringing broad industry knowledge and regulatory 

affairs expertise. They join Wallace P. Parker Jr., President of 
- .  

KeySpan's tneryy U ~ T ~ V - . ,  

the Office of the Chairman. 

The leadership of the Company was further enhanced by the 

addition of Gloria Cordes Larson and V~kki L. Pryor to the Board of 

Directors. Gloria Larson, currently co-chair of the Government 

Pract~ces Group at the law firm of Foley Hoag LLP, is a former 

Massachusetts Secretary of Economic Affairs. Vikki Pryor is president 

and CEO of SBLI USA Mutual Life Insurance Co., Inc. Both bring a 

wealth of business and financial experience to the Board, and help 

us broaden the diversity of our top leadership. 

I thank the Board for their hard work in guiding us over the 

last year, and I thank you - our valued shareholders - for  your 

continuing commitment to your Company. But I would especially 

like to thank KeySpan's employees for their contribution to  our 

success in 2003. Through external challenges and internal transfor- 

mation, they continued to work hard for our customers and 

shareholders. They are the ones who ultimately deliver success 

I congratulate them on their fine performance over the last year. 

Together, we make KeySpan work. 

RoberbB. Catell 

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 

March 10. 2004 



Focusing on NATURAL GAS 

Focusing on our strengths - this has been the foundation 

of Keyspan's strategy and our success. As simple as the 

concept seems, it was not long ago that companies - 
particularly energy companies - that stuck to  what they 

were good at were thought to  be behind the tlmes. At 

KeySpan, we believed that the things we were good at 

were the things that were going to  allow us to  grow. 

It seems we have been proven right. 

Over the last five years, we have completed a merger 

and several strategic acquisitions. We believed then, as we 

believe now, that size matters when it comes to  delivering 

value in our industry. Size allows us to be an important 

player in regional - and national - energy policy decisions. 

It also matters in achieving the economies of scale that are 

so critical to  our bottom line. But in growing our business, 

we have always focused on opportunities that played to  

our core competencies. We've tried to  balance a desire to 

grow with a good dose of common sense. 

Because of that, even in a difficult economy, KeySpan 

has performed well. We've covered our bases, adjusting 

our strategic initiatives to  compensate for the economic 

environment and for changes in the volatile energy industry. 

The result has been strong financial performance and a 

sturdy foundation for continued growth. 

Growing the Gas Business 

The primary driver of growth in 2003 was, not surprisingly, our core 

gas distribution business. Operating income increased by approxi- 

mately $44 million, or 8 percent, over 2002 results, aided by winter 

weather that was 15 percent colder than the previous year. While 

cold winters add to revenues through increased customer consump- 

tion, they also can severely test our.distribution infrastructure, 

impacting operating costs. We did see operating expenses increase 

in 2003, but overall, the system performed commendably in some of 

the coldest weather we have seen in many years. We can credit this 

solid performance to our continued emphasis on maintaining and 

upgrading our physical infrastructure, as well as our employees' ded- 

ication to ensuring uninterrupted sefvice to our customers. 

In addition to increased consumption by existing gas customers, 

customer conversions continued to be strong last year. In 2003, 

KeySpan completed more than 57,000 gas installations, adding 

$55 million in new gross profit margin. Those results translate into 

a growth rate that is twice the industry average. 

KeySpan currently serves 2.5 million gas customers in the 

Northeast and still has significant growth potential in the years 

ahead. With a residential market that is only a little more than 50 

percent saturated, we have more than a million additional prospects 

and $650 million in potential gross profit margin. Our commercial 

market has comparable growth potential, with a saturation level of 

approximately 60 percent across our territories. That equates to 

approximately 150,000 additional prospects and $300 million in 



porenr'a gross profit margin. A large number of rnese prospects are 

on or close to a gas main, requiring little or no capital investment. 

The challenge is to continue to deliver on that growth 

potential in the most cost-effective manner. In January 2003, we 

realigned our business segments into two groups - a customer- 

focused group, and an energy asset and supply management group 

- t o  optimize the execution of our strategy. The idea behind the 

customer-focused group is to take all customer-facing functions and 

bring them together in one business unit, to maximize the customer 

relationship. At KeySpan, that means combining the gas business 

unit, which is the fifth largest in the country, with a client services 

division that touches the customer about 25 million times a year. We 

add to that our strategic unregulated energy services businesses and 

the natural synergies allow us to grow, as a whole, faster and more 

efficiently than would be possible for any of the parts. 

While we are looking to address customer needs in a compre- 

hensive manner, we are keenly aware of the need to maximize 

profitability. Over the last few years, we have selectively added more 

than five million feet of new gas main, which has significantly 

KEYSPAN'S LEADERSHIP COMES 

FROM A TALENTED AND 

EXPERIENCED GROUf: INCLUDING 

SIX SENIOR EXECUTIVES WHO 

MAKE UP THE COMPANY'S 

STRATEGIC MANAGEMENT 
COMMITEE (5MC:-ABOVE: 

CEO BOB CATELL (R) IS JOINED 

BY EXECUTIVE VICE PRES~DENTS 

JOHN CAROSELL~ (L) AND 

GERRY LUTERMAN. RIGHT: 
improved the gas infrastructure and has created new sales opportu- PRESIDENTS WALLY PARKER (L) 
nities by bringing potential prospects closer to our system. It is those AND STEVE ZELKOWIV (R) AND 

prospects that we will focus on, as they increase gross profit margin PRESIDENT AND COO BOB FANI (c) 

significantly while requiring the least capital investment. WHO, IN ADDITION TO TAKING PART 

To add these prime prospects, we developed a sales optimiza 

tion model -an information-based management tool. The model 

IN THE SMC, COMPRISE THE 

OFFICE OF THE CHAIRMAN WITH 

BOB CATELL. 

takes information from eight different data bank sources and identi- 

fies the most orofitable market seaments with the hiohest load 
- 2  - - ~ - -  3 - - -  

potent'as Once ~dent fied, we allocate our resources d rectly t3 rhe 

Offering an APPEALING PRODUCT 
in an Attractive Market 

The continued growth of Keyspan's gas business can be 

attributed to many factors, including understanding the 

markets we operate in and the customers - existing and 

potential customers - we serve. With some of the 

highest median income levels in the country and more 

than one million residential heating prospects, the 

Northeast region presents a unique growth opportunity. 

And grow we have, completing more than 150,000 

gas installations the last three years. In 2 0 0 4  we will 

continue to optimize our resources, targeting new 

customers requiring minimum capital investment so that 

more and more customers can enjoy the benefits of 

clean, efficient and reliable natural gas. 



KEYSPAN'S NATURAL GAS SYSTEM 

PERFORMED COMMENDABLY IN 

SOME OF THE COLDEST WINTER 

WEATHER OUR REGION HAS 

EXPERIENCED IN YEARS, THANKS 

TO A STRONG EMPHASIS ON 

MAINTAINING AND ENHANCING 

OUR PHYSICAL INFRASTRUCTURE 

AND A WORKFORCE DEDICATED 

TO ENSURING UNINTERRUPTED 

CUSTOMER SERVICE. 

K E ~ ~ P A N  CEO 

806 CATELL PLAYED A 

PIVOTAL ROLE IN 

ADDRESSING NATURAL 

GAS SUPPLY ISSUES AS - 
VICE CHAIR OF THE 

NATIONAL PETROLEUM 
COUNCIL'S STUDY OF 

THE FUTURE OF GAS 

MARKETS, COMMIS- 

SIONED B Y  THE U.5. 

SECRETARY OF ENERGY 

segments that will produce the greatest return on investment. 

In 2003, we completed the sales optimization model for the 

residential market and began building a similar model for the busi- 

ness market, which we believe will deliver tangible results in 2004. 

Realigning Our Services 

Our Energy Services segment is comprised of our unregulated ener- 

gy services businesses, under the umbrella of KeySpan Services, 

Incorporated (KSI). KSI is a strategic component of our customer- 

focused strategy and has contributed to a customer satisfaction level 

of more than 90 percent in our core gas business. The segment 

serves two specific markets, the residential and small commercial 

market through KeySpan Home Energy Services (KHES), and the 

large commercial market through KeySpan Business Solutions (KBS). 

In 2003, KHES delivered record numbers in both service 

contracts and installations. We exceeded our goal of 200,000 service 

contracts and will continue to focus on increasing the number of 

premium service contracts, which combine both heating and air 

conditioning service. The percentage of premium contracts grew 

from 7 percent to approximately 12 percent in 2003 and we expect 

additional growth in 2004. In 2003, total installations of HVAC 

products increased nearly 19 percent to a record level of 22,473 

due in part to new products, such as fireplaces, being added 

to the product mix. 

Results from KBS were disappointing in 2003. The economy, 

specif~cally a soft Northeast construction industry, delayed engineer- 

ina desian and construction ~roiects, which decreased volumes and - - . , 

lowered marg'ns. However, despite reporthg a loss in 2003, KBS 

Ensuring a CONSISTENT AND 

DIVERSE Gas Supply 

At KeySpan, we're always trying to improve our gas 

supply network to ensure that our customers have a 

reliable supply of natural gas at an affordable price. 

Liquefied natural gas (LNG), long a part of Keyspan's 

supply strategy, is drawing increased attention these 

days as a viable resource to meet future demands for 

natural gas. KeySpan is partnering with BG LNG 

Services to upgrade Keyspan's existing LNG storage 

and receiving terminal in Providence, ~ h o d e '  Island to 

accept marine deliveries. Expansion of this facility will 

increase the gas supply in the New England region, 

aiding economic growth and potentially reducing 

supply-related price volatility. 



finished the year with a backlog of $537 million in awarded con- 

tracts which, added to our focus on profit margin, should provide 

for future opportunities. 

Over the last year, we have taken several steps to ensure 

that our unregulated businesses deliver shareholder value in the 

coming years. We analyzed KSI operations across the board and 

implemented a series of cost control initiatives. We integrated the 

business more effectively with corporate shared services capabilities, 

resulting in a dramatic reduction in the cost for support service 

functions in KSI. We expect these changes will significantly enhance 

the KSI business profitability going forward. 

Keeping Supply at the Forefront 

KeySpan has always been aware of the importance of maintaining a 

more than adequate supply of natural gas for our customers. In 

2003, as always, we worked proactively to ensure that we had suffi- 

cient gas supply for even the coldest winter, at the best possible 

price to our customers. Prices continued to be volatile in 2003, due 

to the dramatic growth in natural gas demand over the last few . 

years, with limited additions to the delivery infrastructure. As the 

cleanest burning fossil fuel, natural gas is being used increasingly for 

heating homes, for manufacturing and for generating our country's 

electricity. And while there remains adequate supply to meet t6e 

national demand, demand continues to rise, causing supplies to 

tighten. Accessing new gas supplies through new pipelines will be 

critical to balancing supply and demand, and moderating gas prices 

in the future. 

The issues of gas supply and pricing dominated the news in 

2003, on both a regional and national level. In early spring, Federal 

Reserve Chairman Alan Greenspan testified before Congress, 

raising concerns about our nation's natural gas position. His 

testimony put a spotlight on U.S. natural gas inventories, which 

were nearly 50 percent below the five-year average. The resulting 

news coverage sparked a national debate about future gas supplies 

and their impact on the country's economy. As it turned out, both 

national and KeySpan storage were filled to adequate levels coming 

into 2003. 

To address critical supply issues, Secretary of Energy Spencer 

Abraham commissioned the National Petroleum Council (NPC), an 

energy industry organization that includes KeySpan, to conduct a 

comprehensive study of the future of natural gas markets through 

2025. Because of Keyspan's unique position in the natural gas mar- 

ketplace, Chairman and CEO Bob Catell was asked to serve as vice 

chair of the NPC study, along with the chief executive officers of 

Exxon and Kinder-Morgan. Catell chaired the demand portion of the 

study and, with his fellow vice chairs, delivered a comprehensive 

report to the Secretary of Energy in September 2003. The report 

provided a wide range of solutions that could go a long way toward 

balancing the supply/demand equation and included short-term 

solutions such as increased energy efficiency and conservation, as 

well as longer term recommendations on increased access to domes- 

tic gas supplies and investment in renewable energy sources, 

pipeline and liquefied natural gas (LNG) infrastructure. LNG imports 

emerged as a potential large-scale resource for meeting future 

demand while stabilizing natural gas costs. 

KeySpan had already recognized the value of LNG for increas- 



ing the reliability and diversity of the Northeast energy supply. Our 

regulated utilities in New York and New England already owned 

approximately 20 percent of the total LNG storage in the United 

States. In December 2002, we expanded our LNG assets with the 

strategic acquisition of Algonquin LNG - an LNG storage facility in 

Rhode Island. In October 2003, we announced plans to explore 

upgrading this facility in a joint initiative with BG LNG Services, LLC, 

the leading importer of LNG into the United States. Currently, stor- 

age supplies are filled each summer by tanker trucks coming from 

Boston. An upgrade would enable the facility to accept marine 

deliveries, as well as triple its vaporization capability and improve 

infrastructure to allow gas to be transported via the Algonquin 

Pipeline G-System. The upgrade could be completed as early as 

2005 and would make Algonquin the first new LNG import terminal 

in the U:S. in more than 20 years. It would strengthen and diversify 

gas supply in the New England region and add to our profitability 

in this segment. 

LNG is just one facet of KeySpan's diverse portfolio of natural 

gas supplies, which includes pipeline supplies from both Western 

Canada and the Gulf of Mexico. In our ongoing efforts to ensure 

future supply and deliverability, we have partnered with Duke Energy 

on the Islander East pipeline, to bring gas from new sources in 

Eastern Canada to the New York area. We have received approval 

from the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission for the Islander East 

project, which would help increase reliability and moderate prices. 

The pipeline could be completed as early as next winter, pending 

resolution of some issues with the State of Connecticut. We are also 

supporting the Millennium Pipeline project, which would bring 

additional supply from Canada down through Buffalo and into 

downstate New York, with the goal of boosting supply in the tight 

New York metropolitan market. The Millennium pipeline would 

also serve as the connection between several other pipelines, 

providing interconnectedness between Canada, the Midwest and 

the Mid-Atlantic Coast. 

Focusing on ELECTRIC 

Keeping the Lights On 

KeySpan Electric Services, our Company's second core business, pro- 

vides approximately $1.4 billion in revenue and is a major driver of 

our earnings, contributing approximately 25 percent of our operat- 

ing income. The electric services business is comprised of two major 

components: generation services, and transmission and distribution 

(T&D) management. 

KeySpan's generation business owns, leases and operates 

approximately 6,600 megawatts (MW) of generating capacity, 

making us the largest generator in New York State. In 2003, we 

provided the vast bulk of Long Island's power requirements, under 

long-term contracts to the Long Island Power Authority (LIPA), as 

well as supplying 25 percent of New York City's requirements from 

our Ravenswood generating station. The T&D management business 

operates and maintains Long Island's electric transmission and distri- 

bution system, serving LIPA's 1 . I  million customers. 

Operating income from the electric services business was 

$269 million in 2003, slightly lower than in the previous year, due - 
primarily to higher operating costs and cooler summer weather 



that resulted in lower revenues from our Ravenswood facility. 

In 2004, we are projecting an increase in operating income of 

approximately 12 percent from this segment. The increase will come 

from both the long-term contracts we have in place with LlPA and 

the Ravenswood facility. The LlPA contracts contribute approximately 

one-third of the operating income in this segment and are a reliable, 

predictable earnings stream. We earn capacity charges and manage- 

ment fees under the contracts and have performed extremely well 

over the last several years, earning significant performance-based 

incentives. 

The remaining two-thirds of operating income in this segment 

comes from the Ravenswood generating station. We are fortunate 

to operate this facility in the capacity constrained New York City 

load pocket, which delivers solid capacity and energy payments. 

A Restoration to Remember 

If supply was a major focus for the natural gas world in 2003, 

reliability was the primary issue for the electric industry, following 

the unprecedented blackout of August 14. A system disturbance in 

Northern Ohio triggered a domino effect that in the space of only 

a few minutes, led to the biggest power outage in United States 

history. The lights went out for more than 50 million people across 

approximately 9,300 square miles, including Ohio, Michigan, 

Pennsylvania, New York, New Jersey, Connecticut, Vermont and 

Ontario. 

At KeySpan, operators in the control room that oversee the 

transmission and distribution system for LlPA watched in disbelief as 

electric load went from 4,500 megawatts to zero in less than three 

=T7' . . , , --r'. -.: i 
. \ . . . .,<_ - :. ! HURRICANES, ICE STORMS, 

! 
. ' EVEN AN UNPRECEDENTED 

REGIONAL BLACKOUT - 
' KEYSPAN ELECTRIC CREWS 

CAN HANDLE WHATEVER 

COMES THEIR WAY, CONSIS- 
TENTLY DELIVERING FOR LlPA 

THE BEST RESTORATION TIME 

OF ANY OVERHEAD UTILIJY 

IN NEW YORK STATE 

Accomplishing Reliability 
through Effective MANAGEMENT 

In addition to being the largest electric generator in New 

York State, KeySpan also manages Long Island's electric 

transmission and distribution system through contractual 

agreements with the Long Island Power Authority (LIPA). 

KeySpan1s dedicated employees maintain more than 

12,000 miles of overhead and underground transmission 

and distribution lines as well as maintain the continuity of 

electric service for more than one million customers. We 

also maintain and construct substations, perform system 

improvements and provide electric engineering, planning 

and design services. It's this kind of expertise that's 

enabled us to consistently rank first in customer restoration 

time in New York State. 



ELECTRIC DEMAND CONTINUES 

TO GROW IN THE ALREADY 

TIGHT NEW YORK AND 

LONG /SLAND ELECTRIC 

MARKETS. KEYSPAN'S NEW 

GENERATING FAClLlJY AT 

OUR RAVENSWOOD POWER 

STATION BRINGS 250 M W  
OF ADDITIONAL ELECTRICIN 

JUST IN TIME FOR THE 

CRITICAL SUMMER SEASON. 

Adding C A P A C ~  where 
It's Needed Most 

As demand for electricity continues to grow, new 

power plants are needed to ensure adequate electricity 

supplies in the future. New York City will get its first 

new base-load generating plant since deregulation of th 

electric industry in the late 1990s with the expansion 

of Keyspan's Ravenswood generating facility. The 

new plant increases Ravenswood's capacity by 258 

megawatts and will be online in time for the expected 

summer 2004 electric demand. Ravenswood currently 

provides 2,200 megawatts of power, or about 

2 5  percent of New York City's electric needs. This 

expansion will increase Ravenswood's capacity by 

11 percent to 2,450 megawatts. 

minutes. Although questions still remain as to exactly what caused 

the outage, KeySpan employees, working hand-in-hand with LIPA, 

came through in the crisis, restoring power to more than 80 percent 

of Long Island customers in 14 hours, and returning the system to 

normal in just over 24 hours. 

KeySpan's performance in this crisis was no surprise, as our 

experienced and competent employees continue to operate LIPA's 

T&D system at the highest performance levels in New York State. 

They prepare diligently for all kinds of system disruptions and are 

highly skilled in fast, efficient electric restoration. In 2003, KeySpan 

employees once again ranked first in customer restoration time, 

delivering a performance that was 40 percent faster than the New 

York State average. 

If an amazing restoration effort was one bright spot during the 

blackout, distributed generation was another. While most of the 

New York metropolitan area was in the dark on August 14, hospi- 

tals, businesses, and office and apartment buildings that generate 

their own electricity had power throughout the blackout. 

Distributed generation -which includes such technologies as 

microturbines, cogeneration and fuel cells - allows large customers 

to generate their own power independent of the local electric 

grid. KeySpan designs, installs and maintains on-site generation 

systems throughout the tri-state area. The large-scale failure of 

the Northeast electric T&D system had no effect on KeySpan's 

distributed generation customers, including the critical New York 

City Police Department Central Park station. 

KeySpan and LIPA, along with government agencies and utili- 

ties across the Northeast, will continue to investigate the cause of 



the blackout and what steps must be taken to prevent such a wide- 

spread occurrence in the future. We are advocating changes in the 

nation's electric infrastructure and operations that will safeguard our 

system against another such event. 

Filling the Generation Gap 

While the blackout did not result from a lack of generation, it did 

point out weaknesses in the national electric infrastructure, as well 

as our vulnerability to power outages. In the New York City and 

Long Island load pockets, we have been dealing with the issue of 

infrastructure upgrades and the need for new generation infrastruc- 

ture and operating procedures for a number of years. At our existing 

generating facilities, we continue to implement extensive annual 

maintenance programs designed to keep our generators in the best 

possible operating condition. Through these efforts, our Long Island 

generating facilities performed at more than 97 percent availability, 

and our Ravenswood facility at better than 96 percent, during the 

critical summer season. But with electric demand continuing to rise 

in both markets, peak top performance from our generating assets 

is not enough. New electric generation is necessary to keep the 

region's lights on. Unfortunately, obtaining regulatory approvals 

to build additional generation in New York State is a challenging 

undertaking. 

KeySpan, however, is uniquely positioned to provide new gen- 

eration for New York and Long Island. We have completed a new, 

250 MW electric generating plant at our existing Ravenswood 

facility in New York City, the first base-load plant built in the city 

since deregulation of the electric industry. The new plant increases 

Ravenswood's total capacity by 1 I percent to 2,450 MW, more than 

25 percent of New York City's current electric needs. The official 

launch this spring comes just in time to help meet a summer 

demand that is expected to be higher than last year, in an already 

tight supply situation. 

The Long lsland market is also facing increasing electric 

demand and tight electric supplies. With the ability to import power 

limited, new on-Island generation is critical to continued economic 

growth. In September 2003, KeySpan took steps to remedy that sit- 

uation, announcing a unique joint venture with American National 

Power, Inc. (ANP). 

In response to a LlPA request for proposal (RFP) for new energy 

sources, we are partnering with ANP on a proposal to build two 

250 MW natural gas-fired combined cycle generating facilities, one 

in Melville and the other in the Town of Brookhaven. Because both 

KeySpan and ANP had been developing the plants as separate proj- 

ects, both plants have already completed the Article X environmental 

siting process. With these approvals in hand, the KeySpanIANP 

proposal is unique in its ability to provide new base load generation 

by 2006. 

The joint proposal combines the resources, expertise and envi- 

ronmental reputations of two of the region's most experienced 

developers. It also links ANP's project development and electric mar- 

keting skills with KeySpan's core competencies in fuel supply and 

generating plant operations. With all responses to the LlPA RFP in, 

we expect LlPA to announce a decision shortly. 



Focusing on OUR ASSETS 

Building on a Solid Portfolio 

Growing our electric generation, as well acquiring the Algonquin 

LNG facility, is part of our energy asset and supply strategy. The 

strategy of the Energy Asset & Supply Business is to optimize the 

operation of our assets and maximize returns in our core businesses. 

We are focused in our primary service area, the Northeast Energy 

Hub. In support of our core businesses, KeySpan manages a port- 

folio of assets that includes electric generation, pipeline, LNG and 

storage, as well as contracts for physical capacity and storage, to 

meet the needs of our customers. We are continually evaluating 

opportunities to acquire or build new assets to further enhance our 

growth in this business segment. 

Our portfolio also includes some non-core assets outside of 

our Northeast territory, primarily our exploration and production 

operations in Houston and our gas processing business in Western 

Canada. We are continuously exploring opportunities to monetize 

these non-core assets in a manner that contributes to shareholder 

value. 

It is easy to see how growing our electric generation portfolio, 

partnering in pipeline projects and investing in LNG support our core 

operations. But KeySpan has also received some significant benefit 

from our non-core assets. In 2003, our exploration and production 

business delivered $1 97 million in operating income, significantly 

exceeding projections, due to favorable gas prices. And beyond the 

ability to contribute directly to earnings, our involvement in the non- 

core exploration and production and gas processing businesses has 

allowed us to gain hands-on experience all along the supply stream. 

It has put us at the table with key players in the energy industry 

and enabled us to become an integral part of the national energy 

debate. And it has allowed us a deeper understanding of the energy 

marketplace, helping us to spot trends and identify opportunities 

where perhaps some of our peers did not. We have used the 

knowledge gained from both our core and non-core businesses to 

fine-tune our strategy and position KeySpan for future success. 

Having refined our strategy to focus on our core operations, 

we are working to responsibly monetize non-core assets. In 2003, 

we made significant progress in that regard. We reduced our 

ownership in The Houston Exploration Company from 66 percent to 

the current level of 55 percent, receiving net proceeds of $79 mil- 

lion. We monetized approximately 39 percent of our ownership 

interest in KeySpan Canada through an Income Trust and sold our 

20 percent interest in Taylor Natural Gas Liquids, receiving net pro- 

ceeds of approximately $120 million. And, finally, in December of 

2003, we completed the sale of our 24.5 percent interest in Phoenix 

Natural Gas, a gas distribution company in Northern Ireland, for 

approximately $95 million. 

The proceeds from these transactions have been used to reduce 

our debt level, in support of our continuing efforts to strengthen our 

balance sheet. In 2004, we will consider additional opportunities to 

monetize non-core assets in ways that maximize shareholder value. 

To that end, in February, we sold an additional 36 percent interest in 

KeySpan Canada and, when this transaction closes, we will realize 



net proceeds of approximately $139 million. We will also continue to 

seek opportunities to invest in assets that help us strategically grow 

our core businesses. 

Focusing on VALUE 

2003 was a year in which we truly focused on our resources - regu- 

lated and unregulated, physical and human -and put them to work 

with a strategy that can deliver shareholder value for years to come. 

We made changes where changes were needed, but always within 

the scope of our core competencies for growth. 

We paid a great deal of attention to allocation of our resources, 

ensuring that expenses were closely aligned with contributions to 

the bottom line. Having employees at all levels focused on expense 

management paid off, as we successfully reduced expenses by more 

than $100 million in 2003. Our focus on expense management is 

part of an ongoing emphasis on transforming both our business and 

our culture. Areas across the company are continually examining not 

only what we are achieving, but how we are achieving our results. 

Part of that assessment includes a re-emphasis on our high perform- 

ance culture. KeySpan's employees deliver results, year after year, 

because they understand that meeting customer needs efficiently 

and effectively will help our business grow. They know that paying 

attention to the customer helps a business thrive, and a thriving 

business brings value to  its investors and provides a stimulating work 

environment. Not rocket science -just effective strategy. We believe 

it will serve us well as we continue to deliver on our value ~romise. 

2003 MARKED KEYSPAN'S 
FIVE-YEAR ANNIVERSARY, A 

PERIOD IN WHICH WE TRIPLED 

REVENUES AND TRULI.' BECAME 

THE PREMIER ENERGY SERVICES 

COMPANY IN THE NORTHEAST: 

6 0 5  CATELL AND TEAM 

COMMEMORATED THE OCCASION 

BY RINGING THE CLOSING BELL 

AT THE NEW YORK STOCK 
EXCHANGE. 

Increasing the VALUE of 
Our Assets 

KeySpan continues its commitment to focus on growing 

our core businesses and to monetize our non-core 

assets such as KeySpan Canada, a company with gas 

processing plants and gathering facilities in Western 

Canada. In 2003, we sold approximately 39 percent of 

KeySpan Canada through an income trust fund and are 

in the process of selling an additional 36  percent. Also 

in 2003, we completed the sale of our 24.5 percent 

interest in Phoenix Natural Gas and the Company's 

interest in Taylor Natural Gas Liquids. These transac- 

tions, along with the partial sale of ownership in The 

Houston Exploration Company, helped to lower KeySpan's 

debt ratio from 65 percent to 58 percent. We continue 

to evaluate our non-core investments and will monetize 

them in a manner that maximizes value to our investors. 



Financial 
REVIEW 

ABBREVIATIONS AND GLOSSARY 

Bbl Abbreviation for barrel. One barrel is 

the equivalent of 42 standard US gallons 

BCFe A billion cubic feet 

Btu British Thermal Unit 

Degree Days A measure of the number 

of degrees the average daily outside 

temperature is below 65" F 

Dekatherm One dekatherm equals 10 

therms or one million Btu 

DTE Department of Telecommunications 

and Energy. Massachusetts agency 

responsible for regulating pricing, service 

quality and safety of utilities 

Dth Abbreviation for dekatherm 

FERC Federal Energy Regulatory 

Commission. The US agency that 

regulates interstate energy activities 

LDC Local Distribution Company 

LlLCO Long Island Lighting Company 

LlPA Long Island Power Authority 

LNG Liquefied Natural Gas 

Mbbls A thousand barrels 

Mcf Abbreviation for a thousand 

cubic feet 

MDTH One thousand dekatherms 

MGP Manufactured Gas Plant 

Mmcf Abbreviation for a million 

cubic feet 

MW Abbreviation for megawatt. 

One million watts of electricity (enough 

to power approximately one thousand 

homes) 

NHPUC New Hampshire Public Utilities 

Commission. Agency responsible for 

regulating pricing, service quality and 

safety of utilities 

NYlSO New York Independent System 

Operator. An agency with operational 

control over most of the state's 

transmission facilities to ensure reliability 

NYMEX New York Mercantile Exchange 

NYPSC New York Public Service 

Commission. Agency responsible for 

regulating pricing, service quality and 

safety of utilities 

Peaking Facility A power plant with 

generating units designed to operate 

during periods of maximum demand for 

electricity, as opposed to the units of a 

baseload plant, which usually operate 

continuously 

Proved Gas Reserves Gas that has 

been discovered and determined to be 

recoverable under existing economic and 

operating conditions 

PUHCA Public Utility Holding Company 

Act of 1935 

Realized Gas Prlces Average wellhead 

price received for production including 

hedging gains and losses 

RTO Regional Transmission Organization 

Therm A unit of heating value equivalent 

to 100,000 Btus 

Wellhead Prices The cost of gas as it 

comes from well excluding cleaning, 

compression, transportation and 

distribution charges. 
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Financial Review and Analysis 

KeySpan Corporation (referred to herein as "KeySpan", "we", "us" and 
"our") is a registered holding company under the Public Utility Holding 
Company Act of 1935, as amended ("PUHCA"). KeySpan operates six 
regulated utilities that distribute natural gas to approximately 2.5 million 
customers in New York City, Long Island, Massachusetts and New 
Hampshire, making us the fifth largest gas distribution company in 
the United States and the largest in the Northeast. We also own and 
operate electric generating plants in Nassau and Suffolk Counties on 
Long Island and in Queens County in New York City and are the largest 
investor owned generator in New York State. Under contractual 
arrangements, we provide power, electric transmission and distribution 
services, billing and other customer services for approximately one 
million electric customers of the Long Island Power Authority ("LIPA"). 
Keyspan's other subsidiaries are involved in gas and oil exploration and 
production; underground gas storage; liquefied natural gas storage; 
wholesale and retail electric marketing; appliance service; plumbing, 
heating, ventilation, air conditioning and other mechanical services; 
large energy-system ownership, installation and management; fiber 
optic sewices; and engineering and consulting services. We also invest 
and participate in the development of natural gas pipelines, natural gas 
processing plants, electric generation, and other energy-related projects, 
domestically and internationally. (See Note 2 to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements "Business Segments" for additional information on 
each operating segment.) 

CONSOLIDATED SUMMARY OF RESULTS 
Operating income by segment, as well as consolidated earnings 
available for common stock is set forth in the following table for the 
periods indicated. 

- -  

(In thou land^ o f  Dollarr, Exiep: Pn Shun Amounti) 

Year Ended December 31. 2003 2002 2001 
~ - 

Gas Distribution $ 574,254 $531,134 $481,393 
Electric Services 268,977 288,796 269,721 
Energy Services (38,066) (1 1,935) (147,485) 
Energy Investments 238,554 142,594 178,783 
Eliminations and other (2,062) (8,507) 31,366 
Operating Income 1,041,657 942,082 813,778 
Interest charges (307,694) (301,504) (353,470) 
Other Income and (deductions) (32,471) 251 (5,923) 
Income taxes (277,311) (243,479) (210,693) 
lncome from 

Continuing Operations 424,181 397,350 243,692 
Cumulative change 

in accounting principles (37,451) - - 
Loss from discontinued operations - (1 9,662) (1 9,438) 
Net Income 386,730 377,688 224,254 
Preferred stock dividends 5,844 5,753 5,904 
Earninas for Common Stock 9 380.886 $371.935 8218.350 - -  , 

Basic Earnings per Share: 
Continuing operations, less 

preferred stock dividends $ 2.64 $ 2.77 $ 1.72 
Change in accounting principles (0.23) - - 
Discontinued operations - (0.14) (0.14) 

$ 2.41 $ 2.63 $ 1.58 

Operating income in 2003 increased $99.6 million, or 11% 
compared to  2002. This increase in operating income reflects higher 
earnings from the Energy lnvestments and Gas Distribution segments, 
somewhat offset by decreases in earnings from the Electric Services and 
Energy Services segments. The Energy Investment segment benefited 
from higher earnings associated with gas exploration and production 
activities as a result of significantly higher realized gas prices and higher 
production volumes. The Gas ~istributibn segment benefited from 
.colder weather during the January through March 2003 heating season 
compared to the same period last year, as well as from load growth. 
Further, during 2003 we recorded $1 5.1 million in gains from property 
sales, primarily 550 acres of real property located on Long Island. The 
Energy Services group of companies were adversely impacted by the 
decline in construction industry activity in the Northeastern United 
States during most of the year. Lower results from the Electric Services 
segment were attributable to higher operating costs, as well as lower 
revenues from our merchant generating facility, due in part to cooler 
summer weather. (See the discussion under the caption "Review of 
Operating Segments" for further details on each segment.) 

lnterest charges increased 2% in 2003, compared to last year, 
primarily as a result of the termination of certain interest-rate derivative 
swap instruments that were in effect in 2002. (See Note 8 to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements "Hedging, Derivative Financial 
Instruments and Fair Values.") 

Other income and (deductions) reflects a number of significant 
items that impacted comparative results. During 2003, we monetized a 
portion of our Canadian and Northern Ireland investments, as well as a 
portion of our ownership interest in The Houston Exploration Company 
("Houston Exploration"), our gas exploration and production subsidiary. 
During the year, we sold 39.09% of our interest in KeySpan Canada 
through an income trust fund. KeySpan Canada has natural gas process- 
ing plants and gathering facilities in Western Canada. Additionally, 
we sold our 20% interest in Taylor NGL LP that owns and operates two 
extraction plants also located in Canada. We recorded a pre-tax loss of 
$30.3 million ($34.1 million after-tax, or $0.22 per share) associated 
with these sales. Further, in February 2004 we entered into an agree- 
ment to sell an additional 36% of our interest in KeySpan Canada. 
(See Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements "Subsequent 
Events.") In the fourth quarter of 2003, we completed the sale of our 
24.5% interest in Phoenix Natural Gas, located in Northern Ireland, 
and recorded a pre-tax gain of 824.7 million, $16.0 million after-tax, or 
$0.10 per share. 

Additionally in 2003, we reduced our ownership interkt in 
Houston Exploration from 66% to approximately 55% following the 
repurchase, by Houston Exploration, of three million shares of common 
stock owned by KeySpan. We recorded a gain of $19.0 million on this 
transaction. lncome taxes were not provided on this transaction since 
the transaction was structured as a return of capital. 

In total, KeySpan recorded a pre-tax gain of $13.4 million from the 
monetization of certain non-core assets. The after-tax gain from these 



three asset sales, however, was minimal due to the different tax treat- 
ment associated with each transaction. 

Also in 2003, we called approximately $447 million of outstanding 
promissory notes that were issued to  LlPA in connection with the 
KeySpanILong Island Lighting Company ("LILCO") business combination 
completed in May 1998, and recorded debt redemption charges of 
$18.2 million in other income and (deductions). Further, Houston 
Exploration incurred costs of $5.9 million to  retire $100 million of 
8.625% Notes due 2008. 

Other income and (deductions) also reflects severance tax refunds 
totaling $21.6 million recorded by Houston Exploration for severance 
taxes paid in 2002 and earlier periods, compared to  $9.1 million 
recorded in 2002, as well as $6.5 million of realized foreign currency 
translation gains. Finally, other income and (deductions) reflects minority 
interest adjustments related t o  Houston Exploration and KeySpan 
Canada, as well as carrying charges on certain regulatory assets. 

The increase in income tax expense in 2003 compared to 2002 
generally reflects a higher level of pre-tax earnings. Further income 
tax expense for 2003 and 2002 includes a number of items impacting 
comparative results. During 2003, the partial monetization of our 
Canadian investments resulted in tax expense of $3.8 million, reflecting 
certain United States partnership tax rules. In addition, we recorded an 
adjustment to income tax expense of $6.1 million due to the state of 
Massachusetts disallowing the carry forward of net operating losses 
incurred by regulated utilities. Offsetting, to some extent, these increas- 
es t o  tax expense, was a tax benefit recorded in 2003 of $9.0 million 
associated with certain New York City general corporation tax issues. In 
addition, certain costs associated with employee deferred compensation 
plans were deducted for federal income tax purposes in 2003. These 
costs, however, are not expensed for "book" purposes resulting in 
a beneficial permanent book-to-tax difference of $6.3 million 

Income tax expense for 2002 reflects a tax benefit of $1 5 million 
as a result of the favorable resolution of certain outstanding tax issues 
related to the KeySpanlLlLCO merger. Additionally, we  recorded an 
adjustment t o  deferred income taxes of $177.7 mi l l~on reflecting a 
decrease in the tax basis of the assets acquired at the time of the merg- 
er. This adjustment was a result of a revised valuation study. Concurrent 
with the deferred tax adjustment, we reduced current income taxes 
payable by $183.2 million, resulting in a $5.5 million income tax benefit 
Also, it should be noted that pre-tax income in the Consolidated 
Statement of  Income reflects minority interest adjustments, whereas 
income taxes reflect the full amount of subsidiary taxes. 

In January 2002, KeySpan announced that it had entered into 
an agreement t o  sell Midland Enterprises LLC ("Midland"), its marine 
barge business. During the fourth quarter of 2001, in anticipation of 
this divestiture, which closed on July 2, 2002, an estimated loss on the 
sale of Midland was recorded as discontinued operations, as well as 
an estimate for Midland's results of operations for the first nine months 
of 2002. In the second quarter of  2002, we recorded an additional 
after-tax loss of $19.7 million, primarily reflecting a provision for 
certain city and state taxes that resulted from a change in our tax 

structuring strategy. 

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board 
("FASBV)-issued Financial Interpretation Number 46 ("FIN 46"), 
"Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of ARB No. 
51 "; FIN 46 requires consolidation of variable interest entities. KeySpan 
has an arrangement with a variable interest entity through which we 
lease a portion of the 2,200-megawatt Ravenswood electric generating 
facility ("Ravenswood facility"). Based upon Keyspan's current status as 
the primary beneficiary, we were required to consolidate the variable 
interest entity as of  December 31, 2003. As a result of implementing 
FIN 46, we recognized a non-cash, after-tax charge of $37 6 million, or 
$0.23 per share related to "catch-up" depreciation of the facility since 
its acquisition in June 1999 and recorded the charge as a cumulative 
change in accounting principle. (See Note 7 to  the Consolidated 
Financial Statements "Contractual Obligations, Financial Guarantees 
and Contingencies" for an explanation of the leasing arrangement for 
the Ravenswood facility, as well as an explanation o: the implementation 
of FIN 46.) 

As a result of the above mentioned items, income from continuing 
operations, less preferred stock dividends, increased $26.7 million, or 
7% in 2003 compared to 2002. Earnings per share from continuing 
operations, however, decreased by $0.13 per share, reflecting the 
issuance of 13.9 million shares of common stock on January 17, 2003, 
as well as the re-issuance of shares held in treasury pursuant to dividend 
reinvestment and employee benefit plans. The increase in average 
common shares outstanding reduced 2003 earnings per share by $0.32 
compared to 2002. Comparative earnings available for common stock, 
which includes the cumulative change in accounting principle recorded 
in 2003, as well as the loss on discontinued operations recorded in 
2002, increased $9.0 million in 2003 compared to  2002. Earnings per 
share, however, decreased by $0.22 per share reflecting the higher level 
of common stock outstanding in 2003. 

KeySpanls earnings for 2003 were forecasted to be approximately 
$2.45 to $2.60 per share, including the effect of the equity issuance 
in January 2003 and excluding special items. Earnings from continuing 
core operations (defined for this purpose as all continuing operations 
other than exploration and production, less preferred stock dividends) 
were forecasted to be approximately $2.1 5 t o  82.20 per share, while 
earnings from exploration and production operations were forecasted 
to be approximately $0.30 to $0.40 per share. Actual 2003 earnings 
from continuing core operations, as defined, were $2.16 per share, 
while earnings from exploration and production operations were 
80.48 per share. 

Operating income for the year ended December 31, 2002, 
increased $1 28.3 million compared to the same period in 2001. 
The increase in operating income primarily reflects the following two  
significant events that are discussed in more detail below: (i) the 
discontinuance of goodwill amortization in 2002; and (ii) the recording 
of special items in 2001 which resulted in the recognition of  certain 
gains and losses. These benefits to comparative operating income were 
offset, in part, by a decrease in natural gas prices, particularly during the 



first quarter of 2002, which reduced earnings associated with gas explo- 
ration and production operations. Further, the impact of extremely warm 
weather during the first quarter of 2002 adversely impacted natural gas 
consumption by gas distribution customers and operating income in the 
Gas Distribution segment. (See "Review of Operating Segments" for a 
detailed discussion of operating income for each of KeySpan's lines of 
business.) 

In January 2002, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standard ("SFAS") 142 "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." The key 
requirements of this Statement include the discontinuance of goodwill 
amortization, a revised framework for testing goodwill impairment and 
new criteria for the identification of intangible assets. Consolidated 
goodwill amortization for 2001 was $49.6 million, or $0.36 per share. 

During 2001, we recorded the effects of a number of events that 
impacted results of operations for that year. These events are as follows: 
(1) we incurred $137.8 million in pre-tax operating losses attributed 
to the former Roy Kay companies ($95.0 million after-tax, or $0.69 per 
share),' primarily reflecting costs related to the discontinuance of the 
general contracting activities of these companies, costs to complete 
work on certain loss construction projects, as well as operating losses 
incurred. (See Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, 
"Roy Kay Operations" and Note 7 "Contractual Obligations, Financial 
Guarantees and Contingencies - Legal Matters", for a further discussion 
of these issues); (2) our gas exploration and production subsidiaries 
recorded a non-cash, pre-tax impairment charge of $42.0 million to 
recognize the effect of lower wellhead prices on their valuation of 
proved gas reserves. Our share of this charge was $26.2 million after- 
tax, or $0.19 per share. (See Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies," Item F for 
further details); and (3) following a favorable appellate court ruling, we 
reversed a previously recorded loss provision regarding certain pending 
rate refund issues relating to the 1989 RlCO class action settlement of 
820.1 million after-tax, or $0.1 5 per share. This adjustment has been 
reflected as a $22.0 million reduction to operations and maintenance 
expense and a reduction of $1 1.5 million to interest charges on the 
Consolidated Statement of lncome for the year ended December 31, 
2001. (See Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements "Class 
Action Settlement" for a further discussion of this issue.) 

Interest expense decreased $52.0 million in 2002 compared to 
2001. The weighted-average interest rate on outstanding commercial 
paper for 2002 was approximately 2.0% compared to approximately 
4.5% in 2001. Further, KeySpan had a number of interest rate swap 
agreements which effectively converted fixed rate debt to floating rate 
debt. The use of these derivative instruments reduced interest expense 
by 835.6 million in 2002. (See Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements "Hedging, Derivative Financial Instruments, and Fair Values" 
for a description of these instruments.) Interest expense in 2001 reflects 
the reversal of $1 1.5 million in accrued interest expense resulting from 
the RlCO class action settlement, as noted previously. 

lncome tax expense generally reflects the level of pre-tax income in 
2002 and 2001. However, as noted above, during 2002 we finalized the 

valuation study related to the assets transferred to KeySpan resulting 

from the KeySpanRlLCO business combination completed in May 1998. 
As a result of an adjustment to deferred taxes and current income taxes 
payable, KeySpan recognized a $5.5 million income tax benefit, lncome 
tax expense for 2002 also reflects additional tax benefits of approxi- 
mately $1 5 million resulting from the finalization of amended tax 
returns and the reversal of certain tax reserves. 

As a result of the above mentioned items, income from continuing 
operations, less preferred stock dividends, increased $1 53.8 million in 
2002 compared to 2001; earnings per share from continuing operations 
increased $1.05 per share. Average common shares outstanding in 2002 
increased by 2% compared to 2001 reflecting the re-issuance of shares 
held in treasury pursuant to dividend reinvestment and employee benefit 
plans. This increase in average common shares outstanding reduced 
earnings per share in 2002 by $0.06 compared to 2001. 

Net income from gas exploration and production operations 
decreased by $13.4 million, or $0.1 1 per share, in 2002 compared to 
2001. These operations were adversely impacted by significantly lower 
realized gas prices in 2002, particularly in the first quarter. As previously 
mentioned, these operations recorded a non-cash impairment charge 
in 2001; excluding this charge, the comparative decrease in earnings 
was $39.6 million, or $0.30 per share. 

FINANCIAL OUTLOOK FOR 2004 
KeySpan's consolidated earnings for 2004 are forecasted to be in the 
range of $2.55 to $2.75 per share, excluding special items. Earnings 
from continuing core operations (defined for this purpose as all 
continuing operations other than exploration and production, less 
preferred stock dividends) are forecasted to be in the range of $2.20 to 
$2.30 per share, while earnings from exploration and production opera- 
tions are forecasted to be in the range of $0.35 to $0.45 per share. 

Consolidated earnings are seasonal in nature due to the significant 
contribution to earnings of our gas distribution operations. As a result, 
we expect to earn most of our annual earnings in the first and fourth 
quarters of our fiscal year. 

REVIEW OF OPERATING SEGMENTS 

In response to new disclosure regulations adopted by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission ("SEC") as part of its implementation of the 
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 - specifically Regulation G, which became 
effective March 2003 -we are reporting all of KeySpan's segment results 
on an Operating lncome basis for 2003,2002 and 2001. Management 
believes that this generally accepted accounting principle ("GAAP") 
based measure provides a reasonable indication of KeySpan's underlying 
performance associated with its operations. The following is a discussion 
of financial results achieved by KeySpan's operating segments presented 
on an Operating lncome basis. 



GAS DISTRIBUTION 
KeySpan Energy Delivery New York ("KEDNY") provides gas distribution 
service to customers in the New York City Boroughs of Brooklyn, Staten 
lsland and a portion of Queens. KeySpan Energy Delivery Long lsland 
("KEDLI") provides gas distribution service to customers in the Long 
Island Counties of Nassau and Suffolk and the Rockaway Peninsula of 
Queens County. Four natural gas distribution companies - Boston Gas 
Company, Essex Gas Company, Colonial Gas Company and EnergyNorth 
Natural Gas, Inc., each doing business under the name KeySpan Energy 
Delivery New England ("KEDNE"), provide gas distribution service to 
customers in Massachusetts and New Hampshire. 

The table below highlights certain significant financial data 
and operating statistics for the Gas Distribution segment for the 
periods indicated. 

(in Tbu~iriiridr of Uniinr~) 

Year Ended December 31. 2003 2002 2001 

Revenues $4,161,272 $3,163,761 $3,613,551 
Cost of gas 2,444,485 1,569,325 2,017,782 
Revenue taxes 90.456 83.066 119.084 
Net Gas Revenues - 1,626,331 1,511,370 1,476,685 
Operating Expenses 

Operations and maintenance 659,932 608,266 593,341 
Depreciation and amortization 259,934 237,186 253,523 
Operating taxes 147,334 135,687 148,428 

Total - - Operating Expenses 1,067,200 981,139 995,292 
Gain on the sale of property 15,123 903 - 

Operating Income 4 574,254 $ 531,134 $ 481,393 
F~rm gas sales and 

transportation (MDTH) 328,073 284,281 283,081 
Transportation - Electric 

Generation (MDTH) 34,778 64,173 64,578 
Other Sales (MDTH) 158,722 209,002 188,037 
Warmer (Colder) than Normal - 

New York & Long Island (8.0%) 7.0% 10 0% 
Warmer (Colder) than Normal - 

New England (10.0%) 4.0% 4.6% 

A tV1DTH is 10,000 therms and reflects the heating content of approximately one million 

cubic feet of gas. A therm reflects the heating content of approximately 100 cubic feet of 

gas. One billion cubic feet (BCF) of gas equals approximately 1,000 MDTH. 

Net Revenues 
Net gas revenues (revenues less the cost of gas and associated revenue 
taxes) from our gas distribution operations increased by $1 15.0 million, 
or 8%, for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared to last year. 
Both our New York and New England based gas distribution operations 
benefited from the significantly colder than normal weather experienced 
throughout the Northeastern United States, particularly during the 
primary winter heating months, January through March, when our gas 

distribution operations realize over 60% of their yearly operating 
income. As measured in heating degree-days, weather during the first 
quarter of 2003 was approximately 10% colder than normal in our 
New York and New England service territories. This contrasts with the 
extremely warm weather experienced during the first quarter of 2002 
when weather was approximately 16% - 18% warmer than normal. 
On a twelve month basis, weather was approximately 8% - 10% 
colder than normal in 2003 compared to 4% - 7% warmer than 
normal in 2002. 

Net gas revenues from firm gas customers (residential, commercial 
and industrial customers) in our New York service territories increased by 
$56.4 million, or 6%, for the twelve months ended December 31, 2003, 
compared to the same period last year. Customer additions and oil-to- 
gas conversions, net of attrition and conservation, added approximately 
$22 million to net revenues during 2003. The effect of higher customer 
consumption in 2003 due primarily to colder than normal weather, 
coupled with lower customer consumption in 2002 due to the extremely 
warmer than normal weather resulted in a comparative increase to firm 
net revenues of approximately 841 .I million in 2003 compared to 2002. 
However, KEDNY and KEDLI each operate under a utility tariff that 
contains a weather normalization adjustment that significantly offsets 
variations in firm net revenues due to fluctuations from normal weather. 
These tariff provisions resulted in a $20.4 million refund to firm gas 
customers during 2003. Also included in net revenues are regulatory 
incentives that reduced comparative net revenues by $2.1 million and 
recovery of certain taxes that added $1 5.8 million to net revenues 
during 2003. The recovery of taxes through revenues, however, does not 
impact net income since we expense a similar amount as amortization 
charges and income taxes, as appropriate, on the Consolidated 
Statement of Income. 

Net gas revenues from firm gas customers in our New England 
service territories increased $31.7 million, or 7Oh, for the year ended 

' December 31, 2003, compared to the same period last year. Customer 
additions and oil-to-gas conversions, net of attrition and conservation, 
added approximately $13.5 million to net revenues. As with our New 
York service territories, higher customer consumption in 2003 due to the 
colder than normal weather, coupled with lower customer consumption 
in 2002 due to the warmer than normal weather, resulted in an increase 
in comparative net revenues for our New England based gas distribution 
utilities of approximately $25.1 million in 2003 compared to 2002. 
The gas distribution operations of our New England based subsidiaries 
do not have a weather normalization adjustment. To mitigate the effect 
of fluctuations from normal weather patterns on KEDNE's results of 
operations and cash flows, weather derivatives were put in place for 
the 2002/2003 and 200312004 winter heating seasons. Since weather 
during the first quarter of 2003 was 10% colder than normal in the 
New England service territories, we recorded an $1 1.9 million reduction 
to revenues. to reflect the loss on these derivative transactions. Similarly, 
in 2002 we recorded a $3.3 million reduction to revenues. As a result of 
these transactions, comparative net revenues were adversely impacted 
by $8.6 million. Weather derivatives had only a marginal impact on 
net revenues during the fourth quarter of 2003, since weather was 



approximately normal. (See Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements "Hedging, Derivative Financial Instruments and Fair Values " 

for further information). 
Also included in net revenues for 2003 are $5.6 million of base- 

rate adjustments resulting from Boston Gas Company's recently conclud- 
ed rate case. Further, included in net revenues for 2002, was a benefit 
of $3.9 million as a result of a favorable ruling from the Massachusetts 
Supreme Judicial Court relating to the appeal by Boston Gas Company 
of its Performance Based Rate Plan ("PBR"). The net effect of these 
base-rate adjustments was a favorable impact to comparative net 
revenues in 2003 of $1.7 million. (See "Regulation and Rate Matters" 
for a further discussion of these matters.) 

Firm gas distribution rates for KEDNY and KEDLl in 2003, 
other than for the recovery of gas costs, have remained substantially 
unchanged from rates charged last year. As noted, firm gas distribution 
rates for KEDNE reflect an Increase of $5.6 million resulting from 
The Boston Gas Company's rate order, which became effective 
November 1, 2003. 

In our large-volume heating and other interruptible (non-firm) 
markets, which include large apartment houses, government buildings 
and schools, gas service is provided under rates that are designed to 
compete with prices of alternative fuel, including No. 2 and No. 6 grade 
heating oil. Net revenues from sales to these markets increased by 
$26.8 million during the twelve months ended December 31, 2003, 
compared to the same period last year. The majority of interruptible 
profits earned by KEDNE and KEDLl are returned to firm customers 
as an offset to gas costs. 

During 2002, combined net gas revenues from our gas distribution 
operations increased by $34.7 million, or 2% compared to 2001. Both 
the New York and New England based gas distribution operations were 
adversely impacted by the significantly warmer than normal weather 
experienced throughout the Northeastern United States during 2002, 
particularly during the first quarter. Weather during the primary heating 
seasons, January through March, was approximately 16%-18% warmer 
than normal, across our service territories. 

Net revenues from firm gas customers in our New York service 
territories increased $13.6 million, or 1 %, in 2002 compared to 2001. 
Included in net revenues are regulatory incentives and recovery of 
certain taxes that added $1.8 million and $20.1 million to net revenues 
during 2002, respectively. As mentioned previously, the recovery of 
taxes through revenues does not impact net income. Excluding both 
the regulatory incentives and tax recoveries, comparative net revenues 
decreased $8.3 million. During 2002, our New York based gas distribu- 
tion utilities added approximately $40 million in gross gas load additions 
through oil-to-gas conversions, as well as from new construction. 
Further, as mentioned, KEDNY and KEDLl each operate under utility 
tariffs that contain a weather normalization adjustment. These tariff 
provisions resulted in an increase to net gas revenues of $22.3 million 
in 2002. However the benefits from load additions and the weather 

normalization adjustment were offset by declining usage per customer 
due to the extremely warm first quarter weather and the use of more 
efficient gas heating equipment. Additionally, the down-turn in the 
economy throughout the Northeastern United States adversely impacted 
gas consumption in 2002. 

Net revenues from firm gas customers in the New England service 
territories increased by $20.5 million, or 5%, in 2002 compared to 
2001, primarily as a result of approximately $24 million in gross load 
additions. Also included in net revenues are base rate adjustments 
totaling $10.0 million associated with Boston Gas Company's PBR. The 
largest component of this adjustment reflects the beneficial effect of a 
favorable ruling of the ~assachusetts Supreme Judicial Court relating to 
the "accumulated inefficiencies" component of the productivity factor 
in the PBR. This ruling resulted in a benefit to comparative net margins 
of $6.3 million. (See "Regulation and Rate Matters" for a further 
discussion of this matter.) Offsetting, to some extent, these benefits 
to revenues were the adverse effects of declining usage per customer 
due to the extremely warm first quarter weather and the use of more 
efficient gas heating equipment. Additionally, the down-turn in the 
economy throughout the Northeastern United States adversely impacted 
gas consumption in 2002. 

As mentioned previously, the New England-based gas distribution 
subsidiaries do not have weather normalization adjustments. To lessen, 
to some extent, the effect of fluctuations from normal weather patterns 
on KEDNE's results of operations and cash flows, weather derivatives 
were in place for the 200212003 winter heating season. Since weather 
during the fourth quarter of 2002 was 7% colder than normal in the 
New England service territories, we recorded a $3.3 mill~on reduction to 
revenues to reflect the loss on these derivative transactions. (See Note 8 
to the Consolidated Financial Statements "Hedging, Derivative Financial 
Instruments, and Fair Values" for further information). 

Firm gas distribution rates in 2002, excluding gas cost recoveries, 
remained substantially unchanged from 2001 in all of our service 
territories. 

Net revenues from sales in the large-volume heating and 
other interruptible (non-firm) markets were consistent between 
2002 and 2001. 

We are committed to our expansion strategy initiated during the 
past few years. We believe that significant growth opportunities exist on 
Long lsland and in our New England service territories. We estimate that 
on Long Island approximately 36% of the residential and multi-family 
markets, and approximately 58% of the commercial market currently 
use natural gas for space heating. Further, we estimate that in our 
New England service territories approximately 53% of the residential 
and multi-family markets, and approximately 63% of the commercial 
market, currently use natural gas for space heating purposes. We will 
continue to seek growth in all our market segments, through the 
economic expansion of our gas distribution system, as well as through 
the conversion of residential homes from oil-to-gas for space heating 
purposes and the pursuit of opportunities to grow the multi-family, 
industrial and commercial markets. 



Firm Sales, Transportation and Other Quantities 
Total actual firm gas sales and transportation quantities increased by 
15% during the year ended December 31, 2003, compared to the same 
period in 2002. In the New York service territories actual firm sales 
increased 179'0, while firm sales in the New England service territories 
increased 13%. Weather normalized sales quantities increased 6% in 
the New York service territories and 3% in the New England service 
territories. The increases in both actual and weather normalized gas sale 
quantities reflect higher customer consumption as a result of the signifi- 
cantly colder than normal weather in 2003, as well as from customer 
additions and oil-to-gas conversions for space heating purposes. Further, 
as mentioned previously, gas sales quantities in 2002 were adversely 
impacted by the exceptionally warm weather. 

In 2002, total actual firm gas sales and transportation quantities 
remained consistent with 2001. In the New York service territories, 
actual and weather normalized firm gas sales and transportation 
quantities decreased slightly in 2002 compared to 2001, due to the 
exceptionally warm 2002 weather. However, in the New England 
services territories, firm gas sales and transportation quantities increased 
4%, despite the warm first quarter weather, due to load additions. 

Net revenues are not affected by customers opting to purchase 
their gas supply from other sources, since delivery rates charged to 
transportation customers generally are the same as delivery rates 
charged to sales service customers. Transportation quantities related 
to electrlc generation reflect the transportation of gas to our electric 
generating facilities located on Long Island. Net revenues from these 
services are not material. 

Other sales quantities include on-system interruptible quantities, 
off-system sales quantities (sales made to customers outside of our 
service territories) and related transportation. We have an agreement 
with Coral Resources, L.P. ("Coral"), a subsidiary of Shell Oil Company, 
under which Coral assists in the origination, structuring, valuation and 
execution of energy-related transactions on behalf of KEDNY and KEDLI. 
We also have a portfolio management contract with Entergy Koch 
Trading, LP ("EKT"), under which EKT provides all of the city gate supply 
requirements at market prices and manages certain upstream capacity, . 
underground storage and term supply contracts for KEDNE. These 
agreements expire on March 31, 2006. 

Purchased Gas for Resale 
The increase in gas costs for the year ended December 31, 2003 
compared to  the same period in 2002 of $875.2 million, or 56%, 
reflects an increase of 39% in the price per dekatherm of gas 
purchased, and a 15% increase in the quantity of gas purchased. 
The decrease in gas costs in 2002 compared to 2001 of $448.5 million, 
or 22%, reflects a decrease of 26% in the price per dekatherm of 

gas purchased, partially offset by a 1.0% increase in the quantity of gas 
purchased. The current gas rate structure of each of our gas distribution 
utilities includes a purchased gas adjustment clause, pursuant to which 
variations between actual gas costs incurred for resale to firm sales 
customers and gas costs billed to firm sales customers are deferred and 
refunded to or collected from customers in a subsequent period. 

Operating Expenses 
Operating expenses in 2003 increased $86.1 million, or 9%, compared 
to last year. This increase is primarily attributable to higher pension 
and other postretirement benefit costs, which have increased (net of 
amounts deferred and subject to regulatory true-ups) by $30.9 million 
during 2003. The cost of these benefits has risen primarily as a result 
of lower actual returns on plan assets, as well as increased health care 
costs. Further, the colder weather experienced during 2003 resulted in 
a higher level of repair and maintenance work on our gas distribution 
infrastructure which increased comparative operating expenses by 
approximately $1  5 million. 

Higher depreciation and amortization expense reflects the 
continued expansion of the gas distribution system. Further, included 
in depreciation and amortization expense is the amortization of certain 
property taxes previously deferred and currently being recovered in 
revenues. Comparative operating taxes reflect a favorable $9.9 million 
adjustment recorded during 2002 relating to the reversal of excess tax 
reserves established for the KeySpan / LlLCO combination in May 1998, 

Operating expenses decreased by $14.2 million in 2002 compared 
to 2001. Comparative operating expenses were significantly impacted 
by the discontinuation of goodwill amortization. As mentioned earlier, 
in January 2002, we adopted SFAS 142 "Goodwill and Other Intangible 
Assets," which required, among other things, the discontinuation of 
goodwill amortization. Goodwill amortization in the gas distribution 
segment for the twelve months ended December 31, 2001 was 
$35.6 million. Excluding the effects of this amortization, operating 
expenses increased by $21.4 million, or 2%, in 2002 compared to 2001. 

The increase in operating expense in 2002 is attributable, in part, 
to higher pension and other postretirement benefits which increased 
by approximately $25 million, net of amounts deferred and subject 
to regulatory true-ups, over the level incurred in 2001. Further, 
depreciation and amortization expense, excluding the 2001 goodwill 
amortization, increased as a result of the continued expansion of 
the gas distribution system. 

Offsetting, to some extent, these increases to operating expenses 
is the favorable $9.9 million adjustment to operating taxes recorded in 
2002 related to the reversal of certain operating tax reserves established 
for the KeySpanILILCO combination as previously noted. Further, we 
realized cost saving synergies as a result of early retirement and sever- 
ance programs implemented in the fourth quarter of 2000, The early 
retirement portion of the program was completed in 2000, but the 
severance feature continued through 2002. 



Sale o f  Property 
During 2003 we recorded $1 5.1 million in gains from property sales, 
primarily 550 acres of real property located on Long Island. 

O the r  Mat ters  
As previously mentioned, there remain significant growth opportunities 
in our Long lsland and New England gas distribution service areas. The 
Northeast region represents a significant portion of the country's popu- 
lation and energy consumption. Cost efficient gas sales growth and 
customer additions are critical t o  our earnings in the future. However, 
the beneficial effect of our growth initiatives may not be fully realized in 
the short-term since we will continue to  make incremental investments 
in our gas distribution network to optimize the long-term growth 
opportunities in our service territories. 

In order to  serve the anticipated market requirements in our New 
York service territories, KeySpan and Duke Energy Corporation formed 
lslander East Pipeline Company, LLC ("lslander East") in 2000. lslander 
East is owned 50% by KeySpan and 50% by Duke Energy, and was 
created to  pursue the authorization and construction of an interstate 
pipeline from Connecticut, across Long lsland Sound, to a terminus near 
Northport, Long Island. Applications for all necessary regulatory authori- 
zations were filed in 2000 and 2001. To date, lslander East has received 
a final certificate from the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 
("FERC") and all necessary permits from the State of New York. 
However, the State of Connecticut has denied lslander East's application 
for a coastal zone management permit and a permit under Section 401 
of the Clean Water Act. lslander East has reinstated its appeal of the 
State of Connecticut's determination on the coastal zone management 
issue to the United States ~ e ~ a r t m e n t  of Commerce and is evaluating 
its legal and other options with respect t o  the Section 401 issue. Once 
in service, the pipeline is expected to  transport up to 260,000 DTH daily 
to  the Long lsland and New York City energy markets, enough natural 
gas t o  heat 600,000 homes. The pipeline will also allow KeySpan to 
diversify the geographic sources of its gas supply. However, we are 
unable to  predict when or if all regulatory approvals required to  con- 
struct this pipeline will be obtained. Various options for the financing 
of ljipeline construction are currently being evaluated. At December 31, 
2003, total expenditures associated with the siting and permitting of 
the lslander East pipeline were $14.9 million. 

ELECTRIC SERVICES 
The Electric Services segment primarily consists of subsidiaries that own 
and operate oil and gas fired electric generating plants in the New York 
City Borough of Queens (the "Ravenswood facility") and the counties 
of Nassau and Suffolk on Long lsland and on the Rockaway Peninsula 
in Queens. In addition, through long-term contracts of varying lengths, 
we manage the electric transmission and distribution ("TBD") system, 
the fuel and electric purchases, and the off-system electric sales for LIPA. 

Selected financial data for the Electric Services segment is set forth 
in the table below for the periods indicated. 

( In  Thorrrandr of Do//arr) 
Year Ended December 31. 2003 2002 200 1 

Revenues $1,503,187 $1,421,143 $1,421,179 
Purchased fuel 371,134 272,873 281,398 
Net Revenues 1,132,053 1,148,270 1,139,781 
Operating Expenses 

Operations and maintenance 650,649 659,882 662,083 
Depreciation 66,843 61,377 52,284 
Operating taxes 145,584 139,694 155,693 

Total Operating Expenses 863,076 860,953 870,060 
Gain on the sale of property - 1,479 - 

Operating Income $ 268,977 $ 288,796 $ 269,721 
Electric sales (MWH)* 4,743,029 4,998,111 4,932,836 
Capacity (MW)* 
Coolina dearee davs 

*Reflects the operations of  the Ravenswood facility only 

N e t  Revenues 
Total electric net revenues decreased $16.2 million, or 1 % for the year 
ended December 31, 2003 compared to the same period in 2002. 

Net revenues from the Ravenswood facility were 83.1 million lower 
in 2003 compared to  2002. Comparative net revenues reflect higher 
capacity revenues of $31.5 million, offset by a decrease in energy 
margins of $34.6 million. The increase in capacity revenues reflects an 
increase in the level of capacity sold, as well as an increase in the selling 
price of capacity. Such increases are the result of two measures. F~rst, in 
2002, the New York Independent System Operator ("NYISO") employed 
a revised methodology to assess the available supply of and demand 
for installed capacity. This revised methodology resulted in insufficient 
capacity being procured by the market, which caused a reliability 
concern. Further, the revised methodology resulted in lower capacity 
volume sold into the NYISO and depressed capacity pricing during the 
year ended December 31, 2002. The NYISO, however, recognized a 
calculation flaw in its revised methodology, and prior to the 200212003 
winter season capacity auction, corrected the calculation methodology 
to ensure that sufficient capacity is procured. Elimination of  the flaw 
ensured compliance with New York State reliability rules and resulted 
in higher capacity revenue realized at the Ravenswood facility in 2003 
compared to  the prior year. 

In addition, on May 20, 2003,'the Federal Energy Regulatory 
Commission ("FERC") approved the NYISO's revised capacity market 
procurement design with an effective date of May 21, 2003. This revised 
capacity market procurement design is based on a demand curve rather 
than relying on deficiency auctions to procure necessary capacity. The 
deficiency auction with its associated fixed minimum capacityrequire- 
ments was replaced with a spot market auction that pays gradually 
declining prices as additional capacity is offered and gradually increasing 
prices as capacity offers decrease. This new market design recognizes 
the value of capacity in excess of the minimum requirement and reduces 



price spikes during periods of shortage. Essentially, the demand curve 
design eliminates the high and low cycles inherent in the deficiency 
auction market design. This new market design also established seasonal 
electric generator specific price caps. Price caps establish the maximum 
price per megawatt ("MW") that capacity can be sold into the NYISO 
by divested electric generators like Ravenswood. Prior t o  this design 
change, one price cap was established for the entire year and was 
effective for all electric generators. For the Ravenswood facility, its 2003 
summer price cap was higher than the yearly price cap effective during 
the 2002 summer. As a result of these market design changes, the 
Ravenswood facility realized higher capacity revenues during 2003 
compared to  2002. It should be noted, however, that Ravenswood's 
200312004 structured winter price cap will be lower than the yearly 
price cap effective during the 200212003 winter, which was prior to 
the implementation of the new demand curve methodology. 

The decrease in comparative energy margins in 2003 primarily 
reflects significantly cooler weather during the summer of 2003 
compared to the summer of 2002. Measured in cooling degree-days, 
weather for 2003 was 27% cooler than last year. The cooler weather 
resulted in lower realized "spark-spreads" (the selling price of electricity 
less cost of fuel, plus hedging gains or losses), as well as a reduction in 
megawatt hours sold into the NYISO. Further, more competitive behav- 
ior by market participants that bid into the NYISO, as well as certain 
price mitigation measures imposed by the FERC (as discussed below) 
have resulted in lower comparative realized "spark-spreads." Energy 
sales quantities during a portion of 2003 were also adversely impacted 
by the scheduled major overhaul of our largest generating unit. 

We employ derivative financial hedging instruments to hedge the 
cash flow variability for a portion of forecasted purchases of natural 
gas and fuel oil consumed at the Ravenswood facility. Further, we have 
engaged in the use of derivative financial hedging instruments to hedge 
the cash flow variability associated with a portion of forecasted peak 
electric energy sales from the Ravenswood facility. These derivative 
instruments resulted in hedging gains, which are reflected in net electric 
margins, of $12.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 com- 
pared to hedging gains of $17.4 million for the year ended December 
31, 2002. (See Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
"Hedging, Derivative Financial Instruments, and Fair Values" for further 
information). 

The rules and regulations for capacity, energy sales and the sale of 
certain ancillary services to  the NYISO energy markets continue to evolve 
and the FERC has adopted several price mitigation measures that have 
adversely impacted earnings from the Ravenswood facility. Certain of 
these mitigation measures are still subject to  rehearing and possible 
judicial review. The final resolution of these issues and their effect on 
our financial position, results of operations and cash flows cannot be 
fully determined at this time. (See the discussion under the caption 
"Market and Credit Risk Management Activities" for more information.) 

Net revenues from the service agreements with LlPA decreased by 
$22.7 million for the year ended December 31,2003 compared to the 
same period last year. Included in revenues are billings to LlPA for certain 
third party costs that were lower than such billings last year. These 
revenues have minimal or no impact on earnings since we record a 
similar amount of costs in operating expense and we share any cost 
under-runs with LIPA. Excluding these third party billings, revenues in 
2003 associated with these service agreements increased approximately 
$7 million compared to last year. The increase reflects a higher level of 
service fees charged to LlPA for the recovery of past operating costs. 
In 2003 we earned $16.2 million associated with non-cost performance 
incentives provided for under these agreements, compared to  $16.0 
million earned last year. (For a description of the LlPA Agreements, 
see the discussion under the caption "LIPA Agreements.") 

Net revenues from the new electric "peaking" facilities located at 
Glenwood Landing and Port Jefferson on Long Island were $9.6 million 
higher in 2003 compared to 2002, reflecting a full year of operation. 
The Glenwood facility was placed in service on June 1, 2002, while 
the Port Jefferson facility was placed in service on July 1, 2002. These 
facilities added a combined 160 megawatts of generating capacity to  
Keyspan's electric generation portfolio. The capacity of and energy pro- 
duced by these facilities are dedicated to LlPA under.25 year,contracts. 

Total electric net revenues increased by $8.5 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2002, compared to the same period in 2001. 
Net revenues in 2002 reflect net revenues of $17.3 million from the 
Glenwood Landing and Port Jefferson facilities. 

Net revenues from the LlPA Agreements increased by $47.2 million 
in 2002, compared to 2001. Included in revenues for 2002, are billings 
to LlPA for certain third party costs that were significantly higher than 
such billings in the prior year. As previously mentioned, these revenues 
have minimal impact on earnings. Excluding these third party billings, 
revenues for 2002 associated with the LlPA Agreements were compara- 
ble to  such revenues in 2001. In 2002 we earned $1'6.0 million associat- 
ed with non-cost performance incentives provided for under these 
agreements, compared to $16.2 million earned in 2001. 

Net revenues from the Ravenswood facility were $56 million, or  
16% lower in 2002, compared to 2001. Net revenues from capacity 
sales decreased $45.3 million compared to  2001, while margins associ- 
ated with the sale of electric energy decreased $10.7 million. During 
2002 we changed our classification of certain operating taxes that 
resulted in a comparative decrease in energy margins. Further, compara- 
tive energy sales were adversely impacted by a reduction in "spark- 
spread." Measured in cooling degree-days, weather during 2002 and 
2001 was comparable. 

The decrease in net revenues from capacity sales in 2002 was due, 
in part, to more competitive pricing by the electric generators that bid 
into the NYISO energy market which lowered capacity clearing prices 
by approximately 8% compared to 2001. Further, as mentioned earlier, 
the NYISO revised its methodology employed to  determine the available 
supply of and demand for installed capacity that also had an adverse 
impact on the capacity market by reducing the capacity required to be 
purchased by load sewing entities such as electric utilities. 



Derivative instruments resulted in hedging gains, which are 
reflected in net electric margins, of $1 7.4 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2002 compared to hedging gains of $16.7 million for 
the year ended December 31, 2001. (See Note 8 to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements "Hedging, Derivative Financial Instruments, and 
Fair Values" for further information). 

, Operat ing Expenses 
Operating expenses increased $2.1 million for the year ended December 
31, 2003, compared to 2002. Included in comparative operating 
expenses is a decrease in third party capital costs that are fully recover- 
able from LIPA, as noted previously. Excluding the decrease in these 
costs, operating expenses increased approximately 832 million. This 
increase resulted, in part, from higher pension and other.postretirement 
benefit costs. LlPA reimburses KeySpan for costs directly incurred by 
KeySpan in providing service to  LIPA, subject to certain sharing provi- 
sions. Variations between pension and other postretirement costs and 
the estimates used to bill LlPA are deferred and refunded to  or collected 
from LlPA in subsequent periods. As a result of an adjustment recorded 
in 2002 relating to this "true-up," comparative pension and other 
postretirement costs were approximately $9.3 million higher in 2003 
compared to  2002. In addition, in 2002 we settled certain outstanding 
issues with LlPA and The Consolidated Edison Company of New York 
("Consolidated Edison") that resulted in a $13.0 million decrease to 
operating expenses in 2002. Operating taxes reflect an increase in 
property tax rates associated with the Ravenswood facility. The increase 
in depreciation expense is associated with the Glenwood and Port 
Jefferson facilities. 

Operating expenses were $9.1 million lower in 2002 compared 
to 2001. Excluding the increase in third party capital costs, operating 
expenses decreased by approximately 857 million in 2002 compared 
to 2001. As a result of an adjustment recorded in 2002 relating to the 
pension and other postretirement benefit "true-up" as previously 
mentioned, comparative pension and other postretirement costs were 
approximately $23 million lower in 2002 compared to 2001. Further, 
during 2002 we settled certain outstanding issues with LlPA and 
Consolidated Edison, as previously noted, that resulted in a $20.3 
million decrease to comparative operating expenses. Also in 2002 we 
changed our method for recording certain operating taxes that resulted 
in a comparative decrease in operating taxes. The increase in deprecia- 
tion and amortization expense primarily reflects depreciation associated 
with the new peaking facilities. 

Other  Mat ters  
During 2002, construction began on a new 250 MW combined cycle 
generating facility at the Ravenswood facility site. The new facility was 
synchronized to  the electric grid in December 2003 and commenced 
operational testing in January 2004. In March, the facility completed full 
load Dependable Maximum Net Capacity testing. The capacity and ener- 
gy produced from this plant are anticipated to be sold into the NYlSO 
energy markets during the second quarter of 2004. KeySpan intends to 

enter into an approximately $360 million salelleaseback transaction with 
third parties to finance the cost of this facility. (See Note 15 to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements "Subsequent Events" for a further 
discussion regarding this proposed transaction.) 

In 2003, the New York State Board on Electric Generation Siting 
and the Environment issued an opinion and order which granted a 
certificate of environmental capability and public need for a 250 MW 
combined cycle electric generating facility in Melville, Long Island, which 
is now final and non-appealable. Also in 2003, LlPA issued a Request 
for Proposal ("RFP") seeking bids from developers to  either build and 
operate a Long lsland generating facility, andtor a new cable that will 
link Long lsland to  dedicated off-Long lsland power of between 250 to  
600 MW of electricity by no later than the summer of 2007. KeySpan 
and American National Power Inc. ("ANP") filed a joint proposal in 
response to LIPA's RFP, Under the proposal, KeySpan and ANP will jointly 
own and operate two 250 MW electric generating facilities to be 
located on Long Island. It is anticipated that LlPA will respond to the 
joint proposal early in 2004. At December 31, 2003, total expenditures 
associated with the siting, permitting and construction of the 
Ravenswood expansion project, andthe siting, permitting and procure- 
ment of equipment for the Long lsland 250 M W  combined cycle 
electric generating facility were $387.7 million. 

As part of our growth strategy, we continually evaluate the 
possible acquisition and development of additional generating facilities 
in the Northeast. However, we are unable to predict when or if any such 
facilities will be acquired and the effect any such acquired facilities will 
have on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. 

ENERGY SERVICES 
The Energy Selvices segment includes companies that provide services 
to clients located primaril) within the Northeastern United States, 
with concentrations in the New York City metropolitan area, including 
New Jersey and Connecticut, as well as in Rhode Island, Pennsylvania, 
Massachusetts and New Hampshire. The primary lines of business are: 
Business Solutions and Home Energy Services. 

The table below highlights selected financial information for the 
Energy Services segment. 

- 

[ln Thouiundi o/Dol/ariJ 
Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 200 1 

Revenues $649,590 $938,761 $1,100,167 
Less: cost of gas and fuel 93,674 206,731 407,734 
Net Revenues 555,916 732,030 692,433 
Other operating expenses 593,982 743,965 839,918 
Ooeratina (Loss) 8 (38.066) 8 (1 1.935) $ (147.485) 

Revenues decreased 31 % for the year ended December 31,2003 
compared to the same period last year, due in part to lower revenues 
realized by the Business Solutions group of companies as a result of  the 
softness in the construction industry in the Northeastern United States, 
as well as from the discontinuation of the general contracting business 
of one of our subsidiaries. The Business Solutions group of companies 
provide mechanical, contracting, plumbing, engineering, and consulting 



services to commercial, institutional, and industrial customers. Further, 
comparative revenues, as well as gas and fuel costs, were impacted 
by the assignment of  retail natural gas customers, consisting mostly of 
residential and small commercial customers, to ECONnergy Energy Co., 
Inc. ("ECONnergy). KeySpan Energy Services will continue its electric 
marketing activities. 

Total operating losses for the Energy Services segment increased 
$26.1 million in 2003 compared to  2002. Operating losses for the 
Business Solutions group of companies increased by $32.2 million, 
reflecting revenue and significant gross margin pressure from the 
softness in the construction industry, which has delayed the start-up 
of certain engineering and construction projects, and has generally 
increased competition for remaining opportunities. In addition, margins 
were impacted by certain project-specific losses, resulting from costs 
incurred in excess of cost recoveries, for which some recovery may 
be possible pending successful claim resolution. Business Solutions' 
backlog held relatively stable at approximately $537 million at 
December 31,2003 (which includes backlog of $33 million purchased 
in a recent acquisition as' discussed below), compared to $514 million 
at December 31, 2002. 

Offsetting, in part, the results of the Business Solutions group 
of companies, was a comparative increase in operating earnings of 
$6.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 associated with 
the Home Energy Services group of companies. These companies 
provide residential and small commercial customers with service and 
maintenance contracts, as well as the retail marketing of electricity. 
Comparative operating income reflects losses incurred during 2002, 
resulting from the non-renewal of appliance service contracts due 
to  the warm first quarter 2002 weather, as well as from an increase 
in the provision for bad debts. 

Comparative operating income results for 2002 compared to 2001 
were significantly impacted by losses incurred by one of our subsidiaries. 
In 2001, we discontinued the general contracting activities related to  
the former Roy Kay companies, with the exception of completion of 
work on then existing contracts. (See Note 10 to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements "Roy Kay Operations" for a more detailed discus- 
sion.) For the year ended December 31, 2001, we incurred an operating 
loss of $1 37.8 million associated with the operations of the former 
Roy Kay companies. The Roy Kay results reflect costs related to the 
discontinuation o f  the general contracting activities of these companies, 
costs to  complete work on certain loss construction projects, as well 
as operating losses. During 2002, in completing the contracts entered 
into by the former Roy Kay companies we incurred operating losses 
of $10.8 million reflecting increases in costs to complete construction 
contracts, and general and administrative expenses. It should be noted 
that in 2003 we incurred $1 1.4 million in operating losses which 
reflected provisions made for the resolution of  outstanding claims and 
change orders, as well as additional costs incurred in connection with 
the collection of outstanding contract balances. 

Excluding the results of the former Roy Kay companies, the 
Energy Services segment reflected an increase in operating income 
of $8.7 million in 2002 compared to 2001. Revenues, excluding the 

Roy Kay companies, decreased by $180.4 million in 2002, while the cost 
of  fuel decreased by $201.0 million. These declines, which for the most 
part offset each other, reflect the operations of our gas and electric 
marketing subsidiary. In 2002, this subsidiary substantially decreased its 
customer base by focusing its marketing efforts on higher net margin 
customers and in 2003 assigned the majority of its retail natural gas 
customers to ECONnergy, as previously discussed. 

Operating income for the Business Solutions group of companies 
improved by $22.0 million in 2002 compared to 2001. This increase 
reflected additional work being performed on the backlog of projects 
existing at the end of 2001 and'the absence of $6 million in losses 
incurred on four major projects in 2001. A backlog of approximately 
$514 million existed at December 31, 2002, which was 20% below 
the December 31,2001 level. 

Offsetting the positive contribution to operating income in 2002 
by the Business Solutions group of companies was a decrease of 
$13.3 million associated with the Home Energy Services group of 
companies. Contributing to the decrease in operating income from 
Home Energy Services were the following factors: (i) the adverse impact 
of the downturn in the economy in 2002; (ii) the non-renewal of appli- 
ance service contracts due t o  the warm first quarter weather; (iii) costs 
associated with the closing of a service center; and (iv) an increase in 
the reserve for bad debts. Comparative operating income in 2002 also 
benefited from the elimination of goodwill amortization, which for 
2001 amounted to $8.2 million. 

Other Matters 
During the third quarter of 2003, KeySpan Services, Inc., and its wholly- 
owned subsidiary, Paulus, Sokolowski and Sartor, LLC., acquired Bard, 
Rao t Athanas Consulting Engineers, Inc. (BRtA), a company engaged 
.in the business of providing engineering services relating to  mechanical, 
electrical and plumbing systems. The purchase price was $35 million, 
plus up to  $14.7 million in contingent consideration depending on the 
financial performance of BRtA over the five-year period after the closing 
of the acquisition. We have recorded goodwill of $26 million and intan- 
gible assets of $2 million associated with this transaction. The intangible 
assets, which relate primarily to a portion of the backlog purchased, 
as well as to non-compete agreements with all of the former owners 
of BRtA, will be amortized over two and three years, respectively. 

ENERGY INVESTMENTS 
The Energy Investment segment consists of our gas exploration and 
production operations, certain other domestic and international energy- 
related investments, as well as certain technology-related investments. 
Our gas exploration and production subsidiaries, Houston Exploration 
and KeySpan Exploration and Production, LLC ("KES E&PU) are engaged 
in gas and oil exploration and production, and the development and 
acquisition of domestic natural gas and oil properties. In line with our 
strategy of monetizing or divesting certain non-core assets, in 2002 
we sold a portion of our assets in the joint venture drilling program with 



..,,,,tluri rnat was initiated in 1999. In 2003 we reduced 
ur ownership interest in Houston Exploration to approximately 55% 
rom the previous level of 66%) through the repurchase, by Houston 
~ploration, of three million shares of common stock owned by 
eySpan. The net proceeds of approximately $79 million received in 
~nnection with this repurchase were used to pay down short-term 
?bt. We realized a $19.0 million gain on this transaction that was 
&corded in other income and (deductions) in the Consolidated 
:atement of Income, Income taxes were not provided on this transac- 
m,  since the transaction was structured as a return of capital. 

In 2003, Houston Exploration acquired the entire Gulf of Mexico 
 allow-water asset base of Transworld Exploration and Production, Inc. 
~r $149 million. The properties, which are 75% natural gas, have 
oven reserves of approximately 92 billion cubic feet of natural 
IS equivalent. Current production from 1 1  fields is approximately 
i million cubic feet of natural gas equivalent per day. Houston 
ploration funded the transaction from its bank revolver and from 
sh on hand at the time of closing. 

Selected financial data and operating statistics for our gas 
ploration and production activities is set forth in the following table 
r the periods indicated. 

(In 7~nrrrandr o/Do/lnr~)  
- 

3r Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001 -- 
venues $501,255 $357,451 $400,031 
pletion and amortization expense 204,702 176,925 142,728 
I cost ceiling test write-down - - 41,989 

ier operating -~ expenses 99,944 70,267 55,653 
p~ 

erating Income $197,209 81 10,259 $1 59,661 
ural gas and oil 
roduction (Mmcf) 109,211 106,044 93,968 
ral gas (per Mcf) realized $ 4.55 8 3.32 $ 4.24 
.at qas (per Mcf) unhed~ed $ 5.23 8 3.16 $ 4.09 

~t ing income above represents 100% of our gas explorat~on and production 

lries' results for the periods indicated. Gas reserves and production are stated in 

d Mmcfe, which includes equivalent oil reserves 

'ing Income 
2ase in operating income of $87.0 million or 79% for the year 
ccember 31, 2003, compared to the same period of 2002, 
significant increase in revenues. The higher revenues were 
some extent, by an increase in operating expenses associated 
her depletion rate, as well as higher lease operating expenses 
nce taxes, as discussed below. Revenues for the year 
3 benefited from the combination of a 37% increase in 
'ized gas prices (average wellhead price received for 
icluding hedging gains and losses) and a 3% increase in 
5lumes. 

natural gas price, resulting in revenues that were approximat 
$67 million lower than revenues that would have been achiei 
derivative financial instruments had not been in place during ; 
Houston Exploration hedged slightly less than 70% of its 2005 
tion, principally through the use of costless collars, and has he( 
similar amount of its estimated 2004 production. Further, at De 
31, 2003, Houston Exploration has derivative financial instrumel 
in place for approximately 44% of its estimated 2005 productior 
Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, "Hedging, Deri 
Financial Instruments, and Fair Values" for further information.) 

The depletion rate experienced in 2003 was $1.85 per Mcf, 
compared to $1.68 per Mcf experienced in 2002. The increase in t 
depletion rate reflects downward revisions related to performance, 
addition of more costs to Houston Exploration's depreciation base v 
fewer additions for reserves, as well as an increase in estimated f u t ~  
development costs at year-end. 

The increase in other operating expenses for the year ended 
December 31, 2003, compared to the same period of 2002 was 
primarily due to increased lease operating costs and severance taxes. 
Lease operating expenses increased $13.1 million in 2003 compared tc 
2002, as a result of the continued expansion of operations both onsho 
and offshore. Severance tax, which is a function of volume and revenuc 
generated from onshore production, increased $6.5 million in 2003 
compared to 2002 as a result of the increase in average wellhead 
prices for natural gas. Overall operating expenses are increasing as 
new wells and facilities are added and production from existing wells 
is maintained. 

Operating income decreased $49.4 million or 31 % in 2002 
compared to 2001 primarily due to a 22% reduction in average realized 
gas prices, wh~ch lowered comparative revenues. Further, operating 
expenses increased as a result of higher levels of production and a 
higher depletion rate, as well as from an increase in lease operating 
expenses. The adverse effect on revenues resulting from the decline in 
average realized gas prices was partially offset by an increase of 13% 
in production volumes. 

The average realized gas price for 2002 was 105% of the average 
unhedged natural gas price, resulting in revenues that were approxi- 
mately $1 6 million higher than revenues that would have been achieved 
if derivative financial instruments had not been in place during 2002. 
Houston Exploration hedged approximately 64% of its 2002 production, 
principally through the use of costless collars. 

The depletion rate was $1.68 per Mcf for the year ended 
December 31, 2002, compared to $1.49 per Mcf for the same period 
in 2001, reflecting higher find~ng and development costs together with 
the addition of fewer new reserves. 

In 2001, our gas exploration and production subsidiaries recorded 
a non-cash impairment charge of $42.0 million to recognize the effect 

le financial hedging instruments are employed by Houston 
provide more predictable cash flow, as well as to reduce 
fluctuations in natural gas prices. The average realized 
e year ended 2003 was 87% of the average unhedged 



grices on their valuation of proved gas reserves. Our 
e, which includes our joint venture ownership interest 
est, was $26.2 million after-tax. (See Note 1 to the 
~ncial Statements "Summary of Significant Accounting 
for more information on this charge.) 
, prices continue to be volatile and the risk that we may 
ecord an impairment charge on our full cost pool again 
creases when natural gas prices are depressed or if we 
t downward revisions in our estimated proved reserves. 
! below indicates the net proved reserves of our gas 
~d production subsidiaries for the periods indicated. 

unit sales prices, as well as lower quantities of sales ui . - 
liquids in 2002, as a result of generally lower oil prices. 

KeySpan has announced an initiative to upgrade the storage 
and receiving terminal and enhance the vaporization capacity a t  the 
KeySpan LNG facility located in Providence, Rhode Island. Pending 
approvals, the facility could be ready to accept marine deliveries by 
2005. We anticipate making an investment of approximately 
$50 million to upgrade the facility. 

We do not consider certain businesses contained in the Energy 
Investments segment to be part of our core asset group. We have statec 
in the past that we may sell or otherwise dispose of all or a portion 
of our non-core assets. As previously indicated, in 2003 we monetized 

:ember 31, 2003 2002 200 1 39.09% of our interest in KeySpan Canada, a company wlth natural 
BCFe % ---- BCFe YO ~- BCFe % 

oration 755 99.1% 650 96.7% 608 94.0% 
gas processing plants and gathering facilities in Western Canada. These 

7 0.9% 22 3.3% 39 6.0% assets include 14 processing plants and associated gathering systems 
-~ 

762 100.0% 672 100.0% 647 100.0% that can process approximately 1.5 BCFe of natural gas daily and pro- 
vide associated natural gas liquids fractionation. We sold a portion 

ent also consists of KeySpan Canada; our 20% interest in 
;as Transmission System LP ("Iroquois"); our wholly owned 
barrel liquefied natural gas ("LNG") storage and receiving 

jcated in Rhode Island ("KeySpan LNG"); and our 50% interest 
ier Transmission Limited, and until December 2003, our 24.5% 
in Phoenix Natural Gas Limited, both located in Northern 

.elected financial data for our other energy-related investments 
forth in the following table for the periods ~ndicated. 

---- ~ 

lded December 31, 2003 2002 
- 

2001 

ues $113,124 $90,778 $98,287 
aperation and 
Maintenance expense 68,568 57,161 71,411 
Other operating expenses 22,317 17,622 20,883 
Equity earnings 19,106 13,992 13,129 
Gain on sale of property - - - 2,348 
Kg lncorne $ 41,345 $32,335 $19,12y 

ating income above reflects 100% of KeySpan Canada's results. 

Increase in operating income in 2003 compared to last year reflects, 
jrt, higher operating income associated with our Canadian invest- 
ts, primarily KeySpan Canada, as well as higher earnings from our 
hern Ireland investments. KeySpan Canada experienced higher unit 
i, as well as higher quantities of sales of natural gas liquids in 2003, 
result of increasing oil prices. The pricing of natural gas liquids is 

ctly related to oil prices. The Northern Ireland investments realized 
ler gas sales quantities, as well as favorable exchange rates during 
3 .  Operating income for 2003 also reflects our investment in 
Span LNG storage facility located in Rhode Island, which we 
uired in December 2002. 

The increase in operating income in 2002 compared to 2001 
ects lower comparative losses associated with certain technology- 
lted investments. Further, hiqher operatina income from our Northern 

of our interest in KeySpan Canada through tile establishment of an 
open-ended income fund trust (the "Fund") organized under the laws 
of Alberta, Canada. The Fund acquired the 39.09% ownership interest 
of KeySpan Canada through an indirect subsidiary, and then issued 17 
million trust units to the public through an initial public offering. Each 
trust unit represents a beneficial interest in the Fund and is registered 
on the Toronto Stock Exchange (KEY.UN). Additionally, we sold our 
20% interest in Taylor NGL LP thai owns and operates two extraction 
plants in Canada to AltaGas Services, lnc. We received cash proceeds 
of $1 19.4 million associated with these transactions and recorded a 
pre-tax loss of $30.3 million ($34.1 million after-tax). In February 200a 
KeySpan entered into an agreement to sell an additional 36% of its 
interest in KeySpan Canada. (See Note 15 to the Consolidated Financ 
Statements "Subsequent Events. ")  

Further, in the fourth quarter of 2003, we completed the sale ( 

our 24.5% interest in Phoenix Natural Gas Limited. We received car 
proceeds of $96 million and recorded a pre-tax gain of $24.7 millic 
$16.0 million after-tax, or $0.10 per share. 

Based on current market conditions we cannot predict when 
any other sales or dispositions of our non-core assets may take pl 
or the effect that any such sale or disposition may have on our fi 
position, results of operations or cash flows. 

ALLOCATED COSTS 
As previously mentioned, we are subject to the jurisdiction of t 
under PUHCA. As part of the regulatory provisions of PUHCA, 
regulates various transactions among affiliates within a ho ld i~  
system. In accordance with the regulations of PUHCA and t h ~  
State Public Service Commission requirements, we have non- 
service companies that provide: (i) traditional corporate and 
tive services; (ii) gas and electric transmission and distributic 
planning, marketing, and gas supply planning and procure! 
(iii) engineering and surveying services to subsidiaries. Revi 



methodologies, approved by the SEC, have been in use since 2001, 
to allocate certain service company costs to affiliates. 

The variation in operating income reflected in "eliminations and 
other" for KeySpan's non-operating subsidiaries between 2003 and 
2002 primarily reflects an adjustment recorded in 2003 for environmen- 
tal reserves associated with non-utility environmental sites based 
on a recently concluded site investigation study. (See Note 7 to  the 
Consolidated Financial Statements "Contractual Obligations, Financial 
Guarantees and Contingencies - Environmental Matters" for additional 
information on environmental issues.) In 2001, these non-operating 
subsidiaries realized operating income of $31.4 million, primarily related 
to the $22.0 million benefit associated with the favorable appellate 
court decision regarding the RlCO class action settlement, previously 
mentioned. 

LIQUIDITY 
Cash flow from operations for the year ended December 31, 2003 
increased $453.2 million, or 62%, compared to the same period last 
year. During 2003, KeySpan performed an analysis of costs capitalized 
for self-constructed property and inventory for income tax purposes. 
KeySpan filed a change of accounting method for income tax purposes 
resulting in a cumulative deduction for costs previously capitalized. As 
a result of this tax method change, along with accelerated deductions 
resulting from bonus depreciation, Keyspan received in October 2003, 
a $192.3 million refund from the Internal Revenue Service associated 
with the refund of prior year taxes, as well as an additional $85 million 
for tax payments made in 2002. On a comparative basis, tax refunds 
received in 2003 coupled with tax payments made in 2002, resulted 
in a cash flow benefit in 2003, compared to  2002, of approximately 
$310 million. 

Comparative operating cash flow also reflects the collection of 
gas accounts receivable associated with higher winter gas heating 
sales. As a result of load additions, colder than normal winter weather 
during the first quarter, higher natural gas prices, and higher accounts 
receivable at the end of 2002, cash receipts from gas heating customers 
were higher in 2003 than in 2002. Further, the higher natural gas prices 
resulted in an increase in operating cash flow associated with the opera- 
tions of Houston Exploration. These benefits to cash flow were partially 
offset by significantly higher cash expenditures to re-fill natural gas 
storage levels as a result of the higher natural gas prices. 

Cash flow from operations decreased by $158.7 million; or 18%, 
in 2002 compared to 2001. Operating cash flow from gas exploration 
and production activities was adversely impacted by significantly lower 
realized gas prices in 2002. Further, cash flow from operations in 2002 
reflects the funding of the pension obligations related to our New 
England subsidiaries of $80 million. These adverse effects on cash flow 
were partially offset by the termination of two interest rate swap 
agreements that resulted in a favorable operating cash flow benefit 
of approximately $23.4 million, as well as lower income tax payments. 
State and federal tax payments were lower in 2002, compared to 
2001, as KeySpan was in a refund position with regard to such taxes. 
(See Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, "Hedging, 

Derivative Financial Instruments, and Fair Values" for an explanation 
of the interest rate hedges) 

At December 31, 2003, we had cash and temporary cash invest- 
ments of $205.8 million. During 2003, we repaid $433.8 million of 
commercial paper and, at December 31, 2003, $481.9 million of 
commercial paper was outstanding at a weighted-average annualized 
interest rate of 1.2%. We had the ability to  borrow up to  an additional 
$818.1 million at December 31, 2003, under the terms of our credit 
facility. 

In 2003, KeySpan renewed its $1.3 billion revolving credit facility, 
which was syndicated among sixteen banks. The facility is used to sup- 
port KeySpan's commercial paper program, and consists of two separate 
credit facilities with different maturities but substantially similar terms 
and conditions: a $450 million facility that extends for 364 days, and 
a $850 million facility that is committed for three years. The fees for 
the facilities are subject to a ratings-based grid, with an annual fee that 
ranges from eight to twenty five basis points on the 364-day facility 
and ten to twenty basis points on the three-year facility. Both credit 
agreements allow for KeySpan to borrow using several different types 
of loans; specifically, Eurodollar loans, ABR loans, or competitively bid 
loans. Eurodollar loans are based on the Eurodollar rate plus a margin. 
ABR loans are based on the highest of the Prime Rate, the base CD rate 
plus 1 %, or the ~ederal Funds Effective Rate plus 0.5%, plus a margin. 
Competitive bid loans are based on bid results requested by KeySpan 
from the lenders. The margins on both facilities are ratings based and 
range from zero basis points to 11 2.5 basis points. The margins are 
increased if outstanding loans are in excess of  33% of the total facility. 
In addition, the 364-day facility has a one-year term out option, which 
would cost an additional 0.25% if utilized. We do not anticipate 
borrowing against this facility; however, if the credit rating on our 
commercial paper program were to be downgraded, it may be necessary 
to do so. 

The credit facility contains certain affirmative and negative operat- 
ing covenants, including restrictions on KeySpan's ability to  mortgage, 
pledge, encumber or otherwise subject its property to  any lien, as well 
as certain financial covenants that require us to, among other things, 
maintain a consolidated indebtedness to  consolidated capitalization ratio 
of no more than 64%. Violation of this covenant could result in the 
termination of the credit facility and the required repayment of amounts 
borrowed thereunder, as well as possible cross defaults under other 
debt agreements. 

Under the terms of the credit facility, KeySpan's debt-to-total 
capitalization ratio reflects 80% equity treatment for the MEDS Equity 
Units issued in 2002. At December 31, 2003, consolidated indebted- 
ness, as calculated under the terms of the credit facility was 58.2% of 
consolidated capitalization. The leasing arrangement associated with the 
Ravenswood facility ("Master Lease") has always been treated as debt 
for the calculation of debt-to-total capitalization under KeySpan's credit 
facility. Beginning on December 31, 2003, KeySpan was required to 



consolidate the Master Lease Agreement as required by FIN 46 and 
as a result the Master Lease Agreement is reflected as debt on the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet. See the discussion under "Off-Balance 
Sheet Arrangements" for an explanation of the Master Lease 
Agreement. 

The credit facility also requires that net cash proceeds from the sale 
of significant subsidiaries be applied to reduce consolidated indebted- 
ness. Further, an acceleration of indebtedness of KeySpan or one of its 
subsidiaries for borrowed money in excess of $25 million in the aggre- 
gate, if not annulled within 30 days after written notice, would create 
an event of default under the Indenture dated November 1,2000, 
between KeySpan Corporation and the JPMorganChase Bank as Trustee. 
At December 31, 2003, KeySpan was in compliance with all covenants. 

Houston Exploration has a revolving credit facility with a commer- 
cial banking syndicate that provides Houston Exploration with a 
commitment of $300 million, which can be increased at its option to 
a maximum of $350 million with prior approval from the banking 
syndicate. The credit facility is subject to borrowing base limitations, 
currently set at $300 million and is re-determined semi-annually. Up to 
$25 million of the borrowing base is available for the issuance of letters 
of credit. The credit facility matures on July 15, 2005, is unsecured 
and, with the exception of trade payables, ranks senior to all existing 
debt of Houston Exploration. 

Under the Houston Exploration credit facility, interest on base rate 
loans is payable at a fluctuating rate, or base rate, equal to the sum of 
(a) the greater of the federal funds rate plus 0.50% or the bank's prime 
rate plus (b) a variable margin between 0% and 0.50%, depending on 
the amount of borrowings outstanding under the credit facility. Interest 
on fixed rate loans is payable at a fixed rate equal to  the sum of (a) a 
quoted reserve adjusted LlBOR rate, plus (b) a variable margin between 
1.25% and 2.00%, depending on the amount of borrowings outstand- 
ing under the credit facility. 

Financial covenants require Houston Exploration to, among other 
things, (i) maintain an interest coverage ratio of at least 3.00 to 1 .O0 
of earnings before interest, taxes and depreciation ("EBITDA") to  cash 
interest; (ii) maintain a total debt to  EBITDA ratio of not more than 
3.50 to 1.00; and (iii) generally prohibits the hedging of more than 
70% of natural gas and oil production during any 12-month period. 
At December 31, 2003, Houston Exploration was in compliance with 
all financial covenants. 

During 2003, Houston Exploration borrowed $239 million under 
its credit facility and repaid $264 million. At December 31, 2003, 
Houston Exploration had $1 27 million of borrowings outstanding under 
its credit facility at an average rate of 3.42%. In addition, $0.4 million 
was committed under outstanding letters of credit obligations and 
$172.6 million of borrowing capacity was available. 

In 2003, KeySpan Canada replaced its two outstanding credit 
facilities with one new facility with three tranches that combined 
allowed KeySpan Canada to borrow up to  approximately $1 25 million. 
At the time of the partial sale of ~ e ~ ~ ~ a n  Canada, net proceeds from 

the sale of $1 19.4 million plus an additional $45.7 million drawn under 
the new credit facilities were used to  pay down existing outstanding 

debt of $160.4 million. During the third quarter of 2003, KeySpan 
Canada issued Cdn$125 million, or approximately US$93 million, 
in long-term secured notes in a private placement. The proceeds of the 
offering were used to  pay-down, in its entirety, outstanding borrowings 
under the credit facility. Further, one tranch of the credit facility was 
discontinued. (See "Capital Expenditures and Financing - Financing" 
below for further information regarding the long-term debt issuance.) 
At December 31, 2003, KeySpan Canada's credit facility had the follow- 
ing two tranches with the following maturities: (i) $37.5 million matures 
in 364 days: and (ii) $37.5 million matures in two years. During 2003, 
KeySpan Canada borrowed $71.5 million from its prior credit facilities 
and repaid $240.3 million. During the fourth quarter of 2003, KeySpan 
Canada borrowed $18.1 million under the new facility and at December 
31, 2003, $56.9 million was available for future borrowing. 

In 2003, the Boston Gas Company redeemed all 562,700 shares of 
its outstanding Variable Term Cumulative Preferred Stock, 6.42% Series 
A at its par value of $25 per share. The total payment was $14.3 million 
that included $0.2 million of accumulated dividends. This preferred 
stock series had been reflected as minority interest on Keyspan's 
Consolidated Balance Sheet. 

On January 17, 2003, KeySpan sold 13.9 million shares of common 
stock on the open market and realized net proceeds of approximately 
$473 million. All shares were offered by KeySpan pursuant to the 
effective shelf registration statement filed with the SEC. Net proceeds 
from the equity sale were used to  call $447 million of outstanding 
promissory notes to  LlPA as is further explained in "Capital Expenditures 
and Financing" below. In addition, as previously noted, we used the net 
proceeds of approximately $79 million received in connection with the 
partial monetization of Houston Exploration to repay short-term debt. 

A substantial portion of consolidated revenues are derived from 
the operations of businesses within the Electric Services segment, that 
are largely dependent upon two large customers - LlPA and the NYISO. 
Accordingly, our cash flows are dependent upon the timely payment 
of amounts owed to  us by these customers. 

We satisfy our seasonal working capital requirements primarily 
through internally generated funds and the issuance of commercial 
paper. We believe that these sources of funds are sufficient to meet 
our seasonal working capital needs. 

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND FINANCING 

Construction Expenditures 
The table below sets forth our construction expenditures by operating 
segment for the periods indicated: 

(In Thor~~andr of Dollarr) 
Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 

Gas Distribution $ 419,549 $ 412,433 
Electric Services 256,498 348,147 
Energy Investments 314,097 272,720 
Energy Services and other 21,572 27,722 



.- ,L ,a~ru  to the Gas Distribution segment are 
.,,,,all~y Tor the renewal and replacement of mains and services and for 
le expansion of the gas distribution system. Construction expenditures 
)r the Electric Services segment reflect costs to: (i) maintain our gener- 
ting facilities; (ii) expand the Ravenswood facility; and (iii) construct 
?W Long Island generating facilities as prev~ously noted. The decrease 
Electric Services construction expenditures in 2003, compared to 

st year reflects the fact that construction of the Glenwood and 
~ r t  Jefferson peaking facilities was substantially completed by June 30, 
102. Construction expenditures related to the Energy investments 
hgment primarily reflect costs associated with gas exploration and 
.oduction activities. These costs are related to the exploration 
~d development of properties primarily in Southern Louisiana and 
the Gulf of Mexico. Expenditures also include development costs 
sociated with the joint venture with Houston Exploration, as well 
costs related to KeySpan Canada's gas processing faciiities. 

Construction expenditures for 2004 are estimated to be approxi- 
ately the same as 2003 at $1 billion. The amount of future construc- 
In expenditures is reviewed on an ongoing basis and can be affected 
, timing, scope and changes in investment opportunities. 

nancing . 

November 2003, KeySpan closed on a financing transaction pursuant 
which $128 million tax-exempt bonds with a 5.25% coupon 
3turing in June 2027 were issued on its behalf. Fifty-three million 
illars of these industrial Development Revenue Bonds were issued 
-ough the Nassau County Industrial Development Authority for 
2 construction of the Glenwood electric-generat~on peaking plant and 
? balance of $75 million was issued by the Suffolk County Industrial 
~elopment Authority for the Port Jefferson electric-generation 
king plant. Proceeds from the transaction were used to pay down 
mercial paper used for the construction, installation and equipping 
e two facilities. 
'n 2003, KeySpan Canada, issued CdnB125 million, or approxi- 
1 US993 million, long-term secured notes in a private placement to 
)rs in Canada and the United States. The notes were issued in the 
19 three series: (i) CdnB2O million 5.42% senior secured notes 
18; (ii) Cdn852.5 million 5.79% senior secured notes due 2010; 
Cdn852.5 million 6.16% senior secured notes due 2013. 
eeds of the offering were used to repay KeySpan Canada's 
ility. 
Idition, Houston Exploration closed on a private placement 
' 7 5  million 7.0%, senior subordinated notes due 2013. 
~ments began on December 15, 2003, and will be paid 
Ily thereafter. The notes will mature on June 15, 2013. 
)loration has the right to redeem the notes as of June 15, 
.ice equal to the issue price plus a specified redemption 
ti1 June 15, 2006, Houston Exploration may also redeem 

the notes at a redemption price of 107% with proceeds 
1 offering. Houston Exploration incurred approximately 
debt issuance costs on this private placement. Houston 

Exploration used a portion of the net proceeds from the iss~ 
redeem all of its outstanding $100 million principal amount 
senior subordinated notes due 2008 at a price of 104.3 13% 
plus interest accrued to the redemption date. Debt redemptic 
totaled approximately $5.9 mlllion. The remaining net proceec 
the offering were used to reduce debt amounts associated wit 
Exploration's bank revolving credit facility. 

We also issued $300 million of medium-term and long-ter 
debt in 2003. The debt was issued in the following two series: (, 
million 4.65% Notes due 2013; and (ii) $150 million 5.875% No 
2033. The proceeds of this issuance were used to pay down outs 
commercial paper. 

In connection with the KeySpanILlLCO business combination, 
KeySpan and certain of its subsidiaries issued promissory notes to L 
to support certain debt obligations assumed by LIPA. At December 
2002, the remaining principal amount of promissory notes issued to 
was approximately $600 million. Under these promissory notes, Key! 
is required to obtain letters of credit to secure its payment obligation 
if its long-term debt is not rated at least in the "A"  range by at least 
two nationally recognized statistical rating agencies. In an effort to 
mitigate the dilutive effect of the equity issuance previously mentionec 
in March 2003, we called approximately $447 million aggregate 
principal amount of such promissory notes at the applicable redemptior 
prices plus accrued and unpaid interest through the dates of redemp- 
tion. Interest savings associated with this redemption were $1 5.6 million 
after-tax, or $0.10 per share, in 2003. 

In the fourth quarter of 2003, KeySpan received authorization 
from the SEC, under PUHCA, to issue up to an additional $3 billion 
of securities through December 31, 2006. This authorization provides 
KeySpan with the necessary flexibility to finance our future capital 
requirements over the next three years. See the discussion under the 
caption "Regulation and Rate Matters - Securities and Exchange 
Commission Regulation" for a further discussion of this approval. 

We anticipate replacing outstanding commercial paper related to 
the construction of a new 250 MW combined cycle generating facility 
at the Ravenswood facility site with the proceeds from a proposed 
salelleaseback transaction anticipated to be completed in the second 
quarter of 2004. (See Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
"Subsequent Events" for further details on this proposed transaction). 
We will continue to evaluate our capital structure and financing strategy 
for 2004 and beyond. We believe that our current sources of funding 
(i.e., internally generated funds, the issuance of additional securities 
as noted above, and the availability of commercial paper) are sufficient 
to meet our anticipated capital needs for the foreseeable future. 

The following table represents the ratings of our long-term debt at 
December 31, 2003. Currently, Standard & Poor's and Moody's Investor 
Services ratings on Keyspan's and its subsidiaries' long-term debt are on 
negative outlook. 



Moody's Investor Standard Fitch 
Services & Poor's Ratings 

KeySpan Corporation A3 A A- 
KEDNY N/A A t  A t  
KEDLl A2 A t  A- 
Boston Gas A2 A NIA 
Colonial Gas A2 A t  NIA 
Electric Generation A3 A NIA 

Variable Interest Entity 
We have an arrangement wi th a variable interest entity through which 
we lease a portion of the Ravenswood facility. We acquired the 
Ravenswood facility, in part, through the variable interest entity from 
Consolidated Edison on June 18, 1999 for approximately 8597 million. 
In order to  reduce the initial cash requirements, we entered into a lease 
agreement (the "Master Lease") wi th a variable interest unaffiliated 
financing entity that acquired a portion of  the facility, three steam 
generating units, directly from Consolidated Edison and leased it to 
a KeySpan subsidiary. The variable interest unaffiliated financing entity 
acquired the property for $425 million, financed with debt of $412.3 
million (97% of capitalization) and equity of  $12.7 million (3% of 
capitalization). Monthly lease payments generally equal the monthly 
interest expense on the debt securities. 

In December 2003, KeySpan implemented FIN 46 that required us 
to  consolidate this variable interest entity and classify the Master Lease 
as $412.3 million long-term debt on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. 
Further, we recorded an asset on the Consolidated Balance Sheet for 
an amount substantially equal to  the estimated fair market value of 
the leased assets at inception of the lease, less depreciation since that 
time. As previously mentioned, under the terms of our credit facility the 
Master Lease has been considered debt in the ratio of debt-to-total capi. 
talization since the inception of the lease and therefore, implementation 
of FIN 46 had no impact on our credit facility. The Interpretation also 
requires us to  continue to  depreciate the leased assets over their 
remaining economic lives. (See Note 7 to  the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, "Contractual Obligations, Financial Guarantees and 
Contingencies" for additional information regarding the leasing 
arrangement associated with the Master Lease Agreement and FIN 46 
implementation issues.) 

Guarantees 
KeySpan had a number of  financial guarantees for its subsidiaries at 
December 31, 2003. KeySpan has fully and unconditionally guaranteed: 
(i) $525 million o f  medium-term notes issued by KEDLI; (ii) the obliga- 
tions of  KeySpan Ravenswood LLC, the lessee under the $425 million 
Master Lease Agreement associated with the Ravenswood facility; and 
(iii) the payment obligations of our subsidiaries related to  $128 million 
of tax-exempt bonds issued through the Nassau County and Suffolk 
County Industrial Development Authority for the construction of the 
Glenwood and Port Jefferson electric-generation peaking facilities. 

The medium-term notes, the Master Lease Agreement and the tax- 
exempt bonds are reflected on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Further, 
KeySpan has guaranteed: (i) up to  $168 million of surety bonds associat- 
ed with certain construction projects currently being performed by 
subsidiaries within the Energy Services segment; (ii) certain supply 
contracts, margin accounts and purchase orders for certain subsidiaries 
in an aggregate amount of  $43 million; and (iii) 867 million of subsidiary 
letters of credit. The guarantee of the KEDLI medium-term notes expires 
in 2010, while the Master Lease Agreement can be extended to 2009. 
The guarantee of the payment obligations of our subsidiaries related to 
the tax-exempt financing extends to 2027. The other guarantees have 
terms that do not extend beyond 2005 and are not recorded on the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet. At this time, we have no reason to  believe 
that our subsidiaries will default on their current obligations. However, 
we cannot predict when or if any defaults may take place or the impact 
such defaults may have on our consolidated results of operations, 
financial condition or cash flows. (See Note 7 to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements, "Contractual Obligations, Financial Guarantees 
and Contingencies" for additional information regarding KeySpan's 
guarantees.) 

In addition, KeySpan intends to  guarantee approximately $360 
million in connection with a proposed salelleaseback transaction for the 
financing of a new 250 M W  electric generating facility located on the 
Ravenswood site. (See Note 15 to  the Consolidated Financial Statements 
"Subsequent Events" for further details regarding. this transaction.) 

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS 
KeySpan has certain contractual obligations related to  its outstanding 
long-term debt, outstanding credit facility borrowings, outstanding 
commercial paper borrowings, operating and capital leases, and demand 
charges associated with certain commodity purchases. KeySpan's 
outstanding short-term and long-term debt issuances are explained 
in more detail In Note 6 t o  the Consolidated Financial Statements 
"Long-Term Debt." KeySpan's operating and capital leases, as well as its 
demand charges are more fully detailed in Note 7 t o  the Consolidated 
Financial Statements "Contractual Obligations, Financial Guarantees 
and Contingencies." The table below reflects maturity schedules for 
KeySpan's contractual obligations at December 3 1, 2003: 

( in  Thoinandr o/Do/!;?ri) 

Contractual Obligations Total 1 - 3 Years 4 - 5 Years After 5 Years 

Long-term Debt $ 5,625,706 $1,814,999 $161,094 $3,649,613 
Capital Leases 12,981 3,237 2,192 7,552 
Operating Leases 41 7,124 179,316 115,597 122,211 
Master Lease 169,532 92,472 61,648 15,412 
Interest Payments 3,387,891 910,937 458,547 2,018,407 
Demand Charges 452,045 452,045 - - 
Total Contractual 

Obligations 510,065,279 53,453,006 $799,078 $5,813,195 -- 
Commercial Paper $ 481,900 Revolving 



DISCUSSION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
AND ASSUMPTIONS 
In preparing our financial statements, the application of certain account- 
ing policies requires difficult, subjective andlor complex judgments. The 
circumstances that make these judgments difficult, subjective andlor 
complex have to  do with the need to  make estimates about the impact 
of matters that are inherently uncertain. Actual effects on our financial 
position and results of operations may vary significantly from expected 
results if the judgments and assumptions underlying the estimates 
prove to be inaccurate. The critical accounting policies requiring such 
subjectivity are discussed below. 

Percen tage-of-Complet ion 
Percentage-of-completion accounting is a method of accounting for 
long-term construction type contracts in accordance with Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles and, accordingly, the method used 
for engineering and mechanical contracting revenue recognition by the 
Energy Services segment. Percentage-of-completion is measured princi- 
pally by comparing the percentage of costs incurred to date for each 
contract to  the estimated total costs for each contract at completion. 
Provisions for estimated losses on uncompleted contracts are made in 
the period in which such losses are known. Application of percentage- 
of-completion accounting, results in the recognition of costs and esti- 
mated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts (recorded 
within the Consolidated Balance Sheet) which arise when revenues have 
been recognized but the amounts cannot be billed under the terms 
of the contracts. Such amounts are recoverable from customers based 
on various measures of performance, including achievement of certain 
milestones, completion of specified units or completion of the contract. 
Due to uncertainties inherent within estimates employed to apply 
percentage-of-completion accounting, i t is possible that estimates will 
be revised as project work progresses. Changes in estimates resulting 
in additional future costs to  complete projects can result in reduced 
margins or loss contracts. Unapproved change orders and claims also 
involve the use of estimates, and it is reasonably possible that revisions 
to the estimated recoverable amounts of  recorded change orders and 
claims may be made in the near-term. Application of  percentage-of- 
completion accounting requires that the impact of those revised esti- 
mates be reported in the consolidated financial statements prospectively. 

Valuat ion o f  Goodwi l l  
KeySpan records goodwill on purchase transactions, representing the 
excess of acquisition cost over the fair value of  net assets acquired. 
In testing for goodwill impairment under Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards ("SFAS") 142 "Goodwill and Other Intangible 
Assets", significant reliance is placed upon a number of estimates 
regarding future performance that require broad assumptions and 
significant judgment by management. A change in the fair value of our 
investments could cause a significant change in the carrying value of 
goodwill. The assumptions used to measure the fair value of our invest- 
ments are the same as those used by us to  prepare yearly operating 
segment and consolidated earnings and cash flow forecasts. In addition, 
these assumptions are used to  set yearly budgetary guidelines. 

KeySpan currently has $1.8 billion of recorded goodwill, the major- 
ity of which is recorded in the Gas Distribution and Energy Investments 
segment, with approximately $171 million recorded in the Energy 
Services segment. As permitted under SFAS 142, we can rely on our 
previous valuations for the annual impairment testing provided that the 
following criteria for each reporting unit are met: (a) the assets and lia- 
bilities that make up the reporting unit have not changed significantly 
since the most recent fair value determination; and (b) the most recent 
fair value determination resulted in an amount that exceeded the carry- 
ing amount of the reporting unit by a substantial margin and there is 
no economic indication that the carrying value of goodwill may be 
impaired. In the case of the Gas Distribution and the Energy Investments 
segments, the above criteria have been met and therefore, there was 
no impairment to goodwill in 2003. In regard to the Energy Services 
segment, adverse economic conditions experienced in the construction 
industry in the Northeastern United States during 2003 and its related 
impact on the operating results of this segment, prompted management 
to conduct an impairment test during the fourth quarter. 

KeySpan employed a combination of two methodologies in deter- 
mining the fair value for its investment in the Energy Services segment, 
a market valuation approach and an income valuation approach. A third 
party specialist was engaged to  assist with the valuation and evaluate 
the reasonableness of key assumptions employed. 

Since the companies included in the Energy Services segment are 
not publicly traded, the market valuation approach was used to  estimate 
their total enterprise value or aggregate potential market value. Under 
the market valuation approach, KeySpan compared relevant financial 
information relating to the companies included in the Energy Services 
segment to  the corresponding financial information for a peer group of 
companies in the specialty trade-contracting sector of the construction 
industry. The market valuation approach derived enterprise value to  
earnings before interest and taxes ("EVIEBIT") multiples and enterprise 
value to  earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization 
("EVIEBITDA") multiples. Though there are numerous multiples that can 
be used to  value an individual firm, these multiples were selected since 
they offer the closest parallels to discounted cash flow valuation and are 
most appropriate for the Energy Services segment's market sector. 

In addition to the market valuation approach, we also used an 
income valuation approach or discounted cash flow ("DCF") valuation 
approach to  estimate the fair market value for the companies included 
in the Energy Services segment. Under the income valuation approach, 
the fair value of a firm is obtained by discounting the sum of (i) the 
expected future cash flows to a firm; and (ii) the terminal value of  
a firm. The discount factor used in the calculation is basically a firm's 
weighted-average cost of capital. KeySpan was required to  make 
certain significant assumptions in the income approach, specifically the 
weighted-average cost of capital, short and long-term growth rates and 
expected future cash flows. The cash flow model is based on relevant 



industry forecasts projecting improved market conditions over the next 
five years, continued increases in business activity that are likely to result 
in backlog growth, and short and long-term revenue and operating 
margin growth projections that management believes are reasonable 
given historical performance. 

As a result of our valuation, management has determined that the 
fair value of the assets adequately exceeds their carrying value and no 
impairment charge is necessary. Management will continue to review 
and focus on our overall strategy for this business unit and accordingly 
will continue to evaluate the related carrying value of the goodwill. 
While we believe that our assumptions are reasonable, actual results, 
however, may differ from our projections. 

Accounting for the Effects o f  Rate Regulation 
on Gas Distribution Operations 
The financial statements of the Gas Distribution segment reflect the 
ratemaking policies and orders of the New York Public Service 
Commission ("NYPSC"), the New Hampshire Public Utilities Commission 
("NHPUC"), and the Massachusetts Department of Telecommunications 
and Energy ("DTE"). 

Four of our six regulated gas utilities (KEDNY, KEDLI, Boston 
Gas Company and EnergyNorth Natural Gas, Inc.) are subject to the 
provisions of SFAS 71, "Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types 
of Regulation." This statement recognizes the actions of regulators, 
through the ratemaking process, to create future economic benefits 
and obligations affecting rate-regulated companies. 

In separate merger-related orders issued by the DTE, the base 
rates charged by Colonial Gas Company and Essex Gas Company have 
been frozen at their current levels for ten-year periods ending 2009 
and 2008, respectively. Due to the length of these base rate freezes, 
the Colonial and Essex Gas Companies had previously discontinued 
the application of SFAS 71. 

SFAS 71 allows for the deferral of expenses and income on the 
consolidated balance sheet as regulatory assets and liabilities when it 
is probable that those expenses and income will be allowed in the rate 
setting process in a period different from the period in which they 
would have been reflected in the consolidated statements of income of 
an unregulated company. These deferred regulatory assets and liabilities 
are then recognized in the consolidated statement of income in the 
period in which the amounts are reflected in rates. 

Rate regulation is undergoing significant change as regulators and 
customers seek lower prices for utility service and greater competition 
among energy service providers. In the event that regulation significantly 
changes the opportunity for us to  recover costs in the future, all or a 
portion of our regulated operations may no longer meet the criteria for 
the application of SFAS 71. In that event, a write-down of our existing 
regulatory assets and liabilities could result. If we were unable to  contin- 
ue to  apply the provisions of SFAS 71 for any of our rate regulated 
subsidiaries, we would apply the provisions of SFAS 101 "Regulated 
Enterprises - Accounting for the Discontinuation of Application of FASB 
Statement No. 71 ." We estimate that the write-off of our net regulatory 
assets at December 31, 2003 could result in a charge to net income of 

approximately 8300 million or 81.89 per share, which would be classi- 
fied as an extraordinary item. In management's opinion, our regulated 
subsidiaries that currently are subject to the provisions of SFAS 71 will 
continue to be subject to SFAS 71 for the foreseeable future. 

As is further discussed under the caption "Regulation and Rate 
Matters," in October 2003 the DTE rendered its decision on the Boston 
Gas Company's base rate case and Performance Based Rate Plan 
proposal submitted to the DTE in April 2003. The DTE approved a 827 
million increase in base revenues, as well as an allowed rate of return on 
equity of 10.2%. The DTE also approved a Performance Based Rate Plan 
for up to ten years. The rate plans previously in effect for KEDNY and 
KEDLI have expired. The continued application of SFAS 71 to record the 
activities of these subsidiaries is contingent upon the actions of regula- 
tors with regard to future rate plans. We are currently evaluating various 
options that may be available to us including, but not limited to, 
proposing new plans for KEDNY and KEDLI. The ultimate resolution of 
any future rate plans could have a significant impact on the application 
of SFAS 71 to these entities and, accordingly, on our financial position, 
results of operations and cash flows. However, management believes 
that currently available facts support the continued application of 
SFAS 71 and that all regulatory assets and liabilities are recoverable 
or refundable through the regulatory environment. 

Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits 
As discussed in Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, 
"Postretirement Benefits," KeySpan participates in both non-contributory 
defined benefit pension plans, as well as other post-retirement benefit 
("OPEB") plans (collectively "postretirement plans"). Keyspan's reported 
costs of providing pension and OPEB benefits are dependent upon 
numerous factors resulting from actual plan experience and assumptions 
of future experience. Pension and OPEB costs (collectively "postretire- 
ment costs") are impacted by actual employee demographics, the level 
of contributionsmade to the plans, earnings on plan assets, and health 
care cost trends. Changes made to  the provisions of these plans may 
also impact current and future postretirement costs. Postretirement costs 
may also be significantly affected by changes in key actuarial assump- 
tions, including, anticipated rates of return on plan assets and the 
discount rates used in determining the postretirement costs and 
benefit obligations. Actual results that differ from our assumptions are 
accumulated and amortized over ten years. 

Certain gas distribution subsidiaries are subject to SFAS 71, and, 
as a result, changes in postretirement expenses are deferred for future 
recovery from or refund to gas sales customers. (However, KEDNY, 
although subject to SFAS 71, does not have a recovery mechanism in 
place for increases in postretirement costs.) Further, changes in postre- 
tirement expenses associated with subsidiaries that service the LIPA 
Agreements are also deferred for future recovery from or refund to LIPA. 

For 2003, the assumed long-term rate of return on our postretire- 
ment plans' assets was 8.5% (pre-tax), net of expenses. This is an 
appropriate long-term expected rate of return on assets based on 



KeySpan's investment strategy, asset allocation and the historical outper- 
formance of equity investments over long periods of time. The actual 
10 year compound annual rate of return for the KeySpan Plans is 
greater than 8.5%. 

KeySpan's master trust investment allocation policy target is 70% 
equity and 30% fixed income. At December 31, 2003, the actual 
investment allocatron was 67% equities, 33% fixed income and cash. 
In an effort to maximize plan performance, actual asset allocation will 
fluctuate from year to year depending on the then current economic 
environment. 

During 2003, KeySpan conducted an asset and liability study 
projecting asset returns and expected benefit payments over a 10-year 
period. Based on the results, KeySpan has developed a multiyear fund- 
ing strategy for its postretirement plans. KeySpan believes that rt is 
reasonable to assume assets can achieve or outperform the assumed 
long-term rate of return with the target allocation as a result of 
historical outperformance of equity investments over long-term periods. 

A 25 basis point increase or decrease in the assumed long-term 
rate of return on plan assets would have impacted 2003 expense by 
approximately 84 million, before deferrals. 

The year-end December 31, 2003 assumed discount rate used to 
determine postretirement obligations was 6.25%. Our discount rate 
assumption is based upon the current investment yield associated with 
rating agency indices that have high quality long-term corporate bonds. 
A 25 basis point increase or decrease in the assumed year-end discount 
rate would have had no impact on 2003 expense. However, a 25 basis 
point decrease in the assumed year-end discount rate would result in 
the recording of an additional minimum pension liability. A year-end 
discount rate of 6.00% would have required an additional $1 1 million 
debit to other comprehensive income ("OCI"), net of tax and deferrals. 

At January I ,  2003, the assumed discount rate used to determine 
postretirement obligations was 6.75%. A 25 basis point increase or 
decrease in the assumed discount rate at the beginning of the year 
would have impacted 2003 expense by approximately $14 million, 
before deferrals. 

Our health care cost trend assumptions are developed based on 
historical cost data, the near-term outlook and an assessment of likely 
long-term trends. The salary growth assumptions reflect our long-term 
outlook. 

Historically, we have funded our qualified pension plans in excess 
~f the amount required to satisfy minimum ERISA funding requirements. 
i t  December 31, 2003, we had a funding credit balance in excess of 
i e  ERISA minimum funding requirements and as a result KeySpan was 
ot required to make any contributions to its qualified pension plans in 
103. However, although we have presently exceeded ERISA funding 
quirements, our pension plans, on an actuarial basis, are currently 
derfunded. Therefore, during 2003 KeySpan contributed $137 million 
its postretirement plans. 

For 2004, KeySpan expects to contribute a total of 8147 million 
ts funded and unfunded post-retirement plans. Future funding 
~irements are heavily dependent on actual return on plan assets 
prevailing interest rates. 

Full Cost Accounting 
Our gas exploration and production subsidiaries use the full cost method 
to account for their natural gas and oil properties. Under full cost 
accounting, all costs incurred in the acquisition, exploration, and devel- 
opment of natural gas and oil reserves are capitalized into a "full cost 
pool." Capitalized costs include costs of all unproved properties, internal 
costs directly related to natural gas and oil activities, and capitalized 
interest. 

Under full cost accounting rules, total capitalized costs are limited 
to a ceiling equal to the present value of future net revenues, discount- 
ed at lo%, plus the lower of cost or fair value of unproved properties 
less income tax effects (the "ceiling limitation"). A quarterly ceiling test 
is performed to evaluate whether the net book value of the full cost 
pool exceeds the ceiling limitation If capitalized costs (net of accumulat- 
ed depreciation, depletion and amortizat~on) less deferred taxes are 
greater than the discounted future net revenues or ceiling limitation, 
a write-down or impairment of the full cost pool is required. A write- 
down of the carrying value of the full cost pool is a non-cash charge 
that reduces earnings and impacts stockholders' equity in the period of 
occurrence and typically results in lower depreciation, depletion and 
amortization expense in future periods. Once incurred, a write-down 
is not reversible at a later date. 

The ceiling test is calculated using natural gas and oil prices in 
effect as of the balance sheet date, held constant over the life of the 
reserves. Our gas exploration and production subsidiaries use derivative 
financial instruments that qualify for hedge accounting under SFAS 133 
"Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities" to 
hedge against the volatility of natural gas prices. In accordance with 
current SEC guidelines, these derivatives are included In the estimated 
future cash flows in the ceiling test calculation. In calculating the ceiling 
test at December 31, 2003, our subs~diaries estimated that a full cost 
ceiling "cushion" existed, whereby the carrying value of the full cost 
pool was less that the ceiling limitation. No write-down is required when 
a cushion exists. Natural gas prices continue to be volatile and the risk 
that a write-down to the full cost pool will be required increases when 
natural gas prices are depressed or if there are significant downward 
revisions in estimated proved reserves. 

Natural gas and oil reserve quantities represent estimates only. 
Under full cost accounting, reserve estimates are used to determine 
the full cost ceiling limitation, as well as the depletion rate. Houston 
Exploration estimates its proved reserves and future net revenues using 
sales prices estimated to be in effect as of the date it makes the reserve 
estimates. Natural gas prices, which have fluctuated widely in recent 
years, affect estimated quantities of proved reserves and future net 
revenues. Any estimates of natural gas and oil reserves and their values 
are inherently uncertain, including many factors beyond our control. The 
accuracy of any reserve estimate is a function of the quality of available 
data and of engineering and geological interpretation and judgment. 
In addition, estimates of reserves may be revised based upon actual 
production, results of future development and exploration activities, 
prevailing natural gas and oil prices, operating costs and other factors, 



which revision may be material. Reserve estimates are highly dependent 
upon the accuracy of the underlying assumptions. Actual future produc- 
tion may be materially different from estimated reserve quantities and 
the differences could materially affect future amortization of natural 
gas and oil properties. 

Valuation of Derivative Instruments 
We employ derivative instruments to manage commodity and financial 
market risk. All of our derivative instruments, except for certain weather 
derivatives, are reported on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at fair value 
in accordance with SFAS 133; weather derivatives are accounted for 
in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") 99-2. None of 
KeySpan's derivative instruments qualify as "energy trading contracts" 
as defined by current accounting literature. 

For those derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges 
under SFAS 133, which are the majority of KeySpan's derivative 
instruments, changes in the market value are recorded in other compre- 
hensive income on the Consolidated Balance Sheet, (in line with 
effectiveness measurements) and are recorded through earnings at the 
time of settlement. Hedge effectiveness is dependent upon various 
factors such as the use of hedge contracts with market points that 
are different from the underlying transaction, and to the extent hedge 
contracts are deemed ineffective, that portion will impact earnings. 

Additionally, we use derivative financial instruments to reduce 
cash flow variability associated with the purchase price for a portion of 
future natural gas purchases for our regulated gas distribution activities; 
the accounting for such derivative instruments is subject t o  SFAS 71. 
Changes in the market value of these derivative instruments are 
recorded as regulatory assets and liabilities, as appropriate, on the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet. KeySpan's non-regulated subsidiaries 
employ a limited number of financial derivatives that do not qualify 
for hedge accounting treatment under SFAS 133, and, therefore, 
changes in the market value of these derivative instruments are 
recorded through earnings. 

When available, quoted market prices are used to record a deriva- 
tive contract's fair value. However market values for certain derivative 
contracts may not be readily available or determinable. If no active 
market exists for a commodity, a specific contract type, or for the entire 
term of a contract's duration, fair values are based on pricing models. 
Such models employ matrix pricing based on contracts with similar 
terms and risks, including pricing based on broker quotes and industry 
publications. KeySpan validates its internally developed fair values by 
using forecasted market information and mathematical extrapolation 
techniques. In addition, for hedges of forecasted transactions, KeySpan 
estimates the expected future cash flows of the forecasted transactions, 
as well as evaluates the probability of occurrence and timing of such 
transactions. Changes in market conditions or the occurrence of 
unforeseen events could affect the timing of recognition of changes 
in fair value of certain hedging derivatives. 

See Note 8 t o  the Consolidated Financial Statements "Hedging, 
Derivative Financial Instruments and Fair Values" and Item 7A, 
"Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk" for a 
further description of all our derivative instruments. 

DIVIDENDS 
We are currently paying a dividend at an annual rate of $1.78 per 
common share. Our dividend policy is reviewed annually by the Board of 
Directors. The amount and timing of all dividend payments is subject to 
the discretion of the Board of Directors and will depend upon business 
conditions, results of operations, financial conditions and other factors. 
Based on currently foreseeable market conditions, we intend to maintain 
the annual dividend at the $1.78 level. 

Pursuant t o  NYPSC orders, the ability of KEDNY and KEDLI to 
pay dividends to  KeySpan is conditioned upon maintenance of a utility 
capital structure with debt not exceeding 55% and 58%, respectively, 
of total utility capitalization. In addition, the level of dividends paid by 
both utilities may not be increased from current levels if a 40 basis point 
penalty is incurred under the customer service performance program. 
At the end of KEDNY's and KEDLl's most recent rate years (September 
30, 2003 and November 30, 2003, respectively), the ratio of debt to 
total utility capitalization was 41 % and 49%, respectively. Additionally, 
we have met the requisite customer service performance standards. Our 
corporate and financial activities and those of each of our subsidiaries 
(including their ability to pay dividends to us) are also subject t o  regula- 
tion by the SEC. (For additional information, see the discussion under 
the heading "Regulation and Rate Matters - Securities and Exchange 
Commission Regulation"). 

Gas Distr ibut ion 
By orders dated February 5, 1998 and April 14, 1998, the NYPSC 
approved the KeySpanlLlLCO business combination and established gas 
rates for both KEDNY and KEDLI. Pursuant t o  the orders, $1 billion of 
efficiency savings, excluding gas costs, attributable to operating syner- 
gies that are expected to be realized over the ten-year period following 
the combination, were allocated to  customers, net of transaction costs. 

Effective May 29, 1998, KEDNY's base rates t o  core customers 
were reduced by $23.9 million annually. In addition, KEDNY is subject to 
an earnings sharing provision pursuant to which it is required to credit 
core customers with 60% of any utility earnings up to 100 basis points 
above certain threshold return on equity levels over the term of the rate 
plan (other than any earnings associated with discrete incentives) and 
50% of any utility earnings in excess of 100 basis points above such 
threshold level. The threshold level for the rate year ended September 
30,2003 was 13.25%. KEDNY did not earn above its threshold return 
level in its rate year ended September 30,2003. On September 30, 
2002, KEDNY's rate agreement with the NYPSC expired. Under the 
terms of the agreement, the then current gas distribution rates and 
all other provisions, including the earnings sharing provision (at the 
13.25% threshold level), remain in effect until changed by the NYPSC. 
At this time, we are currently evaluating various options that may be 
available to us regarding KEDNY's rates, including but not limited to, 
proposing a new rate plan. 



The 1998 orders also required KEDLl to  reduce base rates to its 
customers by $12.2 million annually effective February 5, 1998 and by 
an additional $6.3 million annually effective May 29, 1998. KEDLl is 
subject to  an earnings sharing provision pursuant to  which it is required 
to  credit to firm customers 60% of any utility earnings in any rate year 
up to 100 basis points above a return on equity of 11.10% and 50% 
of any utility earnings in excess of a return on equity of 12.10%. 
KEDLI did not earn above its threshold return level in its rate year ended 
November 30, 2003. On November 30,2000, KEDLl's rate agreement 
with the NYPSC expired. Under the terms of the agreement, the gas 
distribution rates and all other provisions, including the earnings sharing 
provision, will remain in effect until changed by the NYPSC. At this time, 
we are currently evaluating various options that may be available to 
us regarding KEDLl's rate plan, including but not limited to, proposing 
a new rate plan. 

Boston Gas Company, Colonial Gas Company and Essex Gas 
Company operations are subject to Massachusetts's statutes applicable 
to  gas utilities. Rates for gas sales and transportation service, distribution 
safety practices, issuance of securities and affiliate transactions are 
regulated by the DTE. 

Regarding the Boston Gas Company, we filed a base rate case and 
Performance Ba'sed Rate Plan on April 16, 2003, to  be effective in the 
fourth quarter of  2003. On October 31,2003, the DTE rendered its 
decision on the Boston Gas Company's proposal and approved a $25.9 
million increase in base revenues with an allowed return on equity of 
10.2% assuming an equal balance of debt and equity. On lanuary 27, 
2004 the DTE issued orders on Boston Gas Company's Motions for 
Recalculation, Reconsideration and Clarification that granted an addi- 
tional $1 . I  million in base revenues, for a total of $27 million. The DTE 
also approved a true-up mechanism for pension and other postretire- 
ment benefit costs under which variations between actual pension and 
other postretirement benefit costs and amounts used to establish rates 
are deferred and collected from or refunded to customers in subsequent 
periods through an adjustment clause. This true-up mechanism allows 
for carrying charges on deferred assets and liabilities at Boston Gas 
Company's weighted-average cost of capital. 

The DTE also approved a Performance Based Rate Plan (the "Plan") 
for up to  ten years. The Plan allows for an annual revenue adjustment 
based on inflation, less a 0.41 percent productivity factor. Further, the 
plan contained a margin sharing mechanism, whereby 25% of earnings 
in excess of a 15% return on equity will be passed back to customers. 
Similarly, ratepayers would absorb 25% of any shortfall below a 7% 
return on equity. 

Prior to the change in base rates and the new Plan noted above, 
Boston Gas Company's gas rates for local distribution service were 
governed by a five-year Performance-Based Rate Plan approved by the 
DTE in 1996 (the "Plan"). Under this Plan, Boston Gas Company's rates 
for local distribution were recalculated annually to reflect inflation for 
the previous 12 months, and reduced by a productivity factor of 1 %. 
The productivity factor had been the subject of a remand proceeding 
at the DTE. With respect to  this appeal, on March 7, 2002, the 

Massachusetts Supreme Judicial Court ruled in favor of Boston Gas 
Company and reduced the productivity factor from 1 .O% to .5%. 

In connection with the Eastern Enterprises acquisition of Colonial 
Gas Company in 1999, the DTE approved a merger and rate plan that 
resulted in a ten year freeze of base rates to Colonial Gas Company's 
firm customers. The base rate freeze is subject only to certain exogenous 
factors, such as changes in tax laws, accounting changes, or regulatory, 
judicial, or legislative changes. The Office of the Attorney General 
appealed the DTE's order to the Supreme judicial Court, which appeal 
is still pending. Due to  the length of the base rate freeze, Colonial Gas 
Company discontinued its application of SFAS 71. Essex Gas Company 
is also under a ten-year base rate freeze and has also discontinued its 
application of SFAS 71. 

EnergyNorth Natural Gas, Inc.'s base rates continue as set by 
the NHPUC in 1993. 

Electric Rate Matters 
KeySpan sells to  LlPA all of the capacity and, to  the extent requested, 
energy conversion services from our existing Long Island based oil and 
gas-fired generating plants. Sales of capacity and energy conversion 
services are made under rates approved by the FERC in accordance with 
the Power Supply Agreement ("PSA") entered into between KeySpan 
and LlPA in 1998. The current FERC approved rates, which have been 
in effect since May 1998, expired on December 31, 2003. KeySpan filed 
with the FERC an updated cost of service for the Long Island based 
oil and gas-fired generating plants in October 2003. The rate filing 
included, among other things, an annual revenue increase of 2.1 % or 
approximately $6.4 million, a return on equity of 11 %, updated operat- 
ing and maintenance expense levels and recovery of certain other costs. 
FERC approved implementation of new rates starting lanuary 1, 2004, 
subject to refund. Settlement negotiations are currently ongoing. 

Securities a n d  Exchange Commission Regulation 
KeySpan and its subsidiaries are subject to the jurisdiction of the SEC 
under PUHCA. The rules and regulations under PUHCA generally limit 
the operations of a registered holding company to  a single integrated 
public utility system, plus additional energy-related businesses. In addi- 
tion, the principal regulatory provisions of PUHCA: (i) regulate certain 
transactions among affiliates within a holding company system including 
the payment of dividends by such subsidiaries to a holding company; (ii) 
govern the issuance, acquisition and disposition of  securities and assets 
by a holding company and its subsidiaries; (iii) limit the entry by 
registered holding companies and their subsidiaries into businesses other 
than electric andlor gas utility businesses; and (iv) require SEC approval 
for certain utility mergers and acquisitions. 



The SEC's order issued on December 18, 2003, provides us with, 
among other things, authorization to do the following through 
December 31, 2006 (the "Authorization Period"): (a) to issue and sell 
up to an additional amount of $3.0 billion of common stock, preferred 

stock, preferred and equity-linked securities, and long-term debt 
securities (the " Long-Term Financing Limit") in accordance with certain 
defined parameters; (b) in addition to the Long-Term Financing Limit, to 
issue and sell up to an aggregate amount of $1.3 billion of short-term 
debt (the "Short-Term Financing Limit"); (c) to  issue up to  13 million 
shares of common stock under dividend reinvestment and stock-based 
management incentive and employee benefit plans; (d) to  maintain 
existing and enter into additional hedging transactions with respect to 
outstanding indebtedness in order to manage and minimize interest rate 
costs; (e) to issue guarantees and other forms of credit support in an 
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $4.0 billion outstanding at 
any one time; (f) to refund, repurchase (through open market purchases, 
tender offers or private transactions), replace or refinance debt or equity 
securities outstanding during the Authorization Period through the 
issuance of similar or any other type of authorized securities; (g) to  pay 
dividends out of capital and unearned surplus as well as paid-in-capital 
with respect to certain subsidiaries, subject to certain limitations; (h) to 
engage in preliminary development activities and administrative and 
management activities in connection with anticipated investments in 
exempt wholesale generators, foreign utility companies and other ener- 
gy-related companies; (i) to organize andlor acquire the equity securities 
of entities that will serve the purpose of facilitating authorized financ- 
ings; (j) to  invest up to 83.0 billion in exempt wholesale generators and 
foreign utility companies; (k) to create and/or acquire the securities of 
entities organized for the purpose of facilitating investments in other 
non-utility subsidiaries; and (I) to  enter into certain types of affiliate 
transactions between certain non-utility subsidiaries involving cost 
structures above the typical "at-cost" limit. 

In addition, we have committed that during the Authorization 
Period, our common equity will be at least 30% of our consolidated 
capitalization and each of our utility subsidiaries' common equity will be 
at least 30% of such entity's capitalization. As of December 31, 2003 
our consolidated common equity was 38% of our consolidated capital- 
ization, including commercial paper, and each of our utility subsidiaries 
common equity was at least 35% of its respective capitalization. 

LlPA Agreements 
Keyspa?, through certain of its subsidiaries, provides services to LlPA 
under the following agreements: 

, Management Services Agreement ("MSA") 
KeySpan manages the day-to-day operations, maintenance and capital 
improvements of the transmission and distribution ("T&Dn) system. 

LlPA exercises control over the performance of the T&D system through 
specific standards for performance and incentives. In exchange for 
providing the services, we earn a $10 million annual management fee 
and are operating under a contract, which provides certain incentives 
and imposes certain penalties based upon performance. We have 
reached an agreement with LlPA to  extend the MSA for 31 months 
through 2008, as discussed under the heading "Generation Purchase 
Right Agreement" below. Annual service incentives or penalties exist 
under the MSA if certain targets are achieved or not achieved. In addi- 
tion, we can earn certain incentives for budget underruns associated 
with the day-to-day operations, maintenance and capital improvements 
of LIPA's T&D system. These incentives provide for us to  (i) retain 100% 
on the first $5 million in annual budget underruns, and iii) retain 50% 
of additional annual underruns up to 15% of the total cost budget, 
thereafter all savings accrue to LIPA. With respect to cost overruns, we 
will absorb the first $15 million of overruns, with a sharing of overruns 
above $15 million. There are certain limitations on the amount of cost 
sharing of overruns. To date, we have performed our obligations under 
the MSA within the agreed upon budget guidelines and we are commit- 
ted to providing on-going services to  LlPA within the established cost 
structure. However, no assurances can be given as to  future operating 
results under this agreement. 

Power Supply Agreement ("PSA") 
KeySpan sells to LlPA all of the capacity and, to  the extent requested, 
energy conversion services from our existing Long Island based oil and 
gas-fired generating plants. Sales of capacity and energy conversion 
services are made under rates approved by the FERC. As noted previous- 
ly, rates under the PSA have been reestablished for the contract year 
commencing January I, 2004. Rates charged to LlPA include a fixed 
and variable component. The variable component is billed to LlPA on a 
monthly per megawatt hour basis and is dependent on the number of 
megawatt hours dispatched. LlPA has no obligation to  purchase energy 
conversion services from us and is able to purchase energy or energy 
conversion services on a least-cost basis from all available sources 
consistent with existing interconnection limitations of the T&D system. 
The PSA provides incentives and penalties that can total $4 million 
annually for the maintenance of the output capability and the efficiency 
of the generating facilities. The PSA runs for a term of fifteen years 
through May 2013, with LlPA having the option to  renew the PSA for 
an additional fifteen year term. 

Energy Management Agreement ("EMA") 
The EMA provides for KeySpan to procure and manage fuel supplies on 
behalf of LlPA to fuel the generating facilities under contract to it and 
perform off-system capacity and energy purchases on a least-cost basis 
to meet LIP& needs. In exchange for these services we earn an annual 
fee of $1.5 million. In addition, we arrange for off-system sales on 
behalf of LlPA of excess output from the generating facilities and 
other power supplies either owned or under contract to LIPA. LlPA is 
entitled to two-thirds of the profit from any off-system energy sales. 
In addition, the EMA provides incentives and penalties that can total 



ion annually for performance related to fuel purchases and 
tem power purchases. The EMA is expected to be in effect 
jh 201 3 for the procurement of fuel supplies and through 2006 
i-system management services. 
Jnder these agreements, we are required to obtain a letter of 
in the aggregate amount of $60 million supporting our obliga- 

to provide the various services if our long-term debt is not rated 
2 "A" range by a nationally recognized rating agency. 

 erat ti on Purchase Right Agreement ("GPRA") 
er the GPRA, LlPA originally had the right for a one-year period 
inning on May 28, 2001, to acquire all of our Long Island based 
rerating assets formerly owned by LlLCO at fair market value at 
time of the exercise of such right. 

By agreement dated March 29, 2002, LlPA and KeySpan amended 
GPRA to  provide for a new six month option period ending on 

3y 28, 2005. The other terms of the option reflected in the GPRA 
mained unchanged. In return for providing LlPA an extension of the 
PRA, KeySpan has been provided with a corresponding extension 
i 31 months for the MSA to the end of 2008. 

The extension is the result of an initiative established by LlPA to 
vork with KeySpan and others to review Long Island's long-term energy 
~eeds. LlPA and KeySpan will jointly analyze new energy supply options 
ncluding re-powering existing plants, renewable energy technologies, 
distributed generation, conservation initiatives and retail competition. 
The extension allows both LlPA and KeySpan to explore alternatives to 
the GPRA including re-powering existing facilities, the sale of some or 
all of ~ e y ~ p a n ' s  plants to LIPA, or the sale of some or all of these plants 
to other investor-owned entities. 

KeySpan Glenwood and Port lefferson Energy Centers 
KeySpan Glenwood Energy Center LLC and KeySpan Port Jefferson 
Energy Center LLC have entered into 25 year Power Purchase 
Agreements (the "PPAs") with LIPA. Under the terms of the PPAs, these 
subsidiaries sell capacity, energy conversion services and ancillary services 
to LIPA. Both plants are designed to produce 79.9 megawatts. Under 
the PPAs, LlPA pays a monthly capacity fee, which guarantees full recov- 
ery of each plant's construction costs, as well as an appropriate rate of 
return on investment. The PPAs also obligate LlPA to pay for each plant's 
costs of operation and maintenance. These costs are billed on a monthly 
estimated basis and are subject to true-up for actual costs incurred. 

Ravenswood Facility 
We currently sell capacity, energy and ancillary services associated with 
the Ravenswood facility through a bidding process into the NYlSO 
energy markets on both a day-ahead and a real-time basis. We also 
have the ability to enter into bilateral transactions to sell all or a portion 
of the energy produced by the Ravenswood facility to load serving 
entities, i.e. entities that sell to end-users or to brokers and marketers. 

ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS 
KeySpan is subject to various federal, state and local laws and regulatory 
programs related to the environment. During 2003, we undertook an 
extensive review of all our current and former properties that are or 
may be subject to environmental cleanup activities. As a result of this 
study, we adjusted reserve balances for estimated manufactured gas 
plant ("MGP") related environmental cleanup activities, as well as 
estimated environmental cleanup costs related to three non-utility sites. 
Through various rate orders issued by the NYPSC, DTE and NHPUC, 
costs related to MGP environmental cleanup activities are recovered 
in rates charged to gas distribution customers and, as a result, adjust- 
ments to these reserve balances do not impact earnings. However, 
environmental cleanup activities related to the three non-utility sites are 
not subject to rate recovery. Based on the recently concluded environ- 
mental study we reduced our reserve balance for future cleanup costs 
related to these sites and realized a pre-tax operating income benefit 
of $10 million. 

We estimate that the remaining cost of our MGP related 
environmental cleanup activities, including costs associated with the 
Ravenswood facility, will be approximately $269.1 million and we have 
recorded a related liability for such amount. We have also recorded 
an additional $25.6 million liability, representing the estimated environ- 
mental cleanup costs related to a former coal tar processing facility. 
As of December 31, 2003, we have expended a total of $101.1 million 
on environmental investigation and remediation activities. (See Note 7 
to the Consolidated Financial Statements, "Contractual Obligations, 
Guarantees and Contingencies" for a further explanation of 
these matters.) 

Market Risk: KeySpan is exposed to market risk arising from potential 
changes in one or more market variables, such as energy commodity 
price risk, interest rate risk, foreign currency exchange rate risk, volumet- 
ric risk due to weather or other variables. Such risk includes any or all 
changes in value whether caused by commodity positions, asset owner- 
ship, business or contractual obligations, debt covenants, exposure 
concentration, currency, weather, and other factors regardless of 
accounting method. We manage our expowre to changes in market 
prices using various risk management techniques for non-trading 
purposes, including hedging through the use of derivative instruments, 
both exchange-traded and over-the-counter contracts, purchase of 
insurance and execution of other contractual arrangements. 

Credit Risk: KeySpan is exposed to credit risk arising from the potenti; 
that our counterparties fail to perform on their contractual obligations. 
Our credit exposures are created primarily through the sale of gas and 
transportation services to residential, commercial, electric generation, 



and industrial customers and the provision of retail access services to  gas 
marketers, by our regulated gas businesses; the sale of commodities and 
services to  LIPA and the NYISO; the sale of gas, power and services to  
our retail customers by our unregulated energy service businesses; enter- 
ing into financial and energy derivative contracts with energy marketing 
companies and financial institutions; and the sale of gas, natural gas 
liquids, oil and processing services to  energy marketing and oil and gas 
production companies. 

We have regional concentration of credit risk due to receivables 
from residential, commercial and industrial customers in New York, 
New Hampshire and Massachusetts, although this credit risk is spread 
over a diversified base of residential, commercial and industrial 
customers. Customers' payment records are monitored and action is 
taken, when appropriate. Companies within the Energy Services 
segment have a concentration of credit risk to  large customers and 
to the governmental and healthcare industries. 

We also have concentrations of credit risk from LIPA, our largest 
customer, and from other energy companies. Concentration of energy 
company counterparties may impact overall exposure to credit risk in 
that our counterparties may be similarly impacted by changes in eco- 
nomic, regulatory or other considerations. We actively monitor the 
credit profile of our wholesale counterparties in derivative and other 
contractual arrangements, and manage our level of exposure according- 
ly. Over the past year, the credit quality of certain energy companies has 
declined. In instances where counterparties' credit quality has declined, 
we may limit our credit exposure by restricting new transactions with 
the counterparty, requiring additional collateral or credit support and 
negotiating the early termination of certain agreements. 

Equity and Debt Securities Risk: KeySpan is exposed to price risk 
due to investments in equity and debt securities held to fund benefit 
payments for various employee pension and other postretirement 
benefit plans. To the extent that the values of investments held decline, 
the effect will be reflected in Keyspan's recognition of periodic cost 
of such employee benefit plans and the determination of the amount 
of cash to  be contributed to  the employee benefit plans. 

Regulatory Issues and Competitive Environment 
We are subject t o  various other risk exposures and uncertainties 
associated with our gas and electric operations. The most significant 
contingency involves the evolution of the gas distribution and electric 
industries towards more competitive and deregulated environments. 
Set forth below is a description of  these exposures. 

The Gas lndtjstry 

long Island and New York 
The NYPSC continues to conduct collaborative proceedings o n  ways to  
develop the competitive energy market in New York. On July 13, 2001, 
the presiding officers in the case issued their recommended decision 
("RD"). The RD recommends that the NYPSC adopt an end state vision 
that includes removing the utilities from the provisionof the energy 
(gas and electric) commodity. The RD also recommends that utilities exit 
the commodity function only where there is a workably competitive 
market. The RD states that the only market that is currently workably 
competitive is the commodity market for non-residential large- use gas 
customers. Parties filed briefs on and opposing exceptions t o  the RD. 
On January 27, 2004, the NYPSC issued a notice seeking further 
comments on the matters addressed in the RD, in light of the current 
state of the retail market and the experience of the past few years. 

On May 23, 2002, the NYPSC issued an Order Adopting Terms 
of Gas Restructuring Joint Proposal Petition of KeySpan ~ n e r ~ ~  Delivery 
New York and KeySpan Energy Delivery Long Island for a Multi-Year 
Restructuring Agreement ("Joint Proposal"). The Joint Proposal did not 
alter base rate levels, but established a merchant function backout credit 
of $.21/dth and $.19/dth for KEDNY and KEDLI, respectively. These cred- 
its are designed to lower transportation rates charged to transportation 
only customers. These credits were based o n  established levels o f  
projected avoided costs and levels of customer migration to  non-utility 
commodity service. Lost revenues resulting from application of  these 
credits will be recovered from firm gas sales customers. The Joint 
Proposal expired on November 30, 2003. However, by Order dated 
November 25, 2003 the NYPSC approved tariff amendments that allow 
KEDNY and KEDLI to  continue the merchant function backout credit 
and the lost revenue recovery mechanism through May 31, 2005. 

As a result of circumstances in 2001, including the California ener- 
gy crisis and the bankruptcy of Enron Corp., state regulators around the 
country are reassessing the pace of movement toward deregulation. We 
are unable to predict the outcome or pace o f  this trend or its ultimate 
effect on our results of operation, financial condition or cash flows. 

On December 20, 2002, New York State Governor George Pataki 
signed into law the "Energy Consumer Protection Act of 2002" ("Act"): 
The Act defines energy services companies that provide gas or electric 
commodity service to  customers as utilities subject to  the Home Energy 
Fair Practices Act provisions ("HEFPA") of the New York Public Service 
Law. Under the Act, in certain circumstances utilities such as KEDNY 
and KEDLI will be required to suspend distribution service t o  customers 
whose commodity service has been terminated by an energy services - 

company. Generally, those energy services companies are required under 
the Act to provide these customers with the same consumer protections 
prescribed under HEFPA as are prescribed for full service sales customers 
of gas distribution companies. Those consumer protections include a 
series of notices warning of potential service termination, offering 



deferred payment agreements, and special protections for elderly, blind 
and disabled customers. Pursuant to  the Act, the NYPSC proposed regu- 
lations implementing the Act through a notice of Proposed Rulemaking 
dated January 27, 2004. The Act became effective on June 18,2003. 
We cannot predict the impact of the Act on KeySpan's regulated or 
unregulated operations at this time. 

N e w  England 
In July 1997, the DTE directed Massachusetts gas distribution companies 
to undertake a collaborative process with other stakeholders to  develop 
common principles under which comprehensive gas service unbundling 
might proceed. A settlement agreement by the local distribution compa- 
nies ("LDCs") and the marketer group regarding model terms and con- 
ditions for unbundled transportation service was approved by the DTE 
in November 1998. In February 1999, the DTE issued its order on how 
unbundling of natural gas service will proceed. For a five year transition 
period, the DTE determined that LDC contractual commitments to  
upstream capacity will be assigned on a mandatory, pro-rata basis to 
marketers selling gas supply to  the LDCs' customers. The approved 
mandatory assignment method eliminates the possibility that the costs 
of upstream capacity purchased by the LDCs to serve firm customers 
will be absorbed by the LDC or other customers through the transition 
period. The DTE also found that, through the transition period, LDCs 
will retain primary responsibility for upstream capacity planning and 
procurement t o  assure that adequate capacity is available to support 
customer requirements and growth. The DTE approved the LDCs' Terms 
and Conditions of Distribution Service that conform to the settled upon 
model terms and conditions. Since November 1, 2000, all Massachusetts 
gas customers have the option to purchase their gas supplies from third 
party sources other than the LDCs. Further, the New Hampshire Public 
Utility Commission required gas utilities to  offer transportation services 
to all commercial and residential customers starting November 1, 2001 
In January 2004, the DTE began a proceeding to re-examine whether 
the upstream capacity market has been sufficiently competitive to allow 
voluntary capacity assignment. 

We believe that the actions described above strike a balance 
among competing stakeholder interests in order to most effectively 
make available the benefits of the unbundled gas supply market to 
all customers. 

Electric Industry 

The Ravenswood Facility a n d  o u r  N e w  York City Operations 
The NYISOrs New York City local reliability rules currently require that 
80% of the electric capacity needs of New York City be provided by 
"in-City" generators. As additional, more efficient electric power plants 
are built in New York City and the surrounding areas, the requirement 
that 80% of in-City load be served by in-City generators could be 
modified. Construction of new transmission facilities could also cause 

significant changes to the market. If generation and/or transmission 
facilities are constructed, and/or the availability of our Ravenswood facil- 
ity deteriorates, then the capacity and energy sales volumes could be 
adversely affected. We cannot predict, however, when or if new power 
plants or transmission facilities will be built or the nature of future 
New York City energy requirements or market design. 

Regional Transmission Organizations a n d  
Standard Marke t  Design 
During 2001, the FERC issued several orders and began several proceed- 
ings related to the development of Regional Transmission Organizations 
("RTO") and the design of the wholesale energy markets. On September 
16, 2004, FERC terminated various RTO proceedings, including the 
NYISO/ISONE proceeding, because it determined their continuation is no 
longer necessary to  achieve the Commission's objective of establishing 
RTOs. Nevertheless, the Commission continues to guide the evolution 
of competitive markets in other proceedings including the development 
of a Standard Market Design. 

On July 31, 2002, FERC issued a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking 
("NOPR") intended to establish a standardized national market design 
and rules for competitive wholesale electric markets ("Standard Market 
Design" or "SMD"). These rules would apply to transmission owners 
("TOs"), independent system operators ("ISOs"), and RTOs. The SMD 
is intended to create: (i) genuine wholesale competition; (ii) efficient 
transmission systems; (iii) the right pricing signals for investment in 
transmission and generation facilities; and (iv) more customer options. 
How the SMD will be implemented will be based on FERC4 final rules 
in this regard, as well as the subject of various compliance filings by 
TOs, ISOs, and RTOs. We do not know how the markets will develop 
nor how these proposed changes will impact the operations of the 
NYlSO or its market rules. Furthermore, we are unable to  determine 
to what extent, if any, this process will impact the Ravenswood facility's 
financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. 

N e w  York Independent System Operator Mat ters  
On May 31, 2002, FERC approved the NYISO's mitigation plan 
("the Plan"). The Plan retains existing mitigation measures such as 
$I,OOO/MWhr energy price caps, non-spinning reserve bid caps, in-City 
capacity and energy mitigation measures, the day ahead Automated 
Mitigation Procedure ("AMP"), and the NYISO's general mitigation 
authority. In addition, the Plan implemented a new in-City real time 
automated mitigation procedure. On November 26, 2003, the NYlSO 
filed with FERC a request for tariff revisions reflecting the implementa- 
tion of enhanced real-time scheduling software. Among other things, 



the new software included changes to the in-City day-ahead energy 
mitigation measures. The in-City day-ahead energy mitigation will no 
longer use the Ind~an Point 2 price as a proxy for determining whether 
an energy offer should be mitigated. The NYlSO is going to apply its 
conduct and impact mitigation scheme to in-City offers. This will be 
applied on an hour by hour basis rather than on a 24-hour basis. Overall 
the changes are intended to address longstanding issues in the NYlSO 
market and help the NYlSO markets reach their full potential. The revi- 
sions are expected to lead to prices that reflect actual market and sys- 
tem conditions, including scarcity conditions. FERC approved the tariff 
revisions on February 11, 2004 and the NYISO will implement the 
revisions when they complete testing of the software revisions in the 
fall of 2004. However, the NYISO will implement the revisions associated 
with the in-City mitigation measures in its existing systems before the 
summer of 2004. Although prices for various energy products in the 
NYlSO markets have softened, it is not known to what extent each 
of these proceedings and revised rules may impact the Ravenswood 
facility's financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. 

NYlSO Demand Curve Capacity Market Implementation 
On March 21, 2003 the NYISO made a filing at FERC seeking approval 
of a Demand Curve to be used in place of its current deficiency auction 
for capacity procurement. On May 20, 2003, FERC approved, with some 
modifications, the Demand Curve to become effective May 21, 2003. 
On October 23, 2003, FERC denied various requests for rehearing of its 
order approving the Demand Curve and approved the NYISO's compli- 
ance filing. On December 9, 2003, the NYlSO filed its first status report 
with FERC with respect to how the Demand Curve was working. The 
NYlSO report found that there was no evidence of inappropriate with- 
holding of capacity resources and that the Demand Curve was working 
as intended. On December 22, 2003, the Electric Consumers Resource 
Council filed an appeal with the DC Circuit Court of Appeals of FERC's 
May 20, 2003 order approving the Demand Curve and its October 23, 
2003 order denying rehearing. This case is still pending and we are 
unable to determine to what extent, if any, this proceeding will 
impact the Ravenswood facility's financial condition, results of 
operations or cash flows. 

10-Minute Non-Spinning Reserves - DC Court o f  Appeals 
Due to volatility in the market clearing price of 10-minute spinning and 
non-spinning reserves during the first quarter of 2000, the NYlSO 
requested that FERC approve a bid cap on reserves as well as requiring 
a refunding of so called alleged "excess payments" received by sellers, 
including Ravenswood. On May 31, 2000, FERC issued an order that 
granted approval of a $2.52 per MWh bid cap for 10 minute non-spin- 
ning reserves, plus payments for the opportunity cost of not making 
energy sales. The other requests, such as a bid cap for spinning reserves, 

retroactive refunds, recalculation of reserve prices for March 2000, 
and convening a technical conference and settlement proceeding, 
were rejected. 

The NYISO, Con Edison, Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation and 
Rochester Gas and Electric (joint petitioners) each individually appealed 
FERC's order to Federal court. The appeals were consolidated into one 
case by the court. On November 7, 2003 the United States Court of 
Appeals for the D~strict of Columbia (the "Court") issued its decision in 
the case of Consolidated Edison Company o f  New York, Inc., v. Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission ("Decision"). Essentially, the Court found 
errors in the Commission's decision and remanded some issues in the 
case back to the Commission for further explanation and action. 
The Commission has not acted on the remand. At this time we cannot 
predict the outcome of the remand proceeding. 

Foreign Currency Fluctuations 
We follow the principles of SFAS 52, "Foreign Currency Translation" for 
recording our investments in foreign affiliates. At December 31, 2003, 
the net assets of these affiliates was approximately $323 million and 
at December 31, 2003, the accumulated after-tax foreign currency 
translation included in Other Comprehensive Income was a credit of 
$26.5 million. (See Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
"Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.") 

Financially-Settled Commodity Derivative Instruments - 
Non-Regulated Hedging Activities: From time to time, KeySpan 
subsidiaries have util~zed derivative financial instruments, such as 
futures, options and swaps, for the purpose of hedging the cash flow 
variability associated with changes in commodity prices. KeySpan 
is exposed to commodity price risk primarily with regard to its gas 
exploration and production activities and its electric generating facilities. 
Derivative financial instruments are employed by Houston Exploration 
to hedge cash flow variability associated with forecasted sales of natural 
gas. The Ravenswood facility uses derivative financial instruments to 
hedge the cash flow variability associated with the purchase of natural 
gas and oil that will be consumed during the generation of electricity. 
The Ravenswood facility also hedges the cash flow variability associated 
with a portion of peak electric energy sales. 

For derivative instruments associated with gas exploration and pro- 
duction activities, KeySpan uses standard New York Mercantile Exchange 
("NYMEX") future price quotes to value swap positions and published 
volatility in its Black-Scholes calculation for outstanding options. Further, 
KeySpan uses standard NYMEX futures prices to value gas futures 
contracts and market quoted forward prices to  value oil swap and 
natural gas basis swap contracts associated with its Ravenswood facility. 
We also use market quoted forward prices t o  value electric derivatives 
associated with the Ravenswood facility. 

The following tables set forth selected financial data associated 
with these derivative financial instruments that were outstanding at 
December 31, 2003. 



Type of Contract Year of Volumes Fair Value 

Gas Maturity (mmcfl Floor $ Ceiling $ Fixed Price 5 Current Price B (5000) 

Collars 2004 64,100 3.75 - 4.13 5.05 - 6.02 - 5.1 1 - 6.19 (29,449) 
2005 36,500 4.50 5.50 - 4.65 - 5.61 (1,534) 

Put Options - Short Natural Gas 2004 9,100 - - 5.00 5.1 1 - 5.26 4,228 
SwapsiFutures - Short Natural Gas 2004 14,640 - - 4.96 5.1 1 - 6.19 (691 2) 

2005 18,250 - - 4.77 4.65 - 5.61 (3,194) 
SwapsJFutures - Long Natural Gas 2005 10 - - 4.95 4.65 (6) 

142.600 (36.867) 

Type of Contract Year of Volumes Fair Value 
oil Maturity (Barrels) Fixed Price $ Current Price 5 ($000) 
Swaps - Long Fuel Oil 2004 100,548 20.55 - 29.60 28.28 - 32.42 36 1 

Type of Contract Year of Fair Value 

Electricity Maturity MWh Fixed Price I Current Price I ($000) 

Swaps - Energy 2004 580,000 14.00 - 28.00 14.10 - 39.33 259 

The following tables detail the changes in and sources of  fair value for the above derivatives: 

( I n  Ti:ourandi 01 1)iiilor~) 2003 (ll: ;ri,ouvndi qf DoI!nriJ 

($000) . Fair Value of Contracts 

Change i n  Fair Value of Derivative Hedging Instruments Maturity Maturity Total 
Sources of  Fair Value In 12 Months in 2005 Fair Value 

Fair value of contracts at January 1 ,  9(32,6281 
Prices actively quoted $(23,142) $(3,677) $ (26,819) 

Net losses on contracts realized 35,449 
Prices provided by external sources (3) - 

(Decrease) in fair value of all 
(3) 

Prices based on models and 
open contracts . . (39,045) other valuation methods (8,992) (1,054) (10,046) 

Fair value of contracts Local published indicies 620 24 644 
outstanding at December 31, $(36,224) $(31,517) $(4,707) 5 (36,224) 

Firm Gas Sales Derivative Instruments - Regulated Utilities: or regulatory liability on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Gains or losses 
We use derivative financial instruments to  reduce the cash flow variabili- on the settlement of these contracts are initially deferred and then 
ty associated with the purchase price for a portion of  future natural gas refunded to  or collected from our firm gas sales customers consistent 
purchases associated with our Gas Distribution operations. The account- with regulatory requirements. 
ing for these derivative instruments is subject to  SFAS 71 "Accounting The following table sets forth selected financial data associated 
for the Effects of Certain Types of  Regulation." Therefore, changes in the with these derivative financial instruments that were outstanding at 
fair value of these derivatives have been recorded as a regulatory asset December 31, 2003. 

Type of Contract Year of Volumes Fair Value 

Maturity (mmcf? Floor $ Ceiling 6 Fixed Price $ Current Price $ ($000) 

Options 2004 6,460 3.75 - 4.13 4.75 - 6.00 - 5.11 - 6.19 3,008 
Swaps 2004 17,122 - - 4.42 - 6.23 5.1 1 - 6.19 6,501 

See Note 8 t o  the Consolidated Financial Statements "Hedging, Derivative Financial lnstruments and Fair Values" for a further 
description of  all our derivative instruments. 
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Cautionary Statement Regarding 
Forward-Looking Statements 
Certain statements contained herein are forward-looking statements, 
which reflect numerous assumptions and estimates and involve a num- 
ber of risks and uncertainties. For these statements, we claim the pro- 
tection of the safe harbor for forward-looking statements provided by 
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. 

There are possible developments that could cause our actual results 
to differ materially from those forecast or implied in the forward-looking 
statements. You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these for- 
ward-looking statements, which are current only as of the date of this 
filing. We disclaim any intention or obligation to update or revise any 
forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, 
future events or otherwise. 

Among the factors that could cause actual results to differ rnateri- 
ally are: volatility of energy prices of fuel used to generate electricity; 
fluctuations in weather and in gas and electric prices; general economic 
conditions, especially in the Northeast United States; our ability to suc- 
cessfully reduce our cost structure and operate efficiently; our ability to  
successfully contract for natural gas supplies required to meet the needs 
of our firm customers; implementation of new accounting standards; 
inflationary trends and interest rates; the ability of KeySpan to identify 
and make complementary acquisitions, as well as the successful integra- 
tion of recent and future acquisitions; available sources and cost of fuel; 
creditworthiness of counter-parties to derivative instruments and com- 
modity contracts; retention of key personnel; federal and state regulato- 
ry initiatives that increase competition, threaten cost and investment 
recovery, and place limits on the type and manner in which we invest in 
new businesses; the impact of federal and state utility regulatory policies 
and orders on our regulated and unregulated businesses; potential 
write-down of our investment in natural gas properties when natural 
gas prices are depressed or if we have significant downward revisions in 
our estimated proved gas reserves; competition in general facing our 
unregulated Energy Services businesses, including but not limited to 
competition from other mechanical, plumbing, heating, ventilation and 
air conditioning, and engineering companies, as well as, other utilities 
and utility holding companies that are permitted to engage in such 
activities; the degree to which we develop unregulated business ven- 
tures, as well as federal and state regulatory policies affecting our ability 
to retain and operate such business ventures profitably; and other risks 
detailed from time to time in other reports and other documents filed by 
KeySpan with the Securities and Exchange Commission. 



Independent Auditors' Report 

To t h e  Shareholders a n d  Board o f  Directors o f  
KeySpan Corpora l ion: 
We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets of 
KeySpan Corporation and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 
31, 2003 and 2002, and the related Consolidated Statements.of 
Income, Retained Earnings, Comprehensive Income, Capitalization, and 
Cash Flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, 
2003. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of 
the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. The 
consolidated financial statements of KeySpan Corporation for the year 
ended December 31,2001 were audited by other auditors who have 
ceased operations. Their report, dated February 4, 2002, expressed an 
unqualified opinion on those statements. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to  obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the KeySpan 
Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2003 and 2002, and 
the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the two 
years in the period ended December 31, 2003, in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

As discussed in Note 1 (G) to the consolidated financial statements, 
on January I, 2002, the Company adopted Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangi- 
ble Assets," (SFAS No. 142) to change its method of accounting for 
goodwill and other intangibles. As discussed in Note 1(N) and Note l(P), 
on January 1,2003, the Company adopted SFAS No. 148, "Accounting 
for Stock-Based Compensation -Transition and Disclosure" and SFAS 
No. 143 "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations" (SFAS No. 143), 
respectively. Also, as discussed in Note 1 (P), on December 31, 2003, 
the Company adopted FASB Interpretation No. 46, "Consolidation of 
Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of ARB No. 51" (FIN 46). 

As discussed above, the consolidated financial statements of the 
Company as of December 31,2001 were audited by other auditors 
who have ceased operations. The notes related to these consolidated 
financial statements have been revised from those originally issued to  
include the transitional disclosures required by SFAS No. 142, SFAS No. 
143 and FIN 46, which were adopted by the Company as of January 1, 
2002, January 1, 2003 and December 31, 2003, respectively. Our audit 
procedures with respect to  the disclosures in Note 1(G) for 2001 

included (i) agreeing the previously reported earnings for common 
shareholders to  the previously issued consolidated financial statements 
and the adjustments to earnings for common shareholders representing 
amortization expense recognized in those periods related to goodwill to 
the Company's underlying records obtained from management, and 
(ii) testing the mathematical accuracy of the reconciliation of adjusted 
net income to reported earnings for common shareholders, and the 
related earnings-per-share amounts. Our audit procedures with respect 
to the disclosures in Note l(P) for 2001 included (i) agreeing the 
previously reported earnings for common stock to  the previously issued 
consolidated financial statements and the adjustments to earnings 
for common stock representing accretion, cost of removal and arnorti- 
zation expense to the Company's underlying records obtained from 
management, and (ii) testing the mathematical accuracy of the reconcil- 
iation of Earnings for Common Stock to reported pro forma earnings, 
and the related earnings-per-share amounts. 

In addition, the 2001 consolidated financial statements have also 
been revised from those originally issued to reflect certain reclassifica- 
tions as discussed in Note l(B). These reclassifications have been made 
to the Consolidated Statement of lncome and the Consolidated 
Statement of Cash Flows. On the Consolidated Statement of Income, 
"lncome from Equity Investments" has been reclassified from a 
component of "Other lncome and (Deductions)" to a component of 
"Operating Income". On the Consolidated Statement o f  Cash Flows, 
"Net Income","Minority Interest", "Changes in Assets and Liabilities - 
Other", and "(Gain) Loss on Disposal of Subsidiary'Stock" amounts 
have been reclassified. Our audit procedures with respect to such 
reclassifications for 2001 included (i) agreeing the amount to  the previ- 
ously issued consolidated financial statements, and (ii) testing the 
mathematical accuracy of the consolidated financial statements. 

In our opinion, the adjustments in Note l(G), Note 1(P), and the 
reclassifications reflected in the Consolidated Statements of lncome and 
Cash Flows are appropriate and have been properly applied. However, 
we were not engaged to audit, review, or apply any procedures to the 
2001 financial statements of the Company other than with respect 
to such adjustments and reclassifications and, accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion or any other form of assurance on the 2001 
financial statements taken as a whole. 

DELOlllE & TOUCHE LLP 
February 18, 2004 
New York, New York 



Independent Auditors' Report 

To the  Shareholders a n d  Board o f  Directors o f  
KeySpan Corporation: 
We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet and 
Consolidated Statement of Capitalization of KeySpan Corporation 
(a New York corporation) and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 
and December 31, 2000 and the related Consolidated Statements of 
Income, Retained Earnings, Comprehensive Income and Cash Flows for 
the three years ended December 31, 2001. These financial statements 
are the responsibility of KeySpan Corporation's management. , 

Our responsibility is to  express an opinion on these financial state- 
ments based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reason- 
able assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present 
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position and capitalization of 
KeySpan Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 
December 31, 2000 and the results of their operations and their cash 
flows for the three years ended December 31, 2001, in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. 

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP 

February 4, 2002 
New York, New York 

material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial state- Readers of these consolidated financial statements should be aware that this report 

ments. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used is a copy of a previously issued Arthur Andersen LLP report and that this report 

and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating has not been reissued by Arthur Andersen LLF! Furthermore, this report has not 

the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits been updated since February 4, 2002 and Arthur Andersen LIP completed its last 

provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. post-audit review of December 31, 2001 consolidated financial information on 

April 29, 2002. 



+. Consolidated Statement of Income 

( i n  Thouianh ijiiloi'hri, Exrip! Pr Jbnri ; imoi i r ; !~ !  

Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001 

Revenues 
Gas Distribution $4,161,272 $3,163,761 $3,613,551 
Electric Services 1,503,086 1,421,043 1,421,079 
Energy Services 641,432 938,761 1,100,167 
Gas Exploration and Production 501,255 357,451 400,031 
Energy Investments 108,116 89,650 98,287 
Total Revenues 

-- 
6,915,161 5,970,666 6,633,115 

Operating Expenses 
Purchased gas for resale 2,495,102 1,653,273 2,171,113 
Fuel and purchased power 414,633 395,860 538,532 
Operations and maintenance 2,005,796 2,101,897 2,114,759 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 574,074 514,613 559,138 
Operating taxes 418,236 381,767 448,924 
Total Operating Expenses 5,907,841 5,047,410 5,832,466 
Gain on sale of property 15,123 4,730 - 

Income from equity investments 19,214 14,096 13,129 
Operating Income 1,041,657 942,082 -- 81 3,778- 
Other Income and (Deductions) 
Interest charges 
Sale of subsidiary stock 
Cost of debt redemption 
Minority interest 
Other 42,119 25,169 34,924 
Total Other Income and (Deductions) (340.1 65) (301,253) (359,393) 
Income Taxes 
Current 
Deferred 
Total Income Taxes ' 277,311 243,479 210,693 
Earnings from Continuing Operations 424,181 397,350 243,692 -- 
Discontinued Operations 
lncome (loss) from operations, net of tax 
Loss on disposal, net of tax 
Loss from Discontinued Operations 
Cumulative Change in Accounting Principles, net of tax . (37,451) - - 

Net Income 386,730 377,688 224,254 
Preferred stock dividend -- requirements ~ 5,844 5,753 5,904 
Earnings for Common Stock 5 380,886 $ 371,935 $ 218,350 

Basic Earnings Per Share 
Continuing Operations, less preferred stock dividends S 2.64 $ 2.77 . $ 1.72 
Discontinued Operations - (0.1 4) (0.1 4) 
Change in Accounting Principles (0.23) - - 

Basic Earnings Per Share 5 2.41 $ 2.63 $ , 1.58 

Diluted Earnings Per Share 
Continuing Operations, less preferred stock dividends $ 2.62 $ 2.75 B 1.70 
Discontinued Operations - (0.1 4) (0.14) 
Change in Accounting Principles (0.23) - - 
Diluted Earnings Per Share $ 2.39 $ 2.61 $ 1.56 

Average Common Shares Outstanding (000) 158,256 141,263 138,214 
Average Common Shares Outstanding - Diluted (000) 159,232 142,300 139,221 

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Sfatements 



Consolidated Balance Sheet 
- - 

( I n  Thou~andr of Doiiarr} 

Year Ended Deremher '31 2003 2002 

Current Assets 
Cash and temporary cash investments 
Accounts receivable 
Unbilled revenue 
Allowance for uncollectible accounts 
Gas in storage, at average cost 
Material and supplies, at average cost 
Other 

Investments and Other 248,565 264,729 

Property 
Gas 6,522,251 6,125,529 
Electric 2,636,537 1,974,352 
Other 425,576 394,374 
Accumulated depreciation (2,610,876) (2,374,772) 
Gas exploration and production, at cost 3,088,242 2,438,998 
~ccurnu'lated depletion (1 ,I 67,427) (973,889) 

8,894,303 7,584,592 

Deferred Charges 
Regulatory assets 
Goodwill and other intangible assets, net of amortization 
Other 

Total Assets $14,626,784 $1 2,980,050 

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 



Consolidated Balance Sheet 

[In Thourandr olDoi1orr) 

Year Ended December 31. 2003 2002 

LIABILITIES AND CAPITALIZATION 
Current Liabilities 
Current redemption of long-term debt $ 1,471 $ 11,413 
Accounts payable and other liabilities 1,141,597 1,096,654 
Commercial paper 481,900 91 5,697 
Dividends payable 72,289 64,714 
Taxes accrued 46,580 51,276 
Customer deposits 40,370 38,387 
Interest accrued 64,609 77,092 

1,848,816 2,255,233 
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities 
Regulatory liabilities: 

Miscellaneous liabilities 
Removal costs recovered 

Removal costs recovered 
Deferred income tax 
Postretirement benefits and other reserves 
Other 

2,911,471 2,241,874 
Commitments and Contingencies (See Note 7) - - 

Capitalization 
Common stock 
Retained earnings 
Accunulated other comprehensive income 
Treasury stock (378,487) (475,174) 
Total common shareholders' equity 3,661,948 2,944,592 
Preferred stock 83,568 83,849 
Long-term debt 5,611,432 5,224,081 
Total Ca~ital izat ion 9.356.948 8.252.522 
Minoritv Interest in Subsidiarv Companies 509.549 230.421 
Total Liabilities and Capitalization $14,626,784 81 2,980,050 

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

- 
Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001 

Operating Activities 
Net income S 386,730 S 377,688 $ 224,254 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net 

cash provided by (used in) operating activities 
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 574,074 514,613 559,138 
Deferred income tax 189,275 90,724 108,955 
Income from equity investments (18,038) (14,096) (13,129) 
Dividends from equity investments 2,807 3,905 7,570 
Amortization of interest rate swap (9,861) - - 

(Gain) loss on disposal of subsidiary stock (13,356) - 19,438 
(1 5,123) (4,730) - Gain on sale of property 

Gain from class action settlement - - (33,510) 
Provision for losses on contracting business - - 63,682 
Change in accounting principle 37,451 - - 

Environmental reserve adjustment (10,459) - - 

Minority interest 63,852 24,9 18 40,847 
Changes in assets and liabilities 
Accounts receivable 77,750 (259,454) 401,976 
Materials and suppl~es, fuel oil and gas in storage (1 99,357) 42,508 (43,856) 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 199,980 18,179 (400,636) 
Reserve payments (36,486) (23,369) - 

Other (44,596) (39,394) (44,548) 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities -- I, 1 8 z 4 3 731,492 -- 890,181- 
Investing Activities 
Construction expenditures (1,011,716) (1,061,022) (1,059,759) 
Other Investments (21 1,370) (27,579) - 

Proceeds from sale of property and subsidiary stock 309,696 179,840 18,458 
Issuance of long-term note (55,000) - 

Other - - 
--- (6) 

Net Cash (Used in) Investing Activities (968,390) (908,761) (1,041,307) 
Financing ~ct iv i t ies 
Treasury stock issued 96,687 86,710 88,786 
Common stock issuance 473,573 - - 

Issuance of long-term debt 1,024,912 549,280 812,116 
Payment of long-term debt (605,625) (1 24,991) (183,410) 
Payment of commercial paper (433,797) (1 32,753) (251,787) 
Redemption of promissory notes (447,005) - - 
Redemption of preferred stock (14,293) - - 

Common and preferred stock dividends paid (280,560) (256,656) (251,502) 
Termination of interest rate swaps - 57,415 - 
Other 4,989 9,629 12,846 
Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Financing Activities (181,119) 188,634 227,049 
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 35,134 $ 11,365 $ 75,923 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Per~od 170,617 159,252 83,329 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period S 205,751 $ 170,617 $ 159,252 

Interest Paid 5 355,136 B 343,933 $ 328,910 
Income Tax Paid $ 65,495 $ 98,344 $ 128,558 

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemenh. 



Consolidated Statement of Retained Earnings 
- -- ~~- ~ ~~ ~ - -  - ~ - -  - -  

(In ThoujanL o fDo/ /ar~)  

Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001 

Balance at  Beginning o f  Period $522,835 $ 452,206 $480,639 
Net Income for-period- 386,730 377,688 224,254 

909,565 829,894 704,893 
Deductions: 
Cash dividends declared on common stock 
Cash dividends declared on preferred stock 5,844 5,753 5,904 
MEDS Equity Units - 49,131 - 

Balance at  End of Period $621,430 $ 522,835 $452,206 

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive lncome 

( I n  Thou~andi o/Dol/orr) 

Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001 

Net Income $386,730 $377,688 $224,254 
Other comprehensive income, net o f  tax 
Net losses (gains) on derivative instruments 23,042 (1 7,033) (27,690) 
Reclassification adjustment for other gains reclassified to net income - - (3,242) 
Foreign currency translation adjustments 28,696 9,759 (9,627) 
Unrealized gains (losses) on marketable securities 8,480 (10,019) (5,464) 
Premium on derivative instrument (3,437) - - 

Accrued unfunded pension obligation 8,380 (55,768) (1 3,262) 
Unrealized (losses) gains on derivative financial instruments (25,379) (39,845) 62,943 
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 39,782 (1 12,906) ~ 3,658 
Com~rehensive Income $426.512 4 264.782 8227.912 

Related tax (benefit) expense 
Net losses (gains) on derivative instruments 
Reclassification adjustment for other gains reclassified to net income 
Foreign currency translation adjustments 
Unrealized gains (losses) on marketable securities 
Accrued unfunded pension obligation 
Premium on derivative instrument 
Unrealized (losses) gains on derivative financial instruments (13,666) (2 1,454) 33,892 
Total Tax (Benefit) Expense $ 21,422 $ (60,795) $ 1,970 

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 



Consolidated Statement of Capitalization .- 

Sharer Iriurii (10 Thollratidi gt'Doiiarr) 

Year Ended December 31, 
- 

2003 2002 2003 2002 

Common Shareholders' Equity 
Common stock, $0.01 par value 172,737,654 158,837,654 S 1,727 $ 1,588 
Premium on capital stock 3,485,918 3,003,766 
Retained earnings 621,430 522,835 
Other comprehensive income (68,640) (1 08,423) 
Treasury stock 13,073,219 16,412,880 (378,487) -- (475,174) 
Total Common Shareholders' Equity -- 159,664,435 142,424,774 3,661,948 2,944,592 

Preferred Stock - No Redemption Required 
Par Value $100 per share 
7.07% Series B - private placement 553,000 553,000 55,300 55,300 
7.1 7% Series C - private placement 197,000 197,000 19,700 19,700 
6.00% Series A - private placement 85,676 88,486 8,568 8,849 
Total Preferred Stock - No Redemption Required 83,568- 83,849 
Long-Term Debt Interest Rate Maturity 
Notes 
Medium and long term notes 4.65% - 9.75% 2005 - 2033 3,185,000 2,885,000 
Senior secured notes 5.42% - 6.16% 2008 - 2013 96,425 - 

Senior subordinated notes -- - 7.0% 2013 175,000 100,000 
Total Notes 3,456,425 2,985,000 
Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds Variable 2020 125,000 125,000 

5.50% - 6.95% 2020 - 2026 523.500 523,500 
Total Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds 648.500 648,500 

Promissory Notes to LlPA 
Debentures 
Pollution control revenue bonds 

MEDS Equity Units 
Industrial Development Bonds 5.25% 2027 128,275 - 

First Mortgage Bonds 5.50% - 10.10% 2003 - 2028 153,186 163,625 
Authority Financing Notes Variable 2027 - 2028 66,005 66,005 
Other Subsidiary Debt 145,612 304,298 
Ravenswood Master Lease & Capital Leases 2005 - 2022 425,262 13,884 
Subtotal 5,638,687 5,243,739 
Unamortized interest rate hedge and debt discount (69,243) (75,265) 
Derivative impact on debt 43,459 67,020 
Less: current maturities 1,471 11,413 
Total Long-Term Debt 5,611,432 5,224,081 
Total Capitalization $9,356,948 $8,252,522 

See accompanying Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 



Notes to the Consolidatec 1 Financial Statements 

3rganization o f  the Company 
Span Corporation, a New York corporation, was formed in May 
J8, as a result of the business combination of KeySpan Energy 
rporation, the parent of The Brooklyn Union Gas Company, and 
tain businesses of the Long lsland Lighting Company ("LILCO"). 
1 November 8, 2000, KeySpan acquired Eastern Enterprises 
Eastern"), a Massachusetts business trust, and the parent of several 

3s utilities operating in Massachusetts. Also on November 8, 2000, 
astern acquired EnergyNorth, Inc. ("ENI"), the parent of a gas utility 
iperating in central New Hampshire. KeySpan Corporation will be 
eferred to in these notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as 
'KeySpan", "we", "us" and "our." 

Our core business is gas distribution, conducted by our six regulat- 
ed gas utility subsidiaries: The Brooklyn Union Gas Company dlbla 
KeySpan Energy Delivery New York ("KEDNY") and KeySpan Gas East 
Corporation d/b/a KeySpan Energy Delivery Long lsland ("KEDLI") dis- 
tribute gas to customers in the Boroughs of Brooklyn, Staten lsland and 
a portion of the Borough of Queens in New York City, and the counties 
of Nassau and Suffolk on Long lsland and the Rockaway Peninsula in 
Queens, respectively; Boston Gas Company, Colonial Gas Company and 
Essex Gas Company, each doing business as KeySpan Energy Delivery 
New England ("KEDNE"), distribute gas to customers in southern, east- 
ern and central Massachusetts; and EnergyNorth Natural Gas, Inc., d/b!a 
KeySpan Energy Delivery New England distributes gas to customers in 
central New Hampshire. Together, these companies distribute gas to 
approximately 2.5 million customers throughout the Northeast. 

We also own, lease and operate electric generating plants on 
Long lsland and in New York City. Under contractual arrangements, we 
provide power, electric transmission and distribution services, billing and 
other customer services for approximately 1.0 million electric customers 
of the Long lsland Power Authority ("LIPA"). 

Our other subsidiaries are involved in gas and oil exploration and 
production; gas storage; liquefied natural gas storage; wholesale and 
retail electric marketing; appliance service; plumbing; heating, ventila- 
tion, air conditioning and other mechanical services; large energy-system 
ownership, installation and management; fiber optic services; and 
engineering and consulting services. We also invest in, and participate in 
the development of natural gas pipelines; natural gas processing plants; 
electric generation, and other energy-related projects, domestically 
and internationally. (See Note 2, "Business Segments" for additional 
information on each operating segment.) 

We are a registered holding company under the Public Utility 
Holding Company Act of 1935 ("PUHCA"), as amended. Therefore, our 
corporate and financial activities and those of our subsidiaries, including 
their ability to pay dividends to us, are subject to regulation by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"). Under our holding com- 
pany structure, we have no independent operations or source of income 
of our own and conduct all of our operations through our subsidiaries 
and, as a result, we depend on the earnings and cash flow of, and 

dividends or distributions from, our subsidiaries to provide the funds 
necessary to meet our debt and contractual obligations. Furthermore, 

a substantial portion of our consolidated assets, earnings and cash flow 
is derived from the operations of our regulated utility subsidiaries, 
whose legal authority to pay dividends or make other distributions to us 
is subject to regulation by state regulatory authorities. 

6. Basis o f  Presentation 
The Consolidated Financial Statements presented herein reflect the 
accounts of KeySpan and its subsidiaries. Most of our subsidiaries are 
fully consolidated in the financial information presented, except for 
certain subsidiary investments in the Energy Investments segment which 
are accounted for on the equity method as we do not have a controlling 
voting interest or otherwise have control over the management of such 
companies. All significant intercompany transactions have been eliminat- 
ed. Certain reclassifications \/ere made to conform prior period financial 
statements to current period financial statement presentation. For 
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, we reclassified income from equity 
investments and property sales from other income and (deductions) to 
operating income on the Consolidated Statement of Income. On the 
2001 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, "minority interest," 
"changes in assets and liabilities -other," and "(gain) loss on disposal of 
subsidiary stock" amounts have been reclassified. The amount related to 
the loss from discontinued operations has been separately identified as 
"(gain) loss of disposal of subsidiary stock". In addition, "minority 
interest" was previously disclosed as a component of "changes in assets 
and liabilities - other"; it has now been reclassified as a separate line 
item for all periods presented. 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with gener- 
ally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities 
at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

C. Accounting fo r  the Effects o f  Rate Regulation 
The accounting records for our six regulated gas utilities are maintained 
in accordance with the Uniform System of Accounts prescribed by the 
Public Service Commission of the State of New York ("NYPSC"), the 
New Hampshire Public Utility Commission ("NHPUC"), and the 
Massachusetts Department of Telecommunications and Energy ("DTE"). 
Our electric generation subsidiaries are not subject to state rate regula- 
tion, but they are subject to Federal Energy Regulatory Commission 
("FERC") regulation. Our financial statements reflect the ratemaking 
policies and actions of these regulators in conformity with GAAP for 
rate-regulated enterprises. 

Four of our six regulated gas utilities (KEDNY, KEDLI, Boston Gas 
Company and EnergyNorth Natural Gas, Inc.) and our Long lsland basec 
electric generation subsidiaries are subject to the provisions of 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") 71, "Accountinc 
for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation." This statement recog- 
nizes the ability of regulators, through the ratemaking process, to crea. 

future economic benefits and obligations affecting rate-regulated 



companies. Accordingly, we record these future economic benefits 
and obligations as regulatory assets and regulatory liabilities on the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet, respectively. 

In separate merger related orders issued by the DTE, the base rates 
charged by Colonial Gas Company and Essex Gas Company have been 
frozen at their current levels for ten-year periods, ending 2009 and 
2008, respectively. Due to  the length of these base rate freezes, the 
Colonial and Essex Gas Companies had previously discontinued the 
application of SFAS 71. 

The following table presents our net regulatory assets at 
December 3 1, 2003 and December 31, 2002. 

December 31, 2003 2002 

Regulatory Assets 
Regulatory tax asset 
Property taxes 
Environmental costs 
Postretirement benefits 
Costs associated with 

the KeySpanlLlLCO transaction 
Derivative financial instruments 
Other 
Total Regulatory Assets 
Miscellaneous Regulatory Liabilities 
Net Regulatory Assets 
Removal Costs Recovered (450,034) - 

$ 10,917 $354,037 

The regulatory assets above are not included in rate base. However, 
we record cartying charges on the property tax and costs associated 
with the KeySpanILILCO transaction cost deferrals. We also record carry- 
ing charges on our regulatory liabilities. The remaining regulatory assets 
represent, primarily, costs for which expenditures have not yet been 
made, and therefore, carrying charges are not recorded. We anticipate 
recovering these costs in our gas rates concurrently with future cash 
expenditures. If recovery is not concurrent with the cash expenditures, 
we will record the appropriate level of carrying charges. Deferred gas 
costs of $53.4 million and $61.8 million at December 31, 2003 and 
December 31, 2002, respectively are reflected in accounts receivable 
on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Deferred gas costs are subject to  
current recovery from customers. 

We estimate that full recovery of our regulatory assets will not 
exceed 10 years, except for the regulatory tax asset, which will be 
recovered over the estimated lives of certain utility property. 

Rate regulation is undergoing significant change as regulators and 
customers seek lower prices for utility service and greater competition 
among energy service providers. In the event that regulation significantly 
changes the opportunity to recover costs in the future, all or a portion 
of our regulated operations may no longer meet the criteria for the 
application of SFAS 71. In that event, a write-down of all or a portion of 
our existing regulatory assets and liabilities could result. If we were 
unable to continue to apply the provisions of SFAS 71 for any of our 
rate regulated subsidiaries, we would apply the provisions of SFAS 101, 

"Regulated Enterprises - Accounting for the Discontinuation of 
Application of FASB Statement 71 ." We estimate that the write-off of all 
net regulatory assets at December 31, 2003, before consideration of 
removal costs recovered, could result in a charge to net income of $300 
million or $1.89 per share, which would be classified as an extraordinary 
item. In 2003, KeySpan implemented SFAS 143 "Accounting for Asset 
Retirement Obligations" and reclassified cost of removal accruals from 
accumulated depreciation t o  regulatory liabilities. For the 2002 
Consolidated Balance Sheet presentation, these accruals are reflected as 
a separate line item in deferred credits and other liabilities. In manage- 
ment's opinion, our regulated subsidiaries that are currently subject to  
the provisions of SFAS 71 will continue to  be subject to SFAS 71 for the 
foreseeable future. 

0. Revenues 
Gas Distribution: Utility gas customers are billed monthly or bi-monthly 
on a cycle basis. Revenues include unbilled amounts related to  the esti- 
mated gas usage that occurred from the most recent meter reading to 
the end of each month. 

The cost of gas used is recovered when billed to firm customers 
through the operation of gas adjustment clauses ("GAC") included in 
utility tariffs. The GAC provision requires periodic reconciliation of recov- 
erable gas costs and GAC revenues. Any difference is deferred pending 
recovery from or refund to firm customers. Further, net revenues from 
tariff gas balancing services, off-system sales and certain on-system 
interruptible sales are refunded, for the most part, to  firm customers 
subject to certain sharing provisions. 

The New York and Long Island gas utility tariffs contain weather 
normal~zation adjustments that largely offset shortfalls or excesses of 
firm net revenues (revenues less gas costs and revenue taxes) during a 
heating season due to variations from normal weather. Revenues are 
adjusted each month the clause is in effect and are generally included in 
rates in the following month. The New England gas utility rate structures 
contain no weather normalization feature, therefore their net revenues 
are subject to weather related demand fluctuations. 

Electric Services: Electric revenues are derived from billings to LIPA for 
management of LIPA's transmission and distribution ("T&DM) system, 
electric generation, and procurement of fuel. 

KeySpan manages the day-to-day operations, maintenance and 
capital improvements of the T&D system under a Management Service 
Agreement ("MSA"). In exchange for providing the services, KeySpan 
earns a $10 million annual management fee. Annual service incentives 
or penalties exist under the MSA if certain targets are achieved or 
not achieved. In addition, we can earn certain incentives for budget 
underruns, associated with the day-to-day operations, maintenance and 
capital improvements of LIPA's T&D system. These incentives provide for 
us to  (i) retain 100% on the first $5 million in annual budget underruns, 
and (ii) retain 50% of additional annual underruns up to 15% of  the 
total cost budget, thereafter all savings accrue to  LIPA. With respect t o  
cost overruns, we will absorb the first 815 million of overruns, with a 



sharing of overruns above $15 million. There are certain limitations on 
the amount of cost sharing of overruns. 

In addition, KeySpan sells to LlPA under a power Supply Agree- 
ment ("PSA") all of the capacity and, to  the extent requested, energy 
conversion services from our existing Long Island based oil and gas-fired 
generating plants. Sales of capacity and energy conversion services are 
made under rates approved by the FERC. Rates charged to  LlPA include 
a fixed and variable component. The variable component is billed to LlPA 
on a monthly per megawatt hour basis and is dependent on the number 
of megawatt hours dispatched. The PSA provides incentives and penal- 
ties that can total $4 million annually for the maintenance of the output 
capability and the efficiency of the generating facilities. 

KeySpan also procures and manages fuel supplies on behalf of 
LIPA, under an Energy Management Agreement ("EMA"), to  fuel the 
generating facilities under contract to  it and perform off-system capacity 
and energy purchases on a least-cost basis to  meet LIPA's needs. In 
exchange for these services we earn an annual fee of $1.5 million. In 
addition, we arrange for off-system sales on behalf of LlPA of excess 
output from the generating facilities and other power supplies either 
owned or under contract to  LIPA. LlPA is entitled to two-thirds of  the 
profit from any off-system energy sales. In addition, the EMA provides 
incentives and penalties that can total $7 million annually for perform- 
ance related to fuel purchases and off-system power purchases. 

KeySpan Glenwood Energy Center LLC and KeySpan Port 
Jefferson Energy Center LLC have entered into 25 year Power Purchase 
Agreements with LlPA (the "PPAs"). Under the terms of the PPAs, these 
subsidiaries sell capacity, energy conversion services and ancillary services 
to  LIPA. Each plant is designed to  produce 79.9 megawatts ("MW"). 
Under the PPAs, LlPA pays a monthly capacity fee, which guarantees full 
recovery of each plant's construction costs, as well as an appropriate 
rate of  return on investment. The PPAs also obligate LlPA to  pay for 
each plant's costs of operation and maintenance. These costs are billed 
on a monthly estimated basis and are subject to  true-up for actual 
costs incurred. 

In addition, electric revenues are derived from our investment 
in the 2,200 megawatt Ravenswood electric generation facility 
("Ravenswood facility"), which we acquired in June 1999. (See Note 7 
"Contractual Obligations, Financial Guarantees and Contingencies" 
for a description of  the Ravenswood transaction.) We realize revenues 
from our investment in the Ravenswood facility through the sale, at 
wholesale, of energy, capacity, and ancillary services to the New York 
Independent System Operator ("NYISO"). Energy and ancillary services 
are sold through a bidding process into the NYISO energy markets on a 
day ahead or real time basis. 

Energy Services: Revenues earned by our Energy Services segment for 
mechanical and other contracting services are derived from service ren- 
dered under fixed price, cost-plus, guaranteed maximum price, and time 
and materials-type contracts and generally recognized on the percent- 
age-of-completion method. Percentage-of-completion is measured prin- 
cipally by the percentage of costs incurred t o  date for each contract to  
the estimated total costs for each contract at completion. Provisions for 
estimated losses on uncompleted contracts are made in the period in  

which such losses are determined. In the case of customer change 
orders, estimated recoveries are included for work performed in fore- 
casting ultimate profitability on certain contracts. Due to  uncertainties 
inherent in the estimation process, changes in job performance, job 
conditions, estimated profitability and final contract settlements may 
result in revisions to estimated costs and, therefore, revenues. Such 
revisions to costs and income are recognized in the period in which the 
revisions are determined. 

Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted 
contracts arise when revenues have been recorded but the amounts 
cannot be billed under the terms of the contracts. Such amounts are 
recoverable from customers upon various measures of performance, 
including achievement of certain milestones, completion of specified 
units or completion of the contract. 

Also included in costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted 
contracts are amounts t o  be collected from customers for changes in 
contract specifications or design, contract change orders in dispute or 
unapproved as to scope or price, or other customer-related causes of 
unanticipated additional contract costs. These amounts are recorded at 
their estimated net realizable value when realization is probable and can 
be reasonably estimated. Claims and unapproved change orders involve 
negotiation and, in certain cases, litigation. Unapproved change orders 
and claims also involve the use of estimates, and it is reasonably possible 
that revisions to the estimated recoverable amounts of recorded change 
orders and claims may be made in the near-term. If KeySpan does not 
successfully resolve these matters, an expense may be required, in addi- 
tion to amounts that have been previously provided for. Claims against 
KeySpan are recognized when a loss is considered probable and 
amounts are reasonably determinable. 

Energy service and maintenance revenues are recognized as earned 
or over the life of the service contract, as appropriate. Energy sales 
made by our electric marketing subsidiary are recorded upon delivery of 
the related commodity. Fiber optic service revenue is recognized upon 
delivery of service access. We have unearned revenue recorded in 
deferred credits and other liabilities - other on the Consolidated Balance 
Sheet totaling $23.8 million and $19.2 million for the years ended 
December 31, 2003, and December 31, 2002, respectively. These bal- 
ances represent primarily unearned revenues for service contracts and 
leases on fiber optic cables. The unearned revenues from the service 
contracts are generally amortized to  income within one year, while the 
lease related unearned revenues are amortized over periods ranging 
from five t o  30 years. 

Gas Exploration and Production: Natural gas and oil revenues earned 
by our gas exploration and production activities are recognized using the 
entitlements method of accounting. Under this method of  accounting, 
income is recorded based on the net revenue interest in production or 
nominated deliveries. Production gas volume imbalances are incurred in 
the ordinary course of business. Net deliveries in excess of entitled 
amounts are recorded as liabilities, while net under deliveries are record- 
ed as assets. Imbalances are reduced either by subsequent recoupment 



leliveries or by cash settlement, as required by 
;. Production imbalances are marked-to-market at the 
\ using the market price at the end of each period. 

ther Property - Depreciation and Maintenance 
Ily utility gas property is stated at original cost of 
ich includes allocations of overheads, including taxes, 
e for funds used during construction. The rates at which 
aries capitalized interest for the years ended December 
~h 2003 ranged from 2.95O/0 to 10.67%. Capitalized 
~ 3 ,  2002 and 2001 was $13.5 million, $19.7 million 
)n, respectively. 
tion is provided on a straight-line basis in amounts 
composite rates on average depreciable property. The 
rty retired is charged to accumulated depreciation. 
n recovers certain asset retirement costs through rates 
.ustomers as a portion of depreciation expense. At 
, I ,  2003and 2002, KeySpan had costs recovered in excess 
urred totaling $450 million and $366 million, respectively. 
unts are reflected as a regulatory liability for 2003 and in 
.edits and other liabilities for 2002 on the Consolidated 
leet. 
cost of repair and minor replacement and renewal of property 

Cl to maintenance expense. The composite rates on average 
2le property were as follows: 

:I December 31, 2003 2002 2001 
~ ~- 

3.81 % 3.88% 3.78% 
3.37% 3.44% 3.40% 

I also had $425.6 million of other property at December 31, 
'hich is not reflected in "rate base" for utility rate making 
s. This property consists of assets held primarily by our 
te Service subsidiary of $320.3 million and $105.3 million in 
Services assets. The Corporate Service assets consist largely of 
~ildings, office equipment and furniture, vehicles, computer 
?communications equipment and systems. These assets have 
jble lives ranging from three to 40 years. We allocate the 
1 cost of these assets to our operating subsidiaries through our 
allocation methodology. Energy Services assets consist largely 

truction equipment and fiber optic cable and related electronics 
de service lives ranging from seven to 40 years. 
?ySpanls repair and maintenance costs, including planned major 
nance in the Electric Services segment for turbine and generator 
uls, are expensed as incurred unless they represent replacement 
)erty to be capitalized. Planned major maintenance cycles 
l y  range from seven to eight years. Smaller periodic overhauls 
.formed approximately every 18 months. 

of accounting. Under the full cost method, costs of acquisition, explo- 
ration and development of natural gas and oil reserves are capitalized 
into a "full cost pool" as incurred. Unproved properties and related 
costs are excluded from the depletion and amortization base until a 
determination as to the existence of proved reserves. Properties are 
depleted and charged to operations using the unit of production 
method using proved reserve quantities. 

These investments consist of our 55% ownership interest in The 
Houston Exploration Company ("Houston Exploration"), an independent 
natural gas and oil exploration company, as well as KeySpan Exploration 
and Production, LLC ("KeySpan Exploration"), our wholly-owned sub- 
sidiary engaged in a joint venture with Houston Exploration. TO the 
extent that such capitalized costs (net of accumulated depletion) less 
deferred taxes exceed the present value (using a 10% discount rate) of 
estimated future net cash flows from proved natural gas and oil reserves 
and the lower of cost or fair value of unproved properties, less deferred 
taxes, such excess costs are charged to operations, but would not have 
an impact on cash flows. Once incurred, such impairment of gas proper- 
ties is not reversible at a later date even if gas prices increase. 

The ceiling test is calculated using natural gas and oil prices in 
effect as of the balance sheet date, held flat over the life of the reserves. 
We use derivative financial instruments that qualify for hedge account- 
ing under SFAS 133 "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and 
Hedging Activities," to hedge the volatility of natural gas prices. In 
accordance with current SEC guidelines, we have included estimated 
future cash flows from our hedging program in the ceiling tes t  calcu- 
lation. As of December 31, 2003, we estimated, using a wellhead price 
of $5.79 per MCF, that our capitalized costs did not exceed the ceiling 
test limitation. At December 31, 2002, we estimated, using a wellhead 
price of 94.35 per MCF, that our capitalized costs did not exceed the 
ceiling test limitation. 

In calculating the ceiling test at December 31, 2001, we estimated, 
using a wellhead price of $2.38 per MCF, that our capitalized costs 
exceeded the ceiling limitation. As a result, in the fourth quarter of 
2001, a $42.0 million impairment charge to wr~te down our gas explo- 
ration and production assets was recorded. This charge was recorded 
in depreciation, depletion and amortization on the Consolidated 
Statement of Income. Keyspan's share of the impairment charge was 
$26.2 million after-tax, or $0.19 per share. 

Natural gas prices continue to be volatile and the risk that a wri 
down to the full cost pool increases when, among other things, natt 
gas prices are depressed, there are significant downward revisions ir 
our estimated proved reserves or we have unsuccessful drilling resut 

Houston Exploration capitalizes interest related t o  its unevalu? 
natural gas and oil properties, as well as some properties under 
development which are not currently being amortized. For years 
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, capitalized interest v 
$7.3 million, 98.0 million and $1 2.0 million, respectively. 

Exploration and Production Property - Depletion 
:ember 31, 2003, we had exploration and production property in 



G. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets 
The balance of goodwill and other intangible assets was $1.8 billion at 
December 31, 2003 and 2002, representing primarily the excess of 
acquisition cost over the fair value of net assets acquired. Goodwill and 
other intangible assets reflect the Eastern and EN1 acquisitions, the 
KeySpanILILCO transaction, as well as acquisitions of energy-related 
service companies and also relates to  certain ownership interests of 50% 
or less in energy-related investments in Northern Ireland which are 
accounted for under the equity method.' 

The table below summarizes the goodwill and other intangible 
assets balance for each segment at December 31, 2003 and 2002: 

(In Thowand ofDollarr) 
Year Ended December 31. 2003 2002 

Operating Segment 
Gas Distribution $1,436,917 $1,436,917 
Energy Services 172,874 148,596 
Energy Investments and other 199,921 210,712 

$1,809,712 $1,796,225 

The increase in goodwill related to  the Energy Services segment 
primarily reflects the acquisition of Bard, Rao + Athanas Consulting 
Engineers, LLC. ("BRtA"), a Boston, Massachusetts company engaged 
in the business of providing engineering services relating to heating, 
ventilation, and air conditioning systems. The purchase price was 
approximately $35 million, plus up to  $14.7 million in contingent 
consideration depending on the financial performance of BRtA over 
the five-year period following the closing of the acquisition. We have 
recorded goodwill of approximately $26 million and intangible assets of 
approximately $2 million associated with this transaction. The intangible 
assets, which relate primarily to  a portion of the backlog purchased, 
as well as to  non-compete agreements entered into with all of the 
former owners of BRtA, will be amortized over two and three years, 
respectively. 

The decrease in goodwill related to  Energy lnvestments and other 
primarily reflects the sale of our 24.5% interest in Phoenix Natural 
Gas-Limited, located in Northern Ireland, and the related write-off of 
the goodwill associated with this investment. 

On January 1,2002, KeySpan adopted SFAS 142 "Goodwill and 
Other Intangible Assets". Under SFAS 142, among other things, good- 
will is no longer required to  be amortized and is to be tested for impair- 
ment at least annually. The initial impairment test was to  be performed 
within six months of adopting SFAS 142 using a discounted cash flow 
method, compared t o  a undiscounted cash flow method allowed under 
a previous standard. Any amounts impaired using data as of January 1, 
2002, was to  be recorded as a "Cumulative Effect of an Accounting 
Change." Any amounts impaired using data after the initial adoption 
date will be recorded as an operating expense. During the second quar- 
ter of 2002, we  completed our initial impairment analysis for all the 
reporting units and determined that no consolidated impairment exist- 
ed. In the fourth quarter of 2002, KeySpan updated its review of the 
carrying value of goodwill compared to  the fair value of the assets by 
reporting unit and determined that no impairment existed. 

In the fourth quarter of 2003, KeySpan updated its review of the 
carrying value of goodwill associated with the Energy Services segment. 
KeySpan employed a combination of two methodologies in determining 
the fair value for its investment in the Energy Services segment, a mar- 
ket valuation approach and an income valuation approach. A third party 
specialist was engaged to assist with the valuation and evaluate the 
reasonableness of key assumptions employed. Under the market valua- 
tion approach, KeySpan compared relevant financial information relating 
to the companies included in the Energy Services segment to the corre- 
sponding financial information for a peer group of companies in the 
specialty trade-contracting sector of the construction industry. Under 
the income valuation approach, the fair value of a firm is obtained by 
discounting the sum of (i) the expected future cash flows to a firm; and 
(ii) the terminal value of a firm. As a result of our valuation, manage- 
ment has determined that the fair value of the assets adequately 
exceeds their carrying value and no impairment charge was necessary. 

As required by SFAS 142, below is a reconciliation of reported 
earnings available for common stockholder? for the years ended 
December 31,2003, 2002 and 2001 and pro-forma net income, for the 
same periods, adjusted for the discontinuance of goodwill amortization. 

(In l'how~und o/ Dollari, Exrep!fm Per Skre Aaorintri 

Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001 

Earnings for common stockholders $380,886 8371,935 $218,350 
Add back: goodwill amortization* - - 49,550 
Adiusted net income $380.886 $371.935 $267.900 
Basic earnings per share $ 2.41 $ 2.63 $ 1.58 
Add back: goodwill amortization - - 0.36 
Adiusted basic earninas oer share $ 2.41 $ 2.63 $ 1.94 

2 8 

Diluted earnings per share $ 2.39 $ 2.61 $ 1.56 
Add back: goodwill amortization - - 0.36 
Adiusted diluted earninas Der share $ 2.39 $ 2.61 $ 1.92 
- - - - -- - - - - -- 

* Excludes the write-off of $12.4 million of goodwill in 2001 associated with 
the Roy Kay Operations. 

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2001, goodwill 
amortization was recorded in each segment as follows: Gas Distribution 
$35.6 million; Energy Services $8.2 million; and Energy lnvestments and 
other $5.8 million. 

Prior to implementation of SFAS 142, goodwill was reviewed 
for impairment under SFAS 121 "Accounting for the Impairment of 
Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets t o  be Disposed Of." Under 
SFAS 121, the carrying value of goodwill was reviewed if the facts and 
circumstances, such as significant declines in sales, earnings or cash 
flows, or material adverse changes in the business climate, suggested 
it might be impaired. If this review indicated that goodwill was not 
recoverable, as determined based upon the estimated undiscounted 
cash flows of the entity acquired, impairment was measured by compar- 
ing the carrying value of the investment in such entity to its fair value. 



G. Goodw i l l  and Othe r  In tang ib le  Assets 
The balance of goodwill and other intangible assets was 81.8 billion at 
December 31, 2003 and 2002, representing primarily the excess of 
acquisition cost over the fair value of net assets acquired. Goodwill and 
other intangible assets reflect the Eastern and EN1 acquisitions, the 
KeySpanILILCO transaction, as well as acquisitions of energy-related 
service companies and also relates to certain ownership interests of 50% 
or less in energy-related investments in Northern Ireland which are 
accounted for under the equity method. 

The table below summarizes the goodwill and other intangible 
assets balance for each segment at December 31, 2003 and 2002: 

f ln l'hourandr o/DoI/uri) 

Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 

Operating Segment 
Gas Distribution $1,436,917 $1,436,917 
Energy Services 172,874 148,596 
Energy Investments and other 199,921 210,712 

81.809.712 $1,796,225 

The increase in goodwill related to the Energy Services segment 
primarily reflects the acquisition of Bard, Rao t Athanas Consulting 
Engineers, LLC. ("BRtA"), a Boston, Massachusetts company engaged 
in the business of providing engineering services relating to heating, 
ventilation, and air conditioning systems. The purchase price was 
approximately $35 million, plus up to $14.7 million in contingent 
consideration depending on the financial performance of BRtA over 
the five-year period following the closing of the acquisition. We have 
recorded goodwill of  approximately $26 million and intangible assets of 
approximately $2 million associated with this transaction. The intangible 
assets, which relate primarily to  a portion of the backlog purchased, 
as well as to  non-compete agreements entered into with all of the 
former owners of BRtA, will be amortized over two and three years, 
respectively. 

The decrease in goodwill related t o  Energy lnvestments and other 
primarily reflects the sale of our 24.5% interest in Phoenix Natural 
Gas-Limited, located in Northern Ireland, and the related write-off of 
the goodwill associated with this investment. 

On January 1,2002, KeySpan adopted SFAS 142 "Goodwill and 
Other Intangible Assets". Under SFAS 142, among other things, good- 
will is no longer required to  be amortized and is to  be tested for impair- 
ment at least annually. The initial impairment test was to  be performed 
within six months of adopting SFAS 142 using a discounted cash flow 
method, compared t o  a undiscounted cash flow method allowed under 
a previous standard. Any amounts impaired using data as of January 1, 
2002, was to  be recorded as a "Cumulative Effect of  an Accounting 
Change." Any amounts impaired using data after the initial adoption 
date will be recorded as an operating expense. During the second quar- 
ter of 2002, we completed our initial impairment analysis for all the 
reporting units and determined that no consolidated impairment exist- 
ed. In the fourth quarter of 2002, KeySpan updated its review of the 
carrying value of goodwill compared to the fair value of the assets by 
reporting unit and determined that no impairment existed. 

In the fourth quarter of 2003, KeySpan updated its review of the 
carrying value of  goodwill associated with the Energy Services segment. 
KeySpan employed a combination of two methodologies in determining 
the fair value for its investment in the Energy Services segment, a mar- 
ket valuation approach and an income valuation approach. A third party 
specialist was engaged to assist with the valuation and evaluate the 
reasonableness of key assumptions employed. Under the market valua- 
tion approach, KeySpan compared relevant financial information relating 
to  the companies included in the Energy Services segment to  the corre- 
sponding financial information for a peer group of companies in the 
specialty trade-contracting sector of the construction industry. Under 
the income valuation approach, the fair value of a firm is obtained by 
discounting the sum of (i) the expected future cash flows to  a firm; and 
(ii) the terminal value of a firm. As a result of our valuation, manage- 
ment has determined that the fair value of the assets adequately 
exceeds their carrying value and no impairment charge was necessary. 

As required by SFAS 142, below is a reconciliation of  reported 
earnings available for common stockholdefi for the years ended 
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 and pro-forma net income, for the 
same periods, adjusted for the discontinuance of goodwill amortization. 

(In Thouiundr of Doiirrrr, Exrepiep, fw Pa Shun Amo#nrs) . . 
Year Ended December 31. 2003 2002 2001 

Earnings for common stockholders $380,886 $371,935 8218,350 
Add back: goodwill amortization* - - 49,550 

Adjusted net income $380,886 $371,935 $267,900 
Basic earnings per share $ 2.41 $ 2.63 $ 1.58 
Add back: goodwill amortization - - 0.36 
Adjusted basic earnings per share $ 2.41 $ 2.63 B 1.94 
Diluted earnings per share $ 2.39 8 2.61 $ 1.56 
Add back: ooodwill amortization - - 0.36 
Adjusted diluted earnings per share $ 2.39 $ 2.61 8 1.92 

* Excludes the write-off of $12.4 million ofgoodwillin 2001 associated with 
the Roy Kay Operations. 

For the twelve months ended December 31, 2001, goodwill 
amortization was recorded in each segment as follows: Gas Distribution 
$35.6 million; Energy Services $8.2 million; and Energy lnvestments and 
other 85.8 million. 

Prior to  implementation of SFAS 142, goodwill was reviewed 
for impairment under SFAS 121 "Accounting for the lmpairment of 
Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets t o  be Disposed Of." Under 
SFAS 121, the carrying value of  goodwill was reviewed if the facts and 
circumstances, such as significant declines in sales, earnings or cash 
flows, or material adverse changes in the business climate, suggested 
it might be impaired. If this review indicated that goodwill was not 
recoverable, as determined based upon the estimated undiscounted 
cash flows of the entity acquired, impairment was measured by compar- 
ing the carrying value of  the investment in such entity to  its fair value. 



Fair value was determined based on quoted market values, appraisals, 
or discounted cash flows. For the year ended December 31, 2001, we 
reviewed the facts and circumstances for the entities carrying goodwill 
and as a result of the above procedures, wrote off $12.4 million 
associated with the Roy Kay Companies upon determination that the 
asset was not recoverable. (See Note 10, "Roy Kay Operations" for 
additional information.) 

H. Hedg ing  and Derivative Financial lnstruments 
From time to  time, we employ derivative instruments to hedge a portion 
of our exposure to commodity price risk and interest rate risk, as well as 
to hedge cash flow variability associated with a portion of our peak 
electric energy sales. Whenever hedge positions are in effect, we are 
exposed to  credit risk in the event of nonperformance by counter-parties 
to derivative contracts, as well as nonperformance by the counter-parties 
of the transactions against which they are hedged. We believe that the 
credit risk related to the futures, options and swap instruments is no 
greater than that associated with the primary commodity contracts 
which they hedge. Our derivative instruments do not qualify as energy 
trading contracts as defined by current accounting literature. 

Financially-Settled Commodity Derivative Instruments: We employ 
derivative financial instruments, such as futures, options and swaps, for 
the purpose of hedging the cash flow variability associated with fore- 
casted purchases and sales of various energy-related commodities. All 
such derivative instruments are accounted for pursuant t o  the require- 
ments of SFAS 133 "Accounting for Derivative lnstruments and Hedging 
Activities," as amended by SFGS 149, "Amendment of Statement 133 
Derivative lnstruments and Hedging Activities" (collectively, "SFAS 
133"). With respect to those commodity derivative instruments that are 
designated and accounted for as cash flow hedges, the effective portion 
of periodic changes in the fair market value of cash flow hedges is 
recorded as other comprehensive income on the Consolidated Balance 
Sheet, while the ineffective portion of such changes in fair value is rec- 
ognized in earnings. Unrealized gains and losses (on such cash flow 
hedges) that are recorded as other comprehensive income are subse- 
quently reclassified into earnings concurrent when hedged transactions 
impact earnings. With respect t o  those commodity derivative instru- 
ments that are not designated as hedging instruments, such derivatives 
are accounted for on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at fair value, with 
all changes in fair value reported in earnings. 

Firm Gas Sales Derivatives lnstruments - Regulated Utilities: We 
utilize derivative financial instruments to reduce cash flow variability 
associated with the purchase price for a portion of our future natural 
gas purchases. Our strategy is t o  minimize fluctuations in firm gas sales 
prices to our regulated firm gas sales customers in our New York and 
New England service territories. Since these derivative instruments are 
being employed to  support our gas sales prices to  regulated firm gas 
sales customers, the accounting for these derivative instruments is 
subject to SFAS 71. Therefore, changes in the market value of these 

derivatives are recorded as regulatory assets or regulatory liabilities on 
our Consolidated Balance Sheet. Gains or losses on the settlement of 
these contracts are initially deferred and then refunded to or collected 
from our firm gas sales customers during the appropriate winter heating 
season consistent with regulatory requirements. 

Physically-Settled Commodity Derivative Instruments: Upon imple- 
mentation of Derivative Implementation Group ("DIG") Issue C16 on 
April 1, 2002, certain of our contracts for the physical purchase of natu- ' '  

ral gas were assessed as no longer being exempt from the requirements 
of SFAS 133 as normal purchases. As such, these contracts are recorded 
on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at fair market value. However, since 
such contracts were executed for the purchases of natural gas that is 
sold to regulated firm gas sales customers, and pursuant t o  the require- \ 
ments of SFAS 71, changes in the fair market value of these contracts 
are recorded as a regulatory asset or regulatory liability on the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet. 

Weather Derivatives: The utility tariffs associated with our New 
England gas distribution operations do not contain a weather normaliza- 
tion adjustment. As a result, fluctuations from normal weather may have 
a significant positive or negative effect on the results of these opera-., 
tions. To mitigate the effect of fluctuations from normal weather on 
our financial position and cash flows, we may enter into derivative 
instruments from time to  time. Based on the terms of the contracts, we 
account for these instruments pursuant to the requirements of Emerging 
Issues Task Force ("EITF") 99-2 "Accounting for Weather Derivatives." 
In this regard, we account for weather derivatives using the "intrinsic 
value method" as set forth in such guidance. 

Interest Rate Derivative Instruments: We continually assess the cost 
relationship between fixed and variable rate debt. Consistent with our 
objective to minimize our cost of capital, we periodically enter into 
hedging transactions that effectively convert the terms of underlying 
debt obligations from fixed to variable or variable to fixed. Payments 
made or received on these derivative contracts are recognized as an 
adjustment to interest expense as incurred. Hedging transactions that 
effectively convert the terms of underlying debt obligations from fixed to  
variable are designated and accounted for as fair-value hedges pursuant , 

to the requirements of SFAS 133. Hedging transactions that effectively 
convert the terms of underlying debt obligations from variable to  fixed I 

are considered cash flow hedges. 

I. Equity Investments 
Certain subsidiaries own as their principal assets, investments (including 
goodwill), representing ownership interests of 50% or less in energy- 
related businesses that are accounted for under the equity method. 
None of these investments are publicly traded 



I. Income and Excise Tax 
In accordance with SFAS 1 ?9, "Accounting for Income Taxes" and 
applicable rate regulation, certain of our regulated subsidiaries record a 
regulatory asset for the net cumulative effect of providing deferred 
income taxes on all differences between the financial statement carrying 
amounts of existing assets and liabilities, and their respective tax basis. 
Investment tax credits, which were available prior to  the Tax Reform Act 
of  1986, were deferred and generally amortized as a reduction of 
income tax over the estimated lives of the related property. 

We report our collections and payments of excise taxes on a gross 
basis. Gas distribution revenues include the collection of excise taxes, 
while operating taxes include the related expense. For the years ended 
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, excise taxes collected and paid 
were $90.5 million, $83.1 million, $1 19.1 million, respectively. 

K. Subsidiary Common Stock Issuances to Third Parties 
We follow an accounting policy of income statement recognition for 
parent company gains or losses from issuances of common stock by 
subsidiaries t o  unaffiliated third parties. 

I. Foreign Currency Translation 
We follow the principles of SFAS 52, "Foreign Currency  rans slat ion," for 
recording our investments in foreign affiliates. Under this statement, all 
elements of the financial statements are translated by using a current 

exchange rate. Translation adjustments result from changes in exchange 
rates from one reporting period to another. A t  December 31, 2003 and 
2002, the foreign currency translation adjustment was included on the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet. The functional currency for our foreign 
affiliates is their local currency. 

M. Earnings Per Share 
Basic earnings per share ("EPS") is calculated by dividing earnings for 
common stock by the weighted average number of shares of common 
stock outstanding during the period. No dilution for any potentially 
dilutive securities is included. Diluted EPS assumes the conversion of 
all potentially dilutive securities and is calculated by dividing earnings for 
common stock, as adjusted, by the sum of the weighted average 
number of shares of common stock outstanding plus all potentially 
dilutive securities. 

At December 31, 2003 we have approximately 2 million options 
outstanding to purchase KeySpan common stock that were not used in 
the calculation of diluted EPS since the exercise price associated with 
these options was greater than the average per share market price of 
Keyspan's common stock. Further, we have 85,676 shares of convertible 
preferred stock outstanding that can be converted into 221 , I  53 shares 
of common stock. These shares were not included in the calculation of 
diluted EPS for the year ending December 31, 2001 since to do so 
would have been anti-dilutive. 

Under the requirements of SFAS 128, "Earnings Per Share" our basic and diluted EPS are as follows: 

- - -- 

Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001 

Earnings for common stock $380,886 $371,935 $218,350 
Houston Exploration dilution (269) (47 1) (1,116) 
Preferred stock dividend 514 531 - 
Earnings for common stock - adjusted $381,131 $371,995 $21 7,234 
Weighted average shares outstanding (000) 158,256 141,263 138,214 
Add dilutive securities: 
Options 
Convertible preferred stock 221 228 - 
Total weighted average shares outstanding - assuming dilution 159,232 142,300 139,221 
Basic earnings per share $ 2.41 $ 2.63 $ 1.58 
Diluted earnings per share $ 2.39 $ 2.61 $ 1.56 



N. Stock Options and Other Stock Based Compensation 
We issue stock options to all KeySpan officers and certain other man- 
agement employees as approved by the Board of  Directors. These 
options generally vest over a three-to-five year period and have exercise 
periods between 5-10 years. Up to  approximately 21 million shares have 
been authorized for the issuance of options and approximately 7.0 mil- 
lion of these shares were remaining at December 31, 2003. Moreover, 
under a separate plan, Houston Exploration has issued and outstanding 
approximately 2.5 million stock options to  key Houston Exploration 
employees. KeySpan and Houston Exploration have adopted the 
prospective method of transition in accordance with SFAS 148 "Account- 
ing for Stock-Based Compensation - Transition and Disclosure." 
Accordingly, compensation expense has been recognized by employing 

the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS 123 "Accounting for Stock- 
Based Compensation" for grants awarded after January 1, 2003. 

KeySpan and Houston Exploration continue to  apply APB Opinion. 
25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees," and related 
Interpretations in accounting for grants awarded prior to  January 1, 
2003. Accordingly, no compensation cost has been recognized for these 
fixed stock option plans in the Consolidated Financial Statements since 
the exercise prices and market values were equal on the grant dates. 
Had compensation cost for these plans been determined based on the 
fair value at the grant dates for awards under the plans consistent with 
SFAS 123, our net income and earnings per share would have decreased 
to the pro-forma amounts indicated below: 

- -  pp~ppp - - -- p-ppppp -- - 

lln Thonnndi of Dollan. Excebt Per Shan Amoirnrrl 

Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001 

Earnings available for common stock: 
As reported $380,886 $371,935 $218,350 

Add: recorded stock-based compensation expense, net of tax 3,650 221 261 
Deduct: total stock-based compensation expense, net of tax (9,358) (7,547) (8,459) 

Pro-forma earnings $375,178 $364,609 $210,152 
Earnings per share: 

Basic - as reported $ 2.41 $ 2.63 $ 1.58 
Basic - pro-forma $ 2.37 $ 2.58 $ 1.52 

Diluted - as reported $ 2.39 $ 2.61 $ 1.56 
Diluted - pro-forma $ 2.36 $ 2.56 $ 1.50 

All grants are estimated on the date of the grant using the Black- 
Scholes option-pricing model, The following table presents the weighted 
average fair value, exercise price and assumptions used for the periods 
indicated: 

Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001 

Fair value of grants issued $ 4 . 2 6  $ 3 . 4 2  $ 5 . 2 9  
Dividend yield 5.49% 5.36% 4.91 % 
Expected volatility 24.26% 22.47% 29.04% 
Risk free rate 3.16% 4.94% 5.13% 
Expected lives 6 years 10 years 10 years 
Exercise price $ 32.40 $ 32.66 $ 39.50 



A summary of  the status o f  our fixed stock option plans and changes is presented below for the periods indicated: 

Year Ended December 31, 
-- 

2003 2002 2001 
Weighted Average Weighted Average Weighted Average 

Fixed Options - 

Outstanding at beginning of period 
Granted during the year 
Exercised 

Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price 

9,524,900 $30.74 7,796,162 529.67 6,456,627 $25.61 

Forfeited -- - - (1 89,705) $34.63 (560,778) $30.99 i1  35,832) -- $29.19 
Outstanding at end of period -- 10,320,743 $31.39 9,524,900 $30.74 7,796,162 ~ -- 529.67 
Exercisable at end of period 5,365,545 $28.76 4,105,999 $27.69 2,996,771 424.86 

Remaining Options Outstanding Weighted Average Range of Options Exercisable a t  Weighted Average Range of 
Contractual Life a t  December 31, 2003 Exercise Price Exercise Price December 31, 2003 Exercise Price -- Exercise Price 

- 

2 years 
3 years 
4 years 
5 years 
6 years 
7 years 
8 years 
9 years 
10 years 

In early 2003, Keyspan's Board of  Directors approved a modifica- 
t ion t o  the Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan design and its 
application t o  officers of  KeySpan. Long-term incentive compensation 
for officers consist of 50% stock options and 50% performance shares. 
Performance shares will be awarded based upon the attainment of 
overall corporate performance goals and will better align incentive 
compensation wi th  overall corporate performance. During 2002, and in 
prior years, the majority of long-term incentive compensation awards 
were stock option grants w i th  a limited amount o f  restricted stock 
award grants. 

0. Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") 
issued FASB Interpretation No. 46 ("FIN 46,") "Consolidation of Variable 
Interest Entities, an Interpretation of  ARB No. 51" which was revised in 
December 2003. FIN 46 requires certain variable interest entities to  be 
consolidated by the primary beneficiary of the entity if the equity 
investors in the entity do not have the characteristics of a controlling 
financial interest or do no t  have sufficient equity a t  risk for the entity t o  

finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support 
from other parties. FIN 46 was effective for all new variable interest enti- 
ties created or acquired after January 31, 2003. For variable interest 
entities created or acquired prior to February I ,  2003, the original 
provisions of FIN 46 were to  be applied for the first interim or annual 
period beginning after June 15, 2003. In October, the FASB delayed 
implementation of  FIN 4 6  until the fourth quarter 2003 for certain vari- 
able interest entities. We currently have an arrangement w i th  a variable 
interest entity through which we  lease a portion of the Ravenswood 
facility. As required by FIN 46, this variable entity was consolidated a t  
December 31, 2003. (See Note 7, "Contractual Obligations, Financial 
Guarantees and Contingencies - Variable Interest Entity" for a detailed 
description of this leasing arrangement.) 

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS 149, "Amendment of  
Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities." This 
Statement amends and clarifies financial accounting and reporting for 
derivative instruments, including certain instruments embedded in other 



contracts and for hedging activities under Statement No. 133, 
"Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities." This 
Statement: (i) clarifies under what circumstances a contract with an 
initial net investment meets the characteristic of a derivative; (ii) clarifies 
when a derivative contains a financing component; (iii) amends the 
definition of an underlying; and (iv) amends certain other existing 
pronouncements. The implementation of this Statement will not have a 
significant impact on our results of operations, financi;~ condition or 
cash flows since our derivative instruments that meet the definition 
of a derivative and qualify for hedge accounting treatment will continue 
to  do so. The Statement was effective for contracts entered into or 
modified after June 30, 2003. 

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS 150, "Accounting for Certain 
Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity." 
This Statement establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and 
measures certain financial instruments with characteristics of both liabili- 
ties and equity. It requires that an issuer classify certain financial instru- 
ments as a liability (or an asset in some circumstances) when there is an 
obligation toredeem the issuer's shares and either requires or may 
require satisfaction of the obligation by transferring assets, or satisfy the 
obligation by issuing additional equity shares subject to certain criteria. 
This Statement was effective for financial instruments entered into or 
modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise was effective at the begin- 
ning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. It is to be 
implemented by reporting the cumulative effect of a change in an 
accounting principle for financial instruments created before the 
issuance date of the Statement and still existing at the beginning of the 
interim period of adoption. The implementation of this Statement did 
not have an impact on our results of operations, financial condition or 
cash flows. 

In July 2003, the FASB concluded its discussions on ElTF 03-1 1 
"Reporting Realized Gains and Losses on Derivative Instruments That 
Are Subject to  FASB Statement No. 133 Accounting for Derivative 
Instruments and Hedging Activities and Not Held for Trading Purposes 
as Defined in ElTF Issue No. 02-3 Issues lnvolved in Accounting for 
Derivative Contracts held for Trading Purposes and Contracts lnvolved in 
Energy Trading and Risk Management Activities." The Task Force 
reached a consensus that determining whether realized gains or losses 
on physically settled derivative contracts not "held for trading purposes" 
should be reported in the income statement on a gross or net basis 
is a matter of judgment that depends on the relevant facts and 
circumstances. KeySpan reports realized gains or losses on its derivative 
instruments that hedge the cash flow variability associated with the 
forecasted sales of natural gas and electricity in its reported revenues 
at time of their settlement. Realized gains or losses on derivative 
instruments that hedge the cash flow variability associated with the 
forecasted purchase of natural gas or fuel oil are reported in operating 

' 1 '  ,: . 
1 . : .  

expense. We believe that this ElTF does not have a significant impact 
i 

on our results of operations, financial condition or cash flows. This 
Statement was effective October 1, 2003. 

In December 2003, the FASB issued SFAS 132 (revised 2003) i 
"Employers' Disclosures about Pensions and Other Postretirement 
Benefits." This Statement revises employers' disclosures about pension 
and other postretirement benefit plans. This Statement retains the dis- 
closure requirements contained in FASB Statement 132 "Employers' 

. \ 
Disclosures about Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits", which it 
replaces. It requires additional disclosures to those in the original 
Statement 132 about assets, obligations, cash flows, and net periodic 
benefit cost of defined benefit pension plans and other defined benefit 
postretirement plans. KeySpan has implemented all the requirements of .. 

this Statement in ~ootnote 4 "Postretirement Benefits." 

f !  Impact o f  Change in Account ing Principles 
KeySpan has an arrangement with a variable interest entity through 
which it leases'a portion of the 2,200-megawatt Ravenswood electric 
generation facility. On December 31, 2003, KeySpan adopted FIN 46. 
This pronouncement required KeySpan to consolidate its variable interest 
entity, which had a fair market value of a $425 million at the inception 
of the lease, June 1999. As a result, KeySpan recorded a $37.6 million 
after-tax charge, or $0.23 per share, change in accounting principle on 
the Consolidated Statement of Income, representing approximately four 
and a half years of depreciation. (See Note 7, "Contractual Obligations, 
Financial Guarantees and Contingencies - Variable Interest Entity" for a 
detailed description of the impact of the adoption of this standard.) 

On January 1, 2003, KeySpan adopted SFAS 143, "Accounting for 
Asset Retirement Obligations." SFAS 143 requires an entity to record a 
liability and corresponding asset representing the present value of legal 
obligations associated with the retirement of tangible, long-lived assets. 
The cumulative effect of SFAS 143 and the change in accounting princi- 
ple was a benefit to net income of $0.2 million, after-tax (See Note 7, 
"Contractual Obligations, Financial Guarantees and Contingencies - 
Asset Retirement Obligation" for further details.) 

Under Accounting Principle Board Opinion No. 20 ("APB 207, the 
pro-forma impact of the retroactive application resulting from the adop- 
tion of a change in accounting principle is to  be disclosed as follows: 



- -  - - -~ ~~~ - - - 

(In Thournndr o,fDoilirrs, Exrrpt Pn Shan Amounrr) 

Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001 

Earnings for common stock $380,886 $371,935 $218,350 
Add back: Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle 37,451 - - 

Earnings for common stock before cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle: 
As reported 418,337 371,935 218,350 

Less: SFAS 143 Accretion expense, net of taxes - (1,135) (1,067) 
Less: FIN 46 Depreciation expense, net of taxes (9,538) (8,024) (8,024) 
Add: SFAS 143 Costs of removal expense, net of taxes - 

Pro-forma earninas $408.799 

Earnings per share before cumulative change in accounting principle: 
Basic - as reported 
Basic - pro-forma 

Diluted - a s  reported 
Diluted - oro-forma 

Earnings per share for common stock: 
Basic - as reported 
Basic - pro-forma 

Q. Accumula ted O the r  Comprehensive Income generating facilities located on Long Island; and manage fuel supplies 
As required by SFAS 130, "Reporting Comprehensive Income", the com- for LlPA to fuel our Long Island generating facilities. These services are 

- ponents of accumulated other comprehensive income are as follows: provided in accordance with long-term service contracts having remain- 

(In Thhowandr a/ Dollars) 

Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 

Foreign currency translation adjustments $ 26,523 $ (2,173) 
Unrealized (losses) on marketable securities (7,530) (1 6,012) 
Premium on derivative instrument (3,437) - 

Accrued unfunded pension obligation (60,650) (69,031) 
Unrealized (losses) on derivative financial instruments (23,546) (21,207) 
Accumulated other comprehensive income $(68,640) $(108,423) 

NOTE 2. BUSINESS SEGMENTS 
We have four reportable segments: Gas Distribution, Electric Services, 
Energy Services and Energy Investments. 

- ~ - ~ 

The Gas Distribution segment consists of our six gas distribution 
subsidiaries. KEDNY provides gas distribution services to  customers in 
the New York City ~6roughs of Brooklyn, Staten Island and a portion 
of the Borough of Queens. KEDLl provides gas distribution services to 
customers in the Long lsland counties of Nassau and Suffolk and the 
Rockaway Peninsula of Queens County. The remaining gas distribution 
subsidiaries, collectively doing business as KEDNE, provide gas distri- 
bution service t o  customers in Massachusetts and New Hampshire. 

The Electric Services segment consists of subsidiariesthat: operate 
the electric transmission and distribution system owned by LIPA; 
own and provide capacity to  and produce energy for LIPA from our 

ing terms that range from three to  eleven years and power purchase 
agreements for 25 years. The Electric Services segment also includes 
subsidiaries that own, lease and operate the 2,200 megawatt 
Ravenswood electric generation facility located in Queens, New York. 
All of the energy, capacity and ancillary services related to the 
Ravenswood facility is sold to  the NYlSO energy markets. KeySpan is 
currently analyzing proposals from interested investors to  participate 
in a leveraged lease financing of a new 250 MW combined cycle 
electric generating facility located at the existing Ravenswood facility 
site. (See Note 15, "Subsequent Events" for further details.) 

The Energy Services segment includes companies that provide 
energy-related and a minimal amount of fiber optic services to  
customers primarily located within the Northeastern United States, 
with concentrations in the New York City metropolitan area, including 
New Jersey and Connecticut, as well as Rhode Island, Pennsylvania, 
Massachusetts and New Hampshire, through the following lines of 
business: (i) Home Energy Services, which provides residential customers 
with service and maintenance of energy systems and appliances, as well 
as the retail marketing of electricity to commercial customers; and 
(ii) Business Solutions, which provides plumbing, heating, ventilation, 
air conditioning and mechanical services, as well as operation and 
maintenance; 'design, engineering and consulting services to  commercial 
and industrial customers. 



In 2003, KeySpan Services, Inc. and its wholly-owned subsidiary 
Paulus, Sokolowski, and Sartor, LLC. acquired Bard, Rao + Athanas 
Consulting Engineers, LLC. ("BRtA"), a Boston, Massachusetts company 
engaged in the business of providing engineering services relating to  
heating, ventilation, and air conditioning systems. The purchase price 
was approximately $35 million, plus up to $14.7 million in contingent 
consideration depending on the financial performance of BR+A over 
the five-year period following the closing of the acquisition. We have 
recorded goodwill of $26 million and intangible assets of $2 million 
associated with this transaction. The intangible assets, which relate pri- 
marily to a portion of the backlog purchased, as well as to non-compete 
agreements entered into with all of the former owners of BR+A, will 
be amortized over two and three years, respectively. In 2003, Keyspan's 
gas and electric marketing subsidiary, KeySpan Energy Services Inc., 
assigned the majority of its retail natural gas customers, consisting 
mostly of residential and small commercial customers, to ECONnergy 
Energy Co., Inc. ("ECONnergy"). KeySpan Energy Services will continue 
its electric marketing activities. 

The Energy Investments segment consists of our gas exploration 
and production investments, as well as certain other domestic and inter- 
national energy-related investments. Our gas exploration and production 
subsidiaries are engaged in gas and oil exploration and production, 
and the development and acquisition of domestic natural gas and oil 
properties. These investments consist of our 55% equity interest in 
The Houston Exploration Company ("Houston Exploration"), an inde- 
pendent natural gas and oil exploration company, as well as our 
wholly-owned subsidiary KeySpan Exploration and Production, LLC, 
our wholly owned subsidiary engaged in a joint venture with Houston 
Exploration. In February 2003, we reduced our ownership interest in 
Houston Exploration from 66% to approximately 55% following the 
repurchase, by Houston Exploration, of three million shares of common 
stock owned by KeySpan. We realized net proceeds of $79 million in 
connection with this repurchase. KeySpan follows an accounting policy 
of income statement recognition for Parent company gains or losses 
from common stock transactions initiated by its subsidiaries. As a 
result, KeySpan realized a gain of $19 million on this transaction, which 
is reflected in other income and (deductions) on the Consolidated 
Statement of  Income. Income taxes were not provided, since this trans- 
action was structured as a return of capital. 

In the fourth quarter of 2003, Houston Exploration acquired the 
entire Gulf of Mexico shallow-water asset base of Transworld Explor- 
ation and Production, Inc. for $149 million. The properties, which are 
75% natural gas, have proven reserves of 92 billion cubic feet of natural 
gas equivalent. Current production from 11 fields is approximately 35 
million cubic feet of natural gas equivalent per day. Houston Exploration 
funded the transaction from its bank revolving credit facility and with 
cash on hand at the time of closing. 

Subsidiaries in this segment also hold a 20% equity interest in the 
Iroquois Gas Transmission System LP, a pipeline that transports Canadian 

gas supply to  markets in the Northeastern United States; and a 
50% interest in the Premier Transmission Pipeline Limited in Northern 
Ireland. These subsidiaries are accounted for under the equity method. 
Accordingly, equity income from these investments is reflected as a 
component of operating income in the Consolidated Statement of 
Income. In the fourth quarter of 2003, we completed the sale of our 
24.5% interest in Phoenix Natural Gas-Limited for $96 million and 
recorded a pre-tax gain of $24.7 million in other income and (deduc- 
tions) on the Consolidated Statement of Income. 

We also have investments in certain midstream natural gas assets 
in Western Canada through KeySpan Canada. These assets include 14 
processing plants and associated gathering systems that can process 
approximately 1.5 BCFe of natural gas daily and provide associated nat- 
ural gas liquids fractionation. In 2003, we sold a portion of our interest 
in KeySpan Canada through the establishment of an open-ended 
income fund trust ("KeySpan Facilities Income Fund" or the "Fund") 
organized under the laws of Alberta, Canada. The Fund acquired a 
39.09% ownership interest in KeySpan Canada through an indirect sub- 
sidiary, and then issued 17 million trust units to the public through an 
initial public offering. Each trust unit represents a beneficial interest in 
the Fund and is registered on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the 
symbol KEY.UN. Additionally, we sold our 20% interest in Taylor NGL LP 
that owns and operates two extraction plants also in Canada to  AltaGas 
Services, Inc. Net proceeds of $1  19.4 million from the two sales, plus 
proceeds of $45.7 million drawn under a new credit facility made avail- 
able to KeySpan Canada, were used to pay down existing KeySpan 
Canada credit facilities of $160.4 million. A pre-tax loss of $30.3 million 
was recognized on the transactions and is included in other income and 
(deductions) on the Consolidated Statement of  Income. These transac- 
tions produced atax expense of $3.8 million as a result of certain 

" 

United States partnership tax rules and resulted in an after-tax loss of 
$34.1 million. In February 2004, KeySpan entered into an agreement to 
sell an additional 36% of its interest in KeySpan Canada. (See Note 15, 
to the Consolidated Financial Statements "Subsequent Events.") 

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those 
used for the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
Our segments are strategic business units that are managed separately 
because of their different operating and regulatory environments. 
Operating results of our segments are evaluated by management on an 
operating income basis. Due to the July 2002 sale of Midland Enter- 
prises LLC, an inland marine barge business, this subsidiary is reported. 
as discontinued operations for 2002 and 2001. (See Note 9 "Discontin- 
ued Operations" for more information on the sale of Midland). 



The reportable segment information below is shown excluding the operations of Midland: 

11s j. h u ~ a n a i  o jDoiho)  

Gas Electric Energy Gar Exploration Other 
Distribution Services Services and Production Investments Eliminations Consolidated 

Year Ended December 31,2003 
Unaffiliated revenue 4,161,272 1,503,086 641,432 501,255 108,116 - 6,915,161 
Intersegment revenue - 101 8,158 - 5,008 (13,267) - 

Depreciation, depletion 

and amortizarion 259,934 66,843 9,869 204,102 19,046 14,280 574,074 
Sales of property 15,123 - - - - 15,123 
Income from equity investments - - - - 19,106 108 19,214 
Operating income 574,254 268,977 (38,066) 197,209 41,345 (2,062) 1,041,657 
Interest income 1,194 4,628 1,070 - 1,002 (2,235) 5,659 
Interest charges 203,733 43,065 16,863 8,504 7,541 27,988 307,694 
Total assets 8,444,071 2,473,076 445,534 1,530,875 91 5,383 81 7,845 14,626,784 
Equity method investments - - - - 97,018 - 97,018 
Construction expenditures 419,549 256,498 9,305 295,943 18,154 12,267 1,011,716 

Eliminating items include ~ntercompany Interest income and expense, the elimination of certain intercompany accounts, as well as activities of our corpora!e and 
administrative subs~diaries. 

Electric Services revenues irom LlPA and the NYlSO of $1.5 billion ior the year ended December 31, 2003, represents approximately 22% of our consolidated revenues 
during that period. 

( I? Thniiinnd~ i,qiDoi/ao) 

Gas Electric Enerav Gas Ex~loration Other 
Distribution Services 

Year Ended December 31,2002 
Unaffiliated revenue 

lntersegment revenue 

Depreciation, depletion and 

amortization 

Sales of property 

lncome from equity invest men!^ 
Operating income 

lnterest income 

Interest charges 

Total assets 

Equity method investments 

-, 

Services and production Investments Eliminations Consolidated 
-- 

Construction ex~enditures 41 2.433 348.147 11.648 241.477 31 243  16.074 1.061.022 

Eliminatmng items include intercompany interest income and expense and the elimination of certain intercompany accounts as well as activities of our corporate 
and administrative subsidiaries. 

Ekctric Services revenues from LlPA and the NYlSO of $1.4 billion for the year ended December 31, 2002 represents approximate!y 24% of our consolidated revenues 
during that period. 



. -. 

Distribution Services Services and ~rbduction Investments Eliminations Consolidated 
Year Ended December 31, 2001 
Unaffiliated revenue 3,613,551 1,42 1,079 1,100,167 400,03 1 98,287 - 6,633,115 
Intersegment revenue - 100 - - - (100) - 

Depreciation, depletion 
and amortization 253,523 52,284 33,636, 184,717 15,737 19,241 559,138 

Income from equity investments - - - - 13.1 29 - 13,129 

Operating income 48 1,393 269,721 (147,485) 159,661 19,122 31,366 813,778 
Interest income 3,879 433 3,185 - 334 495 8,326 
Interest charges 219,307 46,842 21,106 2,993 9,772 53,450 353,470 
Total assets 6,994,140 1,677,710 550,891 951,135 797,294 818,436 1 1,789,606 
Equity method investments - - - - 107,069 - 107,069 
Construction expenditures 384,323 211,816 17,134 385,463 52,513 8,510 1,059,759 

Elim~nating items include intercompany interest income and expense and the elimination of cerfain intercompany accounts as well as activities of our corporate 
and administrative subsidiaries. 

Electric Services revenues from llPA and the AiYlSO of $1.4 billion for the year ended December 3 1, 2001 represents approximately 2 I % of our consolidated revenues during that period 

NOTE 3. INCOME TAX 
KeySpan files a consolidated federal income tax return. A tax sharing 
agreement between the holding company and its subsidiaries provides 
for the allocation of a realized tax liability or benefit based upon sepa- 
rate return contributions of each subsidiary t o  the consolidated taxable 
income or loss in the consolidated income tax return. The subsidiaries 
record income tax payable or receivable from KeySpan resulting from 
the inclusion of their taxable income or loss in the consolidated return. 

lncome tax expense is reflected as follows in the Consolidated 
Statement of Income: 

Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001 

Current income tax $(104,355) $ (24,212) 8101,738 
Deferred income tax 381.666 267.691 108.955 
Total income tax B 277,311 $243,479 8210,693 

At December 31, the significant components of the KeySpan's 
deferred tax assets and liabilities calculated under the provisions of SFAS 
No. 109 "Accounting for lncome Taxes" were as follows: 

ieserves not currently deductible % 34,342 8 38,275 
dew York corporation income tax (56,188) (13,997) 
'roperty related differences (1,049,237) (818,116) 
egulatory tax asset (16,532) (18,690) 
'operty taxes (98,089) (52,339) 
ther items - net (87,947) (1 2,146) 
~t deferred tax liability $(1,273,651) $(877,013) 

During the year ended December 31, 2002, an adjustment to 
deferred income taxes of 81 77.7 million was recorded t o  reflect a decrease 
in the tax basis of the assets acquired at the time of the KeySpantLILCO 
combination. This adjustment resulted from a revised valuation study. 
Concurrent with this deferred tax adjustment, KeySpan reduced current 
income taxes payable by $183.2 million, resulting in a net $5.5 million 
income tax benefit. Currently, the Internal Revenue Service is auditing 
KeySpan's tax r e t k  pertaining to the KeySpanILILCO combination, as 
well as other return years. At this time, we cannot predict the outcome 
of the ongoing audit. 

The federal income tax amounts included in the Statement of 
lncome differ from the amounts which result from applying the statutory 
federal income tax rate to income before income tax. 

The table below sets forth the reasons for such differences: 

( I n  Th,,uiund! oJDol1or~) 

Year Ended December 31. 2003 200.2 2001 

Computed at the statutory rate $245,522 $224,290 $1 59,035 
Adjustments related to: 
Tax credits - (1,026) (1,100) 
Removal costs (6,592) (4,787) (1,470) 
Accrual to return adjustment 549 (9,539) 2,354 
Goodwill amortization - - 21,126 
Minority interest in 

Houston Exploration 19,969 9,490 13,862 
State income tax 28,462 42,125 26,418 
Other items - net (1 0,599) (1 7,074) (9,532) 
Total income tax $277,311 $243,479 $210,693 
Effective income tax rate (1) 40 % 38% 46% 

(1) Reflects both federal as well as state income taxes 



Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001 

Pension Plans: The foliowing information represents the consolidated 
results for our noncontributory defined benefit pension plans which 
cover substantially all employees. Benefits are based on years of service 
and compensation. Funding for pensions is in accordance with require- 
ments of federal law and regulations. KEDLl and Boston Gas Company 
are subject to certain deferral accounting requirements mandated by the 
NYPSC and DTE, respectively for pension costs and other postretirement 
benefit costs. 

Information pertaining to discontinued operations has been exclud- 
ed from this presentation. 

The calculation of net periodic pension cost is as follows: 

Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 200 1 -- 

Service cost, benefits earned 
during the period $ 47,531 $42,423 % 41,162 

Interest cost on projected 
benefit obligation 138,270 132,424 128,481 

Expected return on plan assets (130,556) (1 57,958) (180,757) 
Net amortization and deferral 66.949 (4.247) 139.772) 
Total pension (benefit) cost $122,194 $1 2,642 $(50,886) 

The following table sets forth the pension plans' funded status at 
December 31,2003 and December 31, 2002. 

( I n  Thuwiond: o/DoN'ro) 

Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 

change in benefit obligation: 
Benefit obligation at 

beginning of period $(2,080,193) $(1,915,154) 
j e~ i ce  cost (47,531) (42,423) 
iterest cost (138,270) (1 32,424) 
,mendvents (3,079) 0,932) 
ctuarial (loss) (192,617) (103,988) 
mefits paid 
~nefit oblioation at end of ~eriod 
ange in p!an assets: 
, value of plan assets at 
leginning of period 1,544,518 1,899,256 
~ a l  return on plan assets 335,757 (347,270) 
lloyer contribution 93,458 109,260 
?fits paid (1 18,494) (1 16,728) 
lalue of plan assets at end of period 1,855,239 1,544,518 
?d status (487,957) (535,675) 
ogn~zed net loss from past experience 
'erent from that assumed and from 
nges in assumptions 557,204 627,199 
lgnized prior service cost 64,925 71,126 
gnized transition obligation - 237 
paid pension cost reflected on 
Aidated balance sheet B 134,172 $ 162,887 

Assumptions: 
Obligation discount 6.25% 6.75% 7.00% 
Asset return 8.50% 8.50% 8.50% 
Average annual increase 

in compensation 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 

Unfunded Pension Obligation: At December 31, 2003 the accumulat- 
ed benefit obligation was in excess of pension assets. As prescribed by 
SFAS 87 "Employers' Accounting for Pensions," KeySpan had a $244.4 
million minimum liability at December 31, 2003, for this unfunded 
pension obligation. As permitted under current accounting guidelines, 
these accruals can be offset by a corresponding debit to long-term asset 
up to the amount of accumulated unrecognized prior service costs. Any 
remaining amount is to be recorded inother comprehensive income on 
the Consolidated Balance Sheet. 

Therefore, at year-end, we had a long-term asset in deferred 
charges other of $55.3 million, representing the amount of unrecog- 
nized prior service cost and a debit to other comprehensive income of 
$93.3 million, or $60.6 million after-tax. The remaining amount of 
$95.8 was recorded as a contractual receivable, representing the 
amount that would have been recovered from LIPA in accordance with 
our service agreements if the underlying assumptions giving rise to this 
minimum liability were realized and recorded as pension expense. 

At December 31, 2003 the projected benefit obligation, accumu- 
lated benefit obligation and value of assets for plans with accumulated 
benefit obligations in excess of pian assets were $1.2 billion, $1.1 billion 
and 8794 million. 

At December 31, 2002, the accumulated benefit obligation was 
also in excess of pension assets. As a result, we had an additional mini- 
mum liability of $286.3 million, a long-term asset in deferred charges 
other of $61.5 million, and a debit to other comprehensive income of 
$106.2 million, or $69.0 million after-tax. The remaining amount of 
81 18.6 was recorded as a contractual receivable from LIPA. 

At December 31, 2002 the projected benefit obligation, accumu- 
lated benefit obligation and value of assets for plans with accumulated 
benefit obligations in plan assets were $1 .I billion, $948 million and 
5621 million, respectively. 

At the end of the year, we will re-measure the accumulated benefit 
obligation and pension assets, and adjust the accrual and deferrals as 
appropriate. 

Other Postretirement Benefits: The following information represents 
the consolidated results for our noncontributory defined benefit 
plans covering certain health care and life insurance benefits for retired 
employees. We have been funding a portion of future benefits over 
employees' active service lives through Voluntary Employee Beneficiary 
Association ("VEBA") trusts. Contributions to VEBA trusts are tax 
deductible, subject to limitations contained in the Internal Revenue Code. 



Net periodic other postretirement benefit cost included the follow- 
ing components: 

~~ ~~ 

(iri Thouiendi of Doilur~) 
Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001 

Service cost, benefits earned 
during the period $18,825 $16,566 $20,339 

Interest cost on accumulated 
postretirement benefit obligation 69,803 65,486 64,649 

Expected return on plan assets (27,530) (36,839) (42,822) 
Net amortization and deferral 35,815 17,527 1 1,664 
Other postretirement cost $96,913 $62,740 $53,830 

The following table sets forth the plans' funded status at 
December 31, 2003 and December 31,2002. 

[In Thournndi of Doliars) 
Year Ended December 31. 2003 2002 

Change in benefit obligation: 
Benefit obligation at beginning of period $(1,056,944) 8(969,692) 
Service cost (1 8,825) (1 6,566) 
Interest cost (69,803) (65,486) 
Plan participants' contributions (1,757) (1,587) 
Amendments 35,458 57,984 
Actuarial (loss) (209,446) (1 15,563) 
Benefits paid 53,693 53,966 
Benefit obligation at end of period (1,267,624) (1,056,944) 

Change in plan assets: 
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period 361,166 476,146 
Actual return on plan assets 85,625 (82,950) 
Employer contribution 43,578 20,349 
Plan participants' contributions 1,757 1,587 
Benefits paid (53,693) (53,966) 
Fair value of plan assets at end of period 438,433 361,166 

Funded status (829,191) (695,778) 
Unrecognized net loss from past experience 

different from that assumed and from 
changes in assumptions 573,277 464,269 

Unrecognized prior sewice cost (89,034) (60,104) 
Accrued postretirement cost reflected on 

consolidated balance sheet $ (344,948) $(291,613) 

Year Ended December 31. 2003 2002 2001 

Assumptions: 
Obligation discount 6.25% 6.75% 7.00% 
Asset return 8.50% 8.50% 8.50% 
Average annual increase 

in comoensation 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 

t 
The measurement of plan liabilities also assumes a health care cost " 

trend rate of 11 % grading down to  5% over five years, and 5%-there-. ,, 

after. A 1 % increase in the health care cost trend rate would have the 

as of December 31, 2003 by $149.9 million and the net periodic health 

i: effect of increasing the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation , 

care expense by $1 2.3 million. A 1 % decrease in the health care cost 
trend rate would have the effect of decreasing the accumulated postre- I/ ' I tirement benefitobligation as of December 31, 2003 by $1 31.8 million ? 

-?\ 
and the net periodic health care expense by $10.5 million. 

At  December 31, 2003, KeySpan had a contractual receivable from 
LlPA of $226.3 million representing the postretirement benefits associat- !,: 

ed with the electric business unit employees recorded in deferred 
charges other on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. LlPA has been reim- , 
bursing us for costs related t o  the postretirement benefits of the electric i'. 

business unit employees in accordance with the LIPA Agreements. . i-l 
KeySpanls retiree health benefit plan currently includes a prescrip- 

tion drug benefit that is provided to  retired employees. In December : ) 2003, new Medicare legislation (the Medicare Prescription Drug, 
1,; 

Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 - "the Medicare Act") 
was enacted that may ultimately affect KeySpan's obligations and 
expense related to retiree health benefits. Keyspan has elected to  defer 
accounting for the effects of the Medicare Act, as permitted by FASB 
Staff Position 106-1 "Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related 
to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act 

\ 
of 2003". Therefore, any measure of the accumulated postretirement 
benefit obligation or retiree benefit costs reflected in the accompanying 
notes do not reflect the effects of this new legislation. In consideration 
of this new law, KeySpan may need to amend certain benefit plans and, 
therefore, the impact of the Medicare Act on KeySpan's financial condi- 
tion and cash flows can not be determined with any degree of  certainty 
at this time. Further, the FASB will be issuing specific guidance on the 
accounting for the subsidy arising under the Medicare Act and that 
guidance, when issued, could require KeySpan to  change previously 
reported information. 

PensionlOther Post Retirement Benefit Plan Assets: Keyspan's 
weighted average asset allocations at December 31, 2003 and 2002, by 
asset category, for both the pension and other postretirement benefit 
plans are as follows: 

Pension OPE0 
2003 2002 2003 2002 

Asset Category 
Equity securities 61 % 54% 68% 60% 
Debt securities 31 % 30% 26% 28% 
Cash and equivalents 2% 8 % 2 % 7 % 
Venture capital 6% 8% 4% 5 % 
Total 100% 100% 100% 100% 



The long-term rate of return on assets (pre-tax) is assumed to be 
8.5% which management believes is an appropriate long-term expected 
rate of return on assets based on our investment strategy, asset alloca- 
tion mix and the historical performance of equity investments over long 
periods of time. The actual ten- year compound rate of return for our 
Plans is greater than 8.5%. 

Our master trust investment allocation policy target for the assets 
of the pension and other postretirement benefit plans is 70% equity 
and 30% fixed income. 

During 2003, KeySpan conducted an asset and liability study pro- 
jecting asset returns and expected benefit payments over a ten-year 
period. Based on the results of the study, KeySpan has developed a 
multi-year funding strategy for its plans. We believe that it is reasonable 
to assume assets can achieve or outperform the assumed long-term 
rate of return with the target allocation as a result of historical 
out-performance of equity investments over long-term periods. 

Cash Contributions: In 2004, KeySpan is expected to contribute 
approximately $89 million to its pension plans and approximately 858 
million to its other postretirement benefit plans. 

Defined Contribution Plan: KeySpan also offers both its union and 
management employees a defined contribution plan. Both the KeySpan 
Energy 401 (k) Plan for Management Employees and the KeySpan Energy 
401(k) Plan for Union Employees are available to all eligible employees. 
These Plans are defined contribution plans subject to Title I of the 
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 ("ERISA"). All eligible 
employees contributing to the Plan receive a certain employer matching 
contribution based on a percentage of the employee contribution, as 
well as a 10% discount on the KeySpan Common Stock Fund. The 
matching contributions are in KeySpan's common stock. For the years 
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, we recorded an expense of 
81 1.2 million, $1 1.2 million, and $1 1.0 million respectively. 

Common Stock: Currently we have 450,000,000 shares of authorized 
common stock. In 1998, we initiated a program to repurchase a portion 
of our outstanding common stock on the open market. At December 
31, 2003, we had 13.1 million shares, or approximately $378.5 million 
of treasury stock outstanding. We completed this repurchase plan in 
1999 and have since utilized treasury stock to satisfy our common stock 
benefit plans. During 2003, we issued 3.3 million shares out of treasury 
for the dividend reinvestment feature of our Investor Program, the 
Employee Stock Discount Purchase Plan, the 401(k) Plan and Stock 
Option Plans. 

On January 17, 2003, we issued 13.9 million shares of common 
stock in a public offering that generated net proceeds of approximately 
$473 million. All shares were offered by KeySpan pursuant to a'n 
effective shelf registration statement filed with the SEC. 

Preferred Stock: We have the authority to issue 100,000,000 shares of 
preferred stock with the following classifications: 16,000,000 shares of 
preferred stock, par value $25 per share; 1,000,000 shares of preferred 
stock, par value $100 per share; and 83,000,000 shares of preferred 
stock, par value $.01 per share. 

At December 31, 2003 we had 553,000 shares outstanding of 
7.07% Preferred Stock Series B par value 8100; 197,000 shares out- 
standing of 7.17% Preferred Stock Series C par value $100; and 85,676 
shares outstanding of 6% Preferred Stock Series A par value $100, in 
the aggregate totaling 883.6 million. 

In September 2003, the Boston Gas Company redeemed all 
562,700 shares of its outstanding Variable Term Cumulative Preferred 
Stock, 6.42% Series A at its par value of $25 per share. The total pay- 
ment was $14.3 million, which included 80.2 million of accumulated 
dividends. This preferred stock series had been reflected as Minority 
lnterest on KeySpan's Consolidated Balance Sheet. 

Notes Payable: KEDLl had $125 million of Medium-Term Notes at 
6.90% due January 15, 2008, and $400 million of 7.875% Medium- 
Term Notes due February 1, 201 0, outstanding at December 31, 2003, 
each of which is guaranteed by KeySpan. 

Further, KeySpan had $2.36 billion of medium and long-term 
notes outstanding at December 31, 2003 of which 81.65 billion of 
these notes are associated with the acquisition of Eastern and ENI. These 
notes were issued in three series as follows: 8700 million, 7.25% Notes 
due 2005; $700 million, 7.625% Notes due 2010 and $250 million, 
8.00% Notes due 2030. The remaining notes of $71 0 million have inter- 
est rates ranging from 6.15% to 9.75% and mature in 2005-2025. 

In 2003, we issued $300 million of medium-term and long-term 
debt. The debt was issued in the following two series: (i) $1 50 million 
4.65% Notes due 2013; and (ii) $150 million 5.875% Notes due 2033. 
The proceeds of this issuance were used to pay down outstanding 
commercial paper. 

Also during 2003, KeySpan Canada, issued Cdn8125 million, or 
approximately US$93 million, long-term secured notes in a private place- 
ment to investors in Canada and the United States. The notes were 
issued in the following three series: (i) Cdn$2O million 5.42% senior 
secured notes due 2008; (ii) Cdn$52.5 million 5.79% senior secured 
notes due 2010; and (iii) CdnB52.5 million 6.1 6% senior secured notes 
due 2013. The proceeds of the offering have been used to re-pay 
KeySpan Canada's credit facility. 

In 2003 Houston Exploration finalized a private placement issuance 
of $175 million of 7.0%, senior subordinated notes due 2013. Interest 
payments began on December 15,2003, and will be paid semi-annually 
thereafter: The notes will mature on June 15, 2013. Houston Exploration 
has the right to redeem the notes as of June 15, 2008, at a price equal 
to the issue price plus a specified redemption premium. Until June 15, 
2006, Houston Exploration may also redeem up to 35% of the notes at 
a redemption price of 107% with proceeds from an equity offering. 
Houston Exploration incurred approximately $4.5 million of debt 
issuance costs on this private placement. 



Houston Exploration used a portion of the net proceeds from the 
issuance to redeem all of its outstanding $100 million principal amount 
of  8.625% senior subordinated notes due 2008 at a price of 104.313% 
of par plus interest accrued to  the redemption date. Debt redemption 
costs totaled approximately 85.9 million and is reflected in other income 
and (deductions) in the Consolidated Statement of Income. The remain- 
ing net proceeds from the offering were used to reduce debt amounts 
associated with Houston Exploration's bank revolving credit facility. 

Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds: KEDNY can issue tax-exempt bonds 
through the New York State Energy Research and Development 
Authority. Whenever bonds i r e  issued for new gas facilities projects, 
proceeds are deposited in trust and subsequently withdrawn to  finance 
qualified expenditures. There are no sinking fund requirements on any 
of our Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds. At December 31, 2003, KEDNY had 
$648.5 million of Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds outstanding. The interest 
rate on the variable rate series due December 1, 2020 is reset weekly 
and ranged from 0.60% t o  1.20% during the year ended December 31, 
2003, at which time the rate was 1.10%. 

Promissory Notes: In connection with the KeySpanILILCO transaction, 
KeySpan and certain of  its subsidiaries issued promissory notes to LlPA 
to support certain debt obligations assumed by LIPA. The remaining 
principal amount of  promissory notes issued to LlPA was approximately 
$600 million at December 31, 2002. In 2003 we called approximately 
$447 million aggregate principal amount of such promissory notes at 
the applicable redemption prices plus accrued and unpaid interest 
through the dates of redemption. Therefore, at December 31, 2003, 
$1 55.4 million of these promissory notes remained outstanding. Under 
these promissory notes, KeySpan is required to obtain letters of credit to 
secure its payment obligations if its long-term debt is not rated at least 
in the "A"  range by at least two nationally recognized statistical rating 
agencies. At December 31, 2003, KeySpan was in compliance with 
this requirement. 

Interest savings associated with this redemption were $1 5.6 million 
after-tax, or 80.10 per share, in 2003. We applied the provisions of 
SFAS 145 "Rescission of  FASB Statement No. 4,44 and 64, Amendment 
of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections" and recorded an 
expense of $18.2 million, reflecting redemption costs, as well as the 
write-off of previously deferred debt issuance costs. This expense has 
been recorded in other income and (deductions) in the Consolidated 
Statement of Income. 

MEDS Equity Units: At December 31, 2003, KeySpan had $460 million 
of MEDS Equity Units outstanding at 8.75% consisting of a three-year 
forward purchase contract for our common stock and a six-year note. 
The purchase contract commits us, three years from the date of issuance 
of the MEDS Equity Units, May 2005, t o  issue and the investors to  pur- 
chase, a number of  shares of  our common stock based on a formula 
tied to the market price of our common stock at that time. The 8.75% 
coupon is composed of interest payments on the six-year note of 4.9% 

and premium payments on the three-year equity forward contract 
of 3.85%. These instruments have been recorded as long-term debt 
on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Further, upon issuance of the MEDS 
Equity Units, we recorded a direct charge to retained earnings of 
$49.1 million, which represents the present value of the forward 
contract's premium payments. 

There were eight million MEDS Equity units issued which are sub- 
ject to conversion upon execution of the three-year forward purchase 
contract. The number of shares to  be issued depends on the average 
closing price of our common stock over the 20 day trading period 
ending on the third trading day prior to May 16, 2005. If the average 
closing price over this time frame is less than or equal to 835.30 of 
Keyspan's common stock, 1 1.3 million shares will be issued. If the 
average closing price over this time frame is greater than or equal to 
$42.36, 9.4 million shares will be issued. The number of shares issued 
at a price between $35.30 and $42.36 will be between 9.4 million 
and 11.3 million based upon a sliding scale. 

These securities are currently not considered convertible instruments 
for purposes of applying SFAS 128 "Earnings Per Share" calculations, 
unless or until such time as the market value o f  our common stock 
reaches a threshold appreciation price ($42.36 per share) that is higher 
than the current per share market value. Interest payments do, however, 
reduce net income and earnings per share. 

The Emerging Issues Task Force of the FASB is considering propos- 
als related to accounting for certain securities and financial instruments, 
including securities such as the Equity Units. The current proposals being 
considered include the method of accounting discussed above. 
Alternatively, other proposals being considered could result in the com- 
mon shares issuable pursuant to the purchase contract to be deemed 
outstanding and included in the calculation of diluted earnings per 
share, and could result in periodic "mark t o  market" of the purchase 
contracts, causing periodic charges or credits t o  income. If this latter 
approach were adopted, our basic and diluted earnings per share could 
increase and decrease from quarter to  quarter to  reflect the lesser and 
greater number of shares issuable upon satisfaction of the contract, as 
well as charges or credits to income. 

Industrial Development Revenue Bonds: In the fourth quarter of 
2003, KeySpan closed on a financing transaction pursuant to  which 
$128 million tax-exempt bonds with a 5.25% coupon maturing in June 
2027 were issued on its behalf. Fifty-three million dollars of these 
Industrial Development Revenue Bonds were issued through the Nassau 
County lndustrial Development Authority for the construction of the 
Glenwood electric-generation peaking plant and the balance of $75 
million was issued by the Suffolk County Industrial Development 
Authority for the Port Jefferson electric-generation peaking plant. 
Proceeds from the transaction were used to  repay commercial paper 
used to finance the construction, installation and equipping of the two 
facilities. KeySpan has guaranteed all payment obligations of our 
subsidiaries with regard to these bonds. 



First Mortgage Bonds: Colonial Gas Company, Essex Gas Company, 
EN1 and their respective subsidiaries, have issued and outstanding 
approximately $1 53.2 million of first mortgage bonds. These bonds are 
secured by KEDNE gas utility property. The first mortgage bond inden- 
tures include, among other provisions, limitations on: (i) the issuance 
of long-term debt; (ii) engaging in additional lease obligations; and 
(iii) the payment of dividends from retained earnings. 

Authority Financing Notes: Certain of our electric generation 
subsidiar~es can issue tax-exempt bonds through the New York State 
Energy Research and Development Authority. At December 31, 2003, 
$41.1 million of Authority Financing Notes 1999 Series A Pollution 
Control Revenue Bonds due October 1, 2028 were outstanding. The 
interest rate on these notes is reset based on an auction procedure. 
The interest rate during 2003 ranged from 0.56% to 1 . I  5%, through 
December 31, 2003, at which time the rate was 1 . lo%.  

We also have outstanding $24.9 million variable rate 1997 Series A 
Electric Facilities Revenue Bonds due December 1, 2027. The interest 
rate on these bonds is reset weekly and ranged from 0.70 % to 1.21 % 
from January 1, 2003 through December 31, 2003 at which time the 
rate was 1.08%. 

Ravenswood Master Lease: We have an arrangement with a variable 
interest unaffiliated entity through which we lease a portion of the 
Ravenswood facility. We acquired the Ravenswood facility, in part, 
through the variable interest entity, from Consolidated Edison on June 
18, 1999 for approximately $597 million. In order to reduce the initial 
cash requirements, we entered into a lease agreement (the "Master 
Lease") with a variable interest financing entity that acquired a portion 
of the facility, three steam generating units, directly from Consolidated 
Edison and leased it to a KeySpan subsidiary. The variable interest 
financing entity acquired the property for $425 million, financed with 
debt of $412.3 million (97% of capitalization) and equity of $12.7 mil- 
lion (3% of capitalization). Monthly lease payments are substantially 
equal to the monthly interest expense on the debt securities. 

In December 2003, KeySpan implemented FASB lnterpretation 
No. 46 ("FIN 46"), "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an 
Interpretation of ARB No. 51 ." This lnterpretation required us to, among 
other things, consolidate this variable interest entity and classify the 
Master Lease as $41 2.3 million long-term debt on the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet. Further, we recorded an asset on the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet for an amount substantially equal to the fair market value 
of the leased assets at the inception of the lease, less depreciation since 
that date. Under the terms of our credit facility the Master Lease has 
been considered debt in the ratio of debt-to-total capitalization since 
the inception of the lease and therefore, implementation of FIN 46 has 
no impact on our credit facility. (See Note 7 "Contractual Obligations, 
Financial Guarantees and Contingencies" for additional information 
regarding the leasing arrangement associated with the Master Lease 
Agreement and FIN 46 implementation issues.) 

PUHCA Authorization: In the fourth quarter of 2003 KeySpan received 
authorization from the SEC, under PUCHA, to  issue up to an additional 
$3 billion of securities through December 31, 2006. This authorization 
provides KeySpan with the necessary flexibility to finance future capital 
requirements over the next three years. 

Commercial Paper and Revolving Credit Agreements: In June 2003, 
KeySpan renewed its 81.3 billion revolving credit facility, which was syn- 
dicated among sixteen banks. The credit facility supports KeySpan's 
commercial paper program, and consists of two separate credit facilities 
with different maturities but substantially similar terms and conditions: a 
$450 million facility that extends for 364 days, and a $850 million facili- 
ty that is committed for three years. The fees for the facilities are subject 
to a ratings-based grid, with an annual fee that ranges from eight to 
twenty five basis points on the 364-day facility and ten to thirty basis 
points on the three-year facility. Both credit agreements allow for 
KeySpan to borrow using several different types of loans; specifically, 
Eurodollar loans, ABR loans, or competitively bid loans. Eurodollar loans 
are based on the Eurodollar rate plus a margin. ABR loans are based on 
the highest of the Prime Rate, the.base CD rate plus I % ,  or the Federal 
Funds Effective Rate plus 0.5%, plus a margin. Competitive bid loans 
are based on bid results requested by KeySpan from the lenders. The 
margins on both facilities are ratings based and range from zero basis 
points to 11 2.5 basis points. The margins are increased if outstanding 
loans are in excess of 33% of the total facility. In addition, the 364-day 
facility has a one-year term out option, which would cost an additional 
0.2S0/o if util~zed. We do not anticipate borrowing against this facility; 
however, if the credit rating on our commercial paper program were to 
be downgraded, it may be necessary to do so. 

The credit facility contains certain affirmative and negative operat- 
ing covenants, including restrictions on KeySpan's ability to mortgage, 
pledge, encumber or otherwise subject its property to any lien and cer- 
tain financial covenants that require us to, among other things, maintain 
a consolidated indebtedness to consolidated capitalizat~on ratio of no 
more than 64%. 

Under the terms of the credit facility, the calculation of KeySpan's 
debt-to-total capitalization ratio reflects 80% equity treatment for the 
MEDS Equity Units. At December 31, 2003, consolidated indebtedness, 
as calculated under the terms of the credit facility, was 58.2% of con- 
solidated capitalization. Violation of this covenant could result in the 
termination of the credit facility and the required repayment of amounts 
borrowed thereunder, as well as possible cross defaults under other 
debt agreements. 

The credit facility also requires that net cash proceeds from the sale 
of subsidiaries be applied to reduce consolidated indebtedness. Further, 
an acceleration of indebtedness of KeySpan or one of its subsidiaries for 
borrowed money in excess of $25 million in the aggregate, if not 
annulled within 30 days after written notice, would create an event of 
default under the Indenture, dated as of November 1, 2000, between 



KeySpan Corporation and the Chase Manhattan Bank, as Trustee. At 
December 31, 2003, KeySpan was in compliance with all covenants. 

At December 31, 2003, we had cash and temporary cash invest- 
ments of $205.8 million. During 2003, we repaid $433.8 million of  
commercial paper and, at December 31, 2003, $481.9 million of 
commercial paper was outstanding at a weighted average annualized 
interest rate of 1.2%. We had the ability to borrow up to an additional 
$818.1 million at December 31, 2003, under the commercial paper 
program. 

Houston Exploration has a revolving credit facility with a commer- 
cial banking syndicate that provides Houston Exploration with a com- 
mitment of $300 million, which can be increased, at its option to 
a maximum of $350 million with prior approval from the banking 
syndicate. The credit facility is subject to  borrowing base limitations, 
currently set at $300 million and is re-determined semi-annually. 
Up to  $25 million of the borrowing base is available for the issuance 
of letters of credit. The new credit facility matures July 15, 2005, is 
unsecured and, with the exception of trade payables, ranks senior to  
all existing debt. 

Under the Houston Exploration credit facility, interest on base rate 
loans is payable at a fluctuating rate, or base rate, equal to the sum of 
(a) the greater of the federal funds rate plus 0.50% or the bank's prime 
rate plus (b) a variable margin between 0% and 0.50%, depending on 
the amount of borrowings outstanding under the credit facility. Interest 
on fixed loans is payable at a fixed rate equal to the sum of (a) a quoted 
reserve adjusted LIBOR rate plus (b) a variable margin between 1.25% 
and 2.00%, depending on the amount of borrowings outstanding 
under the credit facility. 

Financial covenants require Houston Exploration to, among other 
things, (i) maintain an interest coverage ratio of at least 3.00 to I .OO of 
earnings before interest, taxes and depreciation ("EBITDA") to  cash 
interest; (ii) maintain a total debt to EBITDA ratio of not more than 3.50 
to 1.00; and (iii) hedge no more than 70% of natural gas production 
during any 12-month period. At December 31,2003, Houston 
Exploration was in compliance with all financial covenants. 

During 2003, Houston Exploration borrowed $239 million under 
its credit facility and repaid $264 million. At December 31, 2003, 
$127 million of borrowings remained outstanding at a weighted aver- 
age annualized interest rate of 3.42%. Also, $0.4 million was commit- 
ted under outstanding letters of credit obligations. At December 31, 
2003, $172.6 million of  borrowing capacity was available. 

In 2003, KeySpan Canada replaced its two outstanding credit facili- 
ties with one new facility with three tranches that combined allowed 
KeySpan Canada t o  borrow up to  approximately $125 million. At the 
time of the partial sale of KeySpan Canada, net proceeds from the sale 
of $1 19.4 million plus an additional $45.7 million drawn under the new 
credit facilities were used to  pay down existing outstanding debt of 
$160.4 million. During the third quarter of 2003, KeySpan Canada 
issued Cdn$125 million, or approximately US893 million, in long-term 

secured notes in a private placement, as previously mentioned. The pro- 
ceeds of the offering were used to pay-down, in its entirety, outstanding 
borrowings under the credit facility. Further, one tranch of the credit 
facility was discontinued. At December 31, 2003, KeySpan Canada's 
credit facility has the following two tranches with the following maturi- 
ties: (i) $37.5 million matures in 364 days: and (ii) $37.5 million matures 
in two years. During 2003, KeySpan Canada borrowed $71.5 million 
from its prior credit facilities and repaid $240.3 million. During the 
fourth quarter of 2003, KeySpan Canada borrowed $18.1 million under 
the new facility and at December 31, 2003 $56.9 million is available for 
future borrowing. KeySpan is not a guarantor of  this facility. 

Capital Leases: Our subsidiaries lease certain facilities and equipment 
under long-term leases, which expire on various dates through 2022. 
The weighted average interest rate on these obligations was 6.1 2%. 

Debt Maturity: The following table reflects the maturity schedule 
for our debt repayment requirements, including capitalized leases and 
related maturities, at December 31, 2003: 

( In  Thournndr of Dollarr) 

Lona-Term Capital 
&bt Leases Total 

Repayments: 
Year 1 $ 333 $1,138 % 1,471 
Year 2 1,302,333 1,096 1,303,429 
Year 3 51 2,333 1,003 513,336 
Year 4 333 1,063 1,396 
Year 5 160,761 1,129 161,890 
Thereafter 3,649.61 3 7,552 3,657,165 

Lease Obligations: Lease costs included in operation expense were , . 

$82.1 million in 2003 reflecting, primarily, the Master Lease and the 
lease of our Brooklyn headquarters of $29.3 million and $14.6 million, 
respectively. Lease costs also include leases for other buildings, office 
equipment, vehicles and power operated equipment. Lease costs for 
the year ended December 31,2002 and 2001 were $71 .I million and 
$75.8 million, respectively. As previously mentioned, the Master Lease . . 

has been consolidated as required by FIN 46, and as a result, future 
lease payments will be reflected as interest expense on the Consolidated : 
Statement of Income beginning January I ,  2004. The future minimum 
cash lease payments under various leases, excluding the Master Lease, 
all of which are operating leases, are $58.9 million per year over the , . 

next five years and $122.2 million, in the aggregate, for all years 
thereafter. (See discussion below for further information regarding the I 

Master Lease.) i 



Variable lnterest Entity: As mentioned, KeySpan has an arrangement 
wi th a variable interest entity through which we lease a portion of 
the Ravenswood facility. We acquired the Ravenswood facility, a 
2,200-megawatt electric generating facility located in Queens, New 
York, in part, through the variable interest entity from Consolidated 
Edison on June 18, 1999 for approximately $597 million. In order to  
reduce the initial cash requirements, we entered into the Master Lease 
with a variable interest, unaffiliated financing entity that acquired a 
portion of the facility, or three steam generating units, directly from 
Consolidated Edison and leased it to  our subsidiary. The variable interest 
unaffiliated financing entity acquired the property for $425 million, 
financed with debt of $412.3 million (97% of capitalization) and equity 
of $12.7 million (3% of capitalization). KeySpan has no ownership inter- 
.ests in the units or the variable interest entity. KeySpan has guaranteed 
all payment and performance obligations of our subsidiary under the 
Master Lease. Monthly lease payments substantially equal the monthly 
interest expense on such debt securities. 

The initial term of  the Master Lease expires on June 20, 2004 and 
may be extended until June 20, 2009. In June 2004, we have the right 
to: (i) either purchase the facility for the original acquisition cost of $425 
million, plus the present value of the lease payments that would other- 
wise have been paid through June 2009; (ii) terminate the Master Lease 
and dispose of the facility; or (iii) otherwise extend the Master Lease to  
2009. If the Master Lease is terminated in 2004, KeySpan has guaran- 
teed an amount generally equal to 83% of the residual value of the 
original cost of the property, plus the present value of the lease pay- 
ments that would have otherwise been paid through June 20, 2009. At 
this time, KeySpan intends to  maintain a leasing arrangement for the 
foreseeable future. In June 2009, when the Master Lease terminates, we 
may purchase the facility in an amount equal to  the original acquisition 
cost, subject to  adjustment, or surrender the facility to the lessor. If we 
elect not to  purchase the property, the Ravenswood facility will be sold 
by the lessor. We have guaranteed to  the lessor 84% of the residual 
value of the original cost of the property. 

In December 2003, KeySpan implemented FASB lnterpretation 
No. 46 ("FIN 46"), "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an 
lnterpretation of ARB No. 51 ." This lnterpretation required us to, among 
other things, consolidate this variable interest entity and classify the 
Master Lease as $412.3 million long-term debt on the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet based on our current status as primary beneficiary. 
Further, we recorded an asset on the Consolidated Balance Sheet for an 
amount substantially equal t o  the fair market value of the leased assets 
at the inception of the lease, less depreciation since that date, or 
approximately $388 million. As previously mentioned, under the terms 
of our credit facility the Master Lease has been considered debt in the 
ratio of debt-to-total capitalization since the inception of the lease and 
therefore, implementation of FIN 46 has no impact on our credit facility. 
In addition, we recorded a $37.6 million after-tax charge, or $0.23 per 
share, change in accounting principle on the Consolidated Statement 
of Income, representing approximately four and a half years of deprecia- 
tion. Based upon expected average outstanding shares, we anticipate 

the incremental impact of the additional depreciation expense for 2004 
to be approximately $0.05 per share. Yearly lease payments will be 
reflected as interest expense on the Consolidated Statement of Income 
beginning January I ,  2004. Future minimum lease payments are 
$30.8 per year over the next five years and $1 5.4 million for 2009. 

If our subsidiary that leases the Ravenswood facility was not able 
to fulfill its payment obligations with respect to  the Master Lease 
payments, then the maximum amount KeySpan would be exposed to 
under its current guarantees would be $425 million plus the present 
value of the remaining lease payments through June 20, 2009. 

Asset Retirement Obligations: On January I ,  2003, KeySpan adopted 
SFAS 143, "Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations." SFAS 143 
requires an entity to record a liability and corresponding asset 
representing the present value of legal obligations associated with the 
retirement of tangible, long-lived assets. A t  December 31, 2003, the 
present value of our future asset retirement obligation ("ARO") was 
approximately $92.4 million, primarily related to  our investment in 
Houston Exploration. The cumulative effect of SFAS 143 and the change 
in accounting principle was a benefit to net income of $0.2 million, 
after-tax. 

The following table describes on a pro-forma basis the asset retire- 
ment obligation associated with Houston Exploration as if SFAS 143 had 
been adopted on January 1,2002. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 

ARO Liability at January 1, 857,197 845,759 
Additions from drilling 
Additions from purchases 
Deletions from abandonment 
Changes resulting from timing 
ARO accretion expense 3,668 2,645 
ARO Liabilitv at December 31. $92.357 $57.197 
Reflected on Consolidated Balance Sheet 
ARO Liability - Current 
ARO Liability - L o n ~  term 

KeySpan's largest asset base is its gas transmission and distribution 
system. A legal obligation exists due to certain safety requirements at 
final abandonment. In addition, a legal obligation may be construed to 
exist with respect to KeySpan's liquefied natural gas ("LNG") storage 
tanks due to  clean up responsibilities upon cessation of use. However, 
mass assets such as storage, transmission and distribution assets are 
believed to  operate in perpetuity and, therefore, have indeterminate 
cash flow estimates. Since that exposure is in perpetuity and cannot be 
measured, no liability will be recorded pursuant to  SFAS 143. KeySpan's 
ARO will be re-evaluated in future periods until sufficient information 
exists to  determine a reasonable estimate of fair value. 



Financial Guarantees: KeySpan has issued financial guarantees in the 
normal course of business, primarily on behalf of its subsidiaries, to vari- 
ous third party creditors. At  December 31, 2003, the following amounts 
would have to be paid by KeySpan in the event of non-payment by the 
primary obligor at the time payment is due: 

Amount of Emiration 
Nature of Guarantee Exposure Dates 

Guarantees for Subsidiaries 
Medium-Term Notes - KEDLl (i) $ 525,000 2008-2010 
Industrial Development Revenue Bonds (ii) 128,000 2027 
Master Lease - Ravenswood (~ii) 425,000 2004 
Surety Bonds (w) 168,000 Revolving 
Commodity Guarantees and Other (v) 43,000 2005 
Letters of Credit (vi) 67,000 2004 

The following is a description of Keyspan's outstanding subsidiary 
guarantees: 

(i) KeySpan has fully and unconditionally guaranteed $525 million to 
holders of  Medium-Term Notes issued by KEDLI. These notes are 
due to  be repaid on January 15,2008 and February 1,201 0. KEDLI 
is required to comply with certain financial covenants under the 
debt agreements. Currently, KEDLI is in compliance with all 
covenants and management does not anticipate that KEDLI will 
have any difficulty maintaining such compliance. The face value of 
these notes are included in long-term debt on the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet. 

(ii) KeySpan has fully and unconditionally guaranteed the payment 
obligations of ~ t s  subsidiaries with regard to  $128 million of 
Industrial Development Revenue Bonds issued through the Nassau 
County and Suffolk County Industrial Development Authorities for 
the construction of the Glenwood and Port Jefferson electric-gen- 
eration peaking plants. The face value of these notes are included 
in long-term debt on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. 

(~ii) KeySpan has guaranteed all payment and performance obligations 
of KeySpan Ravenswood, LLC, the lessee under the $425 million 
Master Lease associated with the lease of the Ravenswood facility. 
The initial term of the lease expires on June 20, 2004 and may be 
extended until June 20, 2009. 

(iv) KeySpan has agreed to indemnify the issuers of various surety and 
performance bonds associated with certain construction projects 
currently being performed by subsidiaries within the Energy 
Services segment: In the event that the operating companies in 
the Energy Services segment fail to perform their obligations under 
contracts, the injured party may demand that the surety make 

payments or provide services under the bond. KeySpan would 
then be obligated to  reimburse the surety for any expenses or cash 
outlays it incurs. 

(v) KeySpan has guaranteed commodity-related payments for sub- 
sidiaries within the Energy Services segment, as well as KeySpan 
Ravenswood, LLC. These guarantees are provided to  third parties 
to  facilitate physical and financial transactions involved in the pur- 
chase of natural gas, oil and other petroleum products for electric 
production and marketing activities. The guarantees cover actual 
purchases by these subsidiaries that are still outstanding as of 
December 31, 2003. 

(vi) KeySpan has issued stand-by letters of credit in the amount of 
867.0 million t o  third parties that have extended credit to  certain 
subsidiaries. Certain vendors require us to post letters of credit to 
guarantee subsidiary performance under our contracts and to  
ensure payment to our subsidiary subcontractors and vendors 
under those contracts. Certain of  our vendors also require letters of 
credit t o  ensure reimbursement for amounts they are disbursing on 
behalf of our subsidiaries, such as to  beneficiaries under our self- 
funded insurance programs. Such letters of credit are generally 
issued by a bank or similar financial institution. The letters of credit 
commit the issuer to pay specified amounts t o  the holder of the 
letter of credit if the holder demonstrates that we have failed to 
perform specified actions. If this were to occur, KeySpan would be 
required to reimburse the issuer of the letter of credit. 

To date, KeySpan has not had a claim made against it for any of 
the above guarantees or letters of credit and we have no reason to  
believe that our subsidiaries will default on their current obligations. 
However, we cannot predict when or if any defaults may take place 
or the impact such defaults may have on our consolidated results of 
operations, financial condition or cash flows. 

In June 2003, Hawkeye Electric, LLC et al. ("Hawkeye") and 
KeySpan reached an agreement settling certain legal matters. Under 
the terms of the settlement: (i) certain obligations between the parties 
have been modified and clarified, (ii) certain contracts were awarded to 
Hawkeye, (iii) certain credit and bonding support made available by 
KeySpan to Hawkeye was terminated and (iv) KeySpan and a Hawkeye 
affiliate closed on a 955 million long-term note receivable due from 
Hawkeye on July 20, 2018 bearing interest at an annual rate of 5% and 
secured by a power plant in Greenport, New York. 

Fixed Charges Under Firm Contracts: Our utility subsidiaries and the 
Ravenswood facility have entered into various contracts for gas delivery, 
storage and supply services. Certain of these contracts require payment 
of annual demand charges in the aggregate amount of approximately 



$452 million. We are liable for these payments regardless of the level of 
service we require from third parties. Such charges associated with gas 
distribution operations are currently recovered from utility customers 
through the gas adjustment clause. 

Legal Matters: From time to  time we are subject to  various legal pro- 
ceedings arising out of the ordinary course of our business. Except as 
described below, we do not consider any of such proceedings to  be 
material to our business or likely to  result in a material adverse effect on 
our results of operations, financial condition or cash flows. 

KeySpan has been cooperating in preliminary inquiries regarding 
trading in KeySpan Corporation stockby individual officers of KeySpan 
prior to  the July 17,2001 announcement that KeySpan was taking a 
special charge in its Energy Services business and otherwise reducing its 
2001 earnings forecast. These inquiries are being conducted by the U.S. 
Attorney's Office, Southern District of New York and the SEC. 

On March 5, 2002, the SEC, as part of its continuing inquiry, 
issued a formal order of investigation, pursuant to which it will review 
the trading activity of certain company insiders from May 1, 2001 to the 
present, as well as Keyspan's compliance with its reporting rules and 
regulations, generally during the period following the acquisition by 
KeySpan Services, Inc., a KeySpan subsidiary, of the Roy Kay companies 
through the July 17, 2001 announcement. 

KeySpan and certain of its current and former officers and directors 
are defendants in a consolidated class action lawsuit filed in the United 
States District Court for the Eastern District of New York. This lawsuit 
alleges, among other things, violations of Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of 
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended ("Exchange Act"), in 
connection with disclosures relating to or following the acquisition of 
the Roy Kay companies. In October 2001, a shareholder's derivative 
action was commenced in the same court against certain current and 
former officers and directors of KeySpan, alleging, among other things, 
breaches of fiduciary duty, violations of the New York Business 
Corporation Law and violations of Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act. 
On June 12, 2002, a second derivative action was commenced which 
asserted similar allegations. Each of these proceedings seeks monetary 
damages in an unspecified amount. On March 18, 2003, the court 
granted our motion to dismiss the class action complaint. The court's 
order dismissed certain class allegations with prejudice, but provided the 
plaintiffs a final opportunity to  file an amended complaint concerning 
the remaining allegations. In April 2003, plaintiffs filed an amended 
complaint and in July 2003 the court denied our motion to  dismiss the 
amended complaint but did strike certain allegations. On November 20, 
2003, the court granted our motion for reconsideration of  the July 2003 
order and the court struck additional allegations from the amended 
complaint which effectively limited the potential class period. On 
December 19, 2003, KeySpan filed a motion to dismiss the derivative 
actions. The motion is still pending. KeySpan intends to  vigorously 
defend each of these proceedings. However, we are unable to predict 
the outcome of these proceedings or what effect, if any, such outcome 
will have on our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows. 

KeySpan subsidiaries, along with several other parties, have been 
named as defendants in numerous proceedings filed by plaintiffs claim- 

ing various degrees of injury from asbestos exposure at generating 
facilities formerly owned by LlLCO and others. In connection with the 
May 1998 transaction with LIPA, costs incurred by KeySpan for liabilities 
for asbestos exposure arising from the activities of the generating 
facilities previously owned by LlLCO are recoverable from LlPA through 
the Power Supply Agreement betweeti LlPA and KeySpan. 

KeySpan is unable to determine the outcome of the other out- 
standing asbestos proceedings, but does not believe that such out- 
comes, if adverse, will have a material effect on  its financial condition, 
results of operation or cash flows. KeySpan believes that its cost recov- 
ery rights under the Power Supply Agreement, its indemnification rights 
against third parties and its insurance coverage (above applicable 
deductible limits) cover its exposure for asbestos liabilities generally. 

As previously reported, KeySpan, through its subsidiary, formerly 
known as Roy Kay, Inc., has terminated the employment of the former 
owners of the Roy Kay companies and commenced a proceeding in the 
Chancery Division of the Superior Court, Monmouth County, New Jersey 
(Docket No. Mon. C. 95-01) as a result of the alleged fraudulent acts 
of the former owners, both before and after the acquisition of the Roy 
Kay companies in January 2000. KeySpan commenced this proceeding 
because it believed that, among other things, the former owners 
misstated the financial statements of the Roy Kay companies and certain 
underlying work-in-progress schedules. The former owners filed counter- 
claims against KeySpan and certain of its subsidiaries, as well as certain 
of their respective officers, to  recover damages they claimed to  have 
incurred as a result of, among other things, their alleged improper 
termination and the alleged fraud on the part of KeySpan in failing 
to disclose the limitations imposed upon the Roy Kay companies, with 
respect to  the performance of certain services under PUHCA. In March 
2004, KeySpan entered into an agreement with these former owners 
settling this proceeding, the terms of which did not have a material 
effect on our financial condition or results of operations. 

Other Contingencies: We derive a substantial portion of our revenues 
in our Electric Services segment from a series o f  agreements with LlPA 
pursuant t o  which we manage LIPA's transmission and distribution sys- 
tem and supply the majority of LIPA's customers! electricity needs. The 
agreements terminate at various dates between May 28, 2006 and May 
28, 2013, and at this time, we can provide no assurance that any of the 
agreements will be renewed or extended, or if they were to be renewed 
or extended, the terms and conditions thereof. In addition, given the 
complexity of these agreements, disputes arise from time to  time 
between KeySpan and LlPA concerning the rights and obligations of  
each party t o  make and receive payments as required pursuant to the 
terms of these agreements. As a result, KeySpan is unable t o  determine 
what effect, if any, the ultimate resolution of these disputes will have on 
its financial condition or results of operations. 



Air: With respect to NOx emissions reduction requirements for our exist- 
ing power plants, we are required to be in compliance with the Phase Ill 
reduction requirements of  the Ozone Transportation Commission memo- 
randum by May I ,  2003, and we fully expect to achieve such emission 
reductions on time and in a cost-effective manner. 

Water: Additional capital expenditures associated with the renewal of 
the surface water discharge permits for our power plants may be 
required by the Department oflnvironmental Conservation ("DEC"). 
Until our monitoring obligations are completed and changes to the 
Environmental Protection Agency regulations under Section 316 of the 
Clean Water Act are promulgated, the need for and the cost of equip- 
ment upgrades cannot be determined. 

Land, Manu fac tu red  Gas Plants a n d  Related Facilities 

New York Sites: Within the State of New York we have identified 43 
historical manufactured gas plant ("MGP") sites and related facilities, 
which were owned or operated by KeySpan subsidiaries or such compa- 
nies' predecessors. These former sites, some of which are no longer 
owned by us, have been identified to the NYPSC and the DEC for inclu- 
sion on appropriate site inventories. Administrative Orders on Consent 
("ACO") or Voluntary Cleanup Agreements ("VCA") have been execut- 
ed with the DEC to  address the investigation and remediation activities 
associated with certain sites. Investigation and remediation activities 
required at the remaining sites will be addressed as part of an applica- 
tion KeySpan submitted to  the DEC in October 2003 under its Voluntary 
Cleanup Program ("VCA Application"). 

We have identified 28 of these sites as being associated with the 
historical operations of KEDNY. One site has been fully remediated. The 
remaining sites will be investigated and, if necessary, remediated under 
the terms and conditions of ACOs or VCAs. Expenditures incurred to 
date by us with respect to KEDNY MGP-related activities total $38.8 mil- 
lion. In July 2001, KEDNY filed a complaint for the recovery of  its reme- 
diation costs in the New York State Supreme Court against the various 
insurance companies that issued general comprehensive liability policies 
t o  KEDNY. The outcome of this proceeding cannot yet be determined. 

The remaining 15 sites have been identified as being associated 
with the historical operations of KEDLI. Expenditures incurred to date by 
us with respect to KEDLI MGP-related activities total $32.2 million. One 
site has been fully investigated and requires no further action. The 
remaining sites will be investigated and, if necessary, remediated under 
the conditions of ACOs or VCAs. In January 1998, KEDLI filed a com- 
plaint for the recovery of its remediation costs in the New York State 
Supreme Court against the various insurance companies that issued 
general comprehensive liability policies to  KEDLI.   he outcome of this 
proceeding cannot yet be determined. 

We presently estimate the remaining cost of our KEDNY and KEDLI 
MGP-related environmental remediation activities will be $226.4 million, 

which amount has been accrued by us as a reasonable estimate of  

probable cost for known sites. Expenditures incurred to date by us with 
respect to these MGP-related activities total $71 million. 

With respect to remediation costs, the KEDNY rate plan provides, 
among other things, that if the total cost of investigation and remedia- 
tion varies from that which is specifically estimated for a site under 
investigation and/or remediation, then KEDNY will retain or absorb u p t o  
10% of the variation. The KEDLI rate plan also provides for the recovery 
of investigation and remediation costs but with no consideration of 
the difference between estimated and actual costs. At December 31, 
2003, we have reflected a regulatory asset of $245.3 million for our 
KEDNYlKEDLl MGP sites. In accordance with NYPSC policy, KeySpan 
records a reduction to regulatory liabilities as costs are incurred for 
environmental clean-up activities. At  December 31, 2003, these previ- 
ously deferred regulatory liabilities totaled $61.0 million. In October 
2003, KEDNY and KEDLI filed a joint petition with the NYPSC seeking 
rate treatment for additional environmental'costs that may be incurred 
in the future. 

We are also responsible for environmental obligations associated 
with the Ravenswood facility, purchased from Consolidated Edison in 
1999, including remediation activities associated with its historical oper- 
ations and those of the MGP facilities that formerly operated at the site. 
We are not responsible for liabilities arising from disposal of waste at 
off-site locations prior to  the acquisition closing and any monetary fines 
arising from Consolidated Edison's pre-closing conduct. We presently 
estimate the remaining environmental clean up activities for this site will 
be $3.4 million, which amount has been accrued by us. Expenditures 
incurred to date total 81.6 million. 

New England Sites: Within the Commonwealth of Massachusetts 
and the State of New Hampshire, we are aware of 76 former MGP 
sites and related facilities within the existing or former service territories 
of KEDNE. 

Boston Gas Company, Colonial Gas Company and Essex Gas 
Company may have or share responsibility under applicable environmen- 
tal laws for the remediation of 66 of these sites. A subsidiary of National 
Grid USA ("National Grid"), formerly New England Electric System, has 
assumed responsibility for remediating 11 of these sites, subject to  a 
limited contribution from Boston Gas Company, and has provided full 
indemnification to Boston Gas Company with respect to 8 other sites. In 
addition, Boston Gas Company, Colonial Gas Company, and Essex Gas 
Company have each assumed responsibility for remediating 3 sites. At 
this time, it is uncertain as t o  whether Boston Gas Company, Colonial 
Gas Company or Essex Gas Company have or share responsibility for 
remediating any of the other sites. No notice of responsibility has been 
issued to us for any of these sites from any governmental environmental 
authority. 

In March 1999, Boston Gas Company and a subsidiary of National 
Grid filed a complaint for the recovery of remediation costs in the 
Massachusetts Superior Court against various insurance companies that 
issued comprehensive general liability policies to  National Grid and its 



predecessors with respect to, among other things, the 11 sites for which 
Boston Gas Company has agreed to make a limited contribution. In 
October 2002, Boston Gas Company filed a complaint in the United 
States District Court - Massachusetts District against one of the insur- 
ance companies that issued comprehensive general liability policies to 
Boston Gas Company for its remaining sites. The outcome of these pro- 
ceedings cannot be determined at this time. 

We presently estimate the remaining cost of these Massachusetts 
KEDNE MGP-related environmental cleanup activities will be $25.4 mil- 
lion, which amount has been accrued by us as a reasonable estimate of 
probable cost for known sites. Expenditures incurred since November 8, 
2000 with respect to  these MGP-related activities total $13.5 million. 

We may have or share responsibility under applicable environmen- 
tal laws for the remediation of 10 MGP sites and related facilities associ- 
ated with the historical operations of EnergyNorth. At four of these sites 
we have entered into cost sharing agreements with other parties who 
share responsibility for remediation of these sites. EnergyNorth also has 
entered into an agreement with the United States Environmental 
Protection Agency ("EPA") for the contamination from the Nashua site 
that was allegedly commingled with asbestos at the so-called Nashua 
River Asbestos Site, adjacent to  the Nashua MGP site. 

EnergyNorth has filed suit in both the New Hampshire Superior 
Court and the United States District Court for the District of New 
Hampshire for recovery of its remediation costs against the various insur- 
ance companies that issued comprehensive general liability and excess 
liability insurance policies to  EnergyNorth and its predecessors. 
Settlements have been reached with some of the carriers and one carrier 
was dismissed from a Superior Court action on summary judgment. The 
outcome of the remaining proceedings cannot yet be determined. 

We presently estimate the remaining cost of EnergyNorth MGP- 
related environmental cleanup activities will be $13.9 million, which 
amount has been accrued by us as a reasonable estimate of probable 
cost for known sites. Expenditures incurred since November 8, 2000, 
with respect to  these MGP-related activities total $7.8 million. 

By rate orders, the DTE and the NHPUC provide for the recovery of 
site investigation and remediation costs and, accordingly, at December 
31, 2003, we have reflected a regulatory asset of $51.5 million for the 
KEDNE MGP sites. As previously mentioned, Colonial Gas Company 
and Essex Gas Company are not subject to the provisions of SFAS 71 
and therefore have recorded no regulatory asset. However, rate plans 
currently in effect for these subsidiaries provide for the recovery of 
investigation and remediation costs. 

KeySpan New England LLC Sites: We are aware of three non-utility 
sites associated with KeySpan New England, LLC, a successor company 
to  Eastern Enterprises, for which we may have or share environmental 
remediation or ongoing maintenance responsibility. These three sites, 
located in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, New Haven, Connecticut and 
Everett, Massachusetts, were associated with historical operations involv- 
ing the production of coke and related industrial processes. Honeywell 
International, Inc. and Beazer East, Inc. (both former owners and/or 
operators of certain facilities at Everett ("the Everett Facility") together 
with KeySpan, have entered into an ACO with the Massachusetts 

Department of Environmental Protection for the investigation and devel- 
opment of a remedial response plan for a portion of that site. KeySpan, 
Honeywell and Beazer East have entered into a cost-sharing agreement 
under which each company has agreed to pay one-third of  the costs of 
compliance with the consent order, while preserving any claims it may 
have against the other companies for, among other things, reallocation 
of proportionate liability. In 2002, Beazer East commenced an action in 
the U.S. District Court for the Southern District of New York, which 
seeks a judicial determination on the allocation of liability for the Everett 
Facility. The outcome of this proceeding cannot yet be determined. 

KeySpan also is recovering certain legal defense costs and may be 
entitled to recover remediation costs from its insurers. We presently 
estimate the remaining cost of our environmental cleanup activities for 
the three non-utility sites will be approximately $25.6 million, which 
amount has been accrued by us as a reasonable estimate of probable 
costs for known sites. Expenditures incurred since November 8, 2000, 
with respect to  these sites total $7.2 million. 

We believe that in the aggregate, the accrued liability for these 
MGP sites and related facilities identified above are reasonable estimates 
of the probable cost for the investigation and remediation of these sites 
and facilities. As circumstances warrant, we periodically re-evaluate the 
accrued liabilities associated with MGP sites and related facilities. We did 
such a re-evaluation in 2003 and the results of  this study have been 
reflected in KeySpan's accruals. The re-evaluation of KeySpan's accruals 
resulted in a $10 million benefit to earnings in 2003. We may be 
required to investigate and, if necessary, remediate each site previously 
noted, or other currently unknown former sites and related facility sites, 
the cost of which is not presently determinable but may be materialto 
our financial position, results of operations or cash flows. Remediation 
costs for each site may be materially higher than noted, depending 
upon remediation experience, selected end use for each site, and actual 
environmental conditions encountered. 

NOTE 8. HEDGING, DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
AND FAIR VALUES 

Financially-Settled Commodity Derivative Instruments - Hedging 
Activities: From time to time, KeySpan subsidiaries have utilized deriva- 
tive financial instruments, such as futures, options and swaps, for the 
purpose of hedging the cash flow variability associated with changes in 
commodity prices. KeySpan is exposed to  commodity price risk primarily 
with regard to its gas exploration and production activities and its elec- 
tric generating facilities. Derivative financial instruments are employed 
by Houston Exploration t o  hedge cash flow variability associated with 
forecasted sales of natural gas. The Ravenswood facility uses derivative 
financial instruments to  hedge the cash flow variability associated with 
the purchase of natural gas and oil that will be consumed during the 
generation of electricity. The Ravenswood facility also hedges the cash 
flow variability associated with a portion of peak season electric energy 
sales. In addition, during 2003 KeySpan Canada employed derivative 
financial instruments to hedge cash flow variability associated with the 



purchase of natural gas and electricity used in the operation of its gas 
processing plants; all such derivative instruments settled during the year. 

The majority of these derivative financial instruments are cash flow 
hedges that qualify for hedge accounting under SFAS 133 "Accounting 
for Derivative lnstruments and Hedging Activities", as amended by SFAS 
149 "Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative lnstruments and 
Hedging Activities", collectively SFAS 133, and are not considered held 
'for trading purposes as defined by current accounting literature. 
Accordingly, we carry the fair market value of our derivative instruments 
on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as either a current or deferred asset 
or liability, as appropriate, and defer the effective portion of unrealized 
gains or losses in accumulated other comprehensive income. Gains and 
losses are reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income to 
the Consolidated Statement of Income in the period the hedged trans- 
action effects earnings. Gains and losses are reflected as a component 
of either revenue or fuel and purchased power depending on the 
hedged transaction. Hedge ineffectiveness is measured using the change 
in variable cash flows and the hypothetical derivative methods and 
recorded directly to earnings. 

Houston Exploration has utilized collars and purchased put options, 
as well as over-the-counter ("OTC") swaps, to hedge the cash flow vari- 
ability associated with forecasted sales of a portion of its natural gas 
production. In 2003, Houston Exploration hedged slightly less than 70% 
of its gas production. At December 31, 2003, Houston Exploration has 
hedge positions in place for approximately 70% of its estimated 2004 
gas production, with an effective floor price of $4.26 and an effective 
ceiling price of $5.65. Further, Houston Exploration has hedge positions 
in place for approximately 44% of its estimated 2005 gas production, 
with an effective floor price of $4.59 and an effective ceiling price of 
$5.26. Houston Exploration uses standard New York Mercantile 
Exchange ("NYMEX") futures prices to value its swap positions, and, in 
addition, uses published volatility in its Black-Scholes calculation for out- 
standing options. The maximum length of time over which Houston 
Exploration has hedged such cash flow variability is through December 
2005. The fair market value of these derivative instruments at December 
31, 2003 was a liability of $36.9 million. The estimated amount of loss- 
es associated with such derivative instruments that are reported in other 
comprehensive income and that are expected to be reclassified into 
earnings over the next twelve months is $32.1 million, or $20.9 million 
after-tax. 

With respect to price exposure associated with fuel purchases for 
the Ravenswood facility, KeySpan employs standard NYMEX natural gas 
futures contracts and over-the-counter financially settled natural gas 
basis swaps to hedge the cash flow variability for a portion of forecasted 
purchases of natural gas. KeySpan also employs the use of financially- 
settled oil swap contracts to hedge the cash flow variability for a portion 
of forecasted purchases of fuel oil that will be consumed at the 
Ravenswood facility. The maximum length of time over which we have 
hedged cash flow variability associated with forecasted purchases of 
natural gas and fuel oil is through September 2005. We use standard 
NYMEX futures prices to value the gas futures contracts and market 
quoted forward prices to value oil swap and natural gas basis swap 

contracts. The fair market value of these derivative instruments at 
December 31, 2003 was an asset of $0.4 million. These derivative 
instruments are reported in other comprehensive income and are 
expected to be reclassified into earnings over the next twelve months. 

We have also engaged in the use of cash-settled swap instruments 
to hedge the cash flow variability associated with a portion of forecast- 
ed peak season electric energy sales from the Ravenswood facility. The 
maximum length of time over which we have hedged cash flow variabil- 
'ity is through December 2904. We use market quoted forward prices to 
value these outstanding derivatives. The fair market value of these deriv- 
ative instruments at December 31, 2003 was an asset of $0.3 million. 
These derivative instruments are reported in other comprehensive 
income and are expected to be reclassified into earnings over the next 
twelve months. 

The table below summarizes the fair value of each category of 
derivative instrument outstanding at December 31, 2003 and its related 
line item on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Fair value is the amount at 
which derivative instruments could be exchanged in a current transac- 
tion between willing parties, other than in a forced liquidation sale. 

(In Thou~dnd~ of Do//arr) 

December 31, 2003 

Gas Contracts: 
Other current assets $ 3,458 
Accounts payable and other liabilities (35,592) 
Other deferred liabilities (4,734) 

Oil Contracts: 
Other deferred charges 

Electric Contracts: 
Other deferred charges 259 

Financially-Settled Commodity Derivative lnstruments that Do 
Not Qualify for Hedge Accounting: KeySpan subsidiaries also employ 
a limited number of financial derivatives that do not qualify for hedge 
accounting treatment under SFAS 133. In November 2003, we sold a 
"swaption" to hedge the cash flow variability associated with 50 MW of 
forecasted 2004 summer electric energy sales from the Ravenswood 
facility. The swaption is an option that gives the counterparty the right, 
but not the obligation, to enter into a swap transaction with KeySpan in 
the future at a given strike price. This swaption can be converted into a 
swap, at the election of the counterparty and has an expiration date 
of June I ,  2004. The premium payment KeySpan received was recorded 
as a current liability on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The premium 
generally will be recorded into income at the time the swaption is either 
exercised or expires. An internally developed option-pricing model is 
used to value the swaption and at December 31, 2003 the fair value of 
the swaption was immaterial. 



At December 31, 2003, KeySpan Canada has a portfolio of finan- 
cially-settled natural gas collars and swap transactions for natural gas 
liquids. Such contracts are executed by KeySpan Canada to: (i) fix the 
price that is paid or received by KeySpan Canada for certain physical 
transactions involving natural gas and natural gas liquids and (ii) transfer 
the price exposure to counterparties. These derivative financial instru- 
ments also do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment. At December 
31, 2003, these instruments had a net fair market value of $1.0 million, 
which was recorded as a $1.8 million current asset and $0.8 million 
current liability on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Based on the 
non-hedge designation of these instruments, an unrealized gain was 
recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Income. 

Firm Gas Sales Derivative Instruments - Regulated Utilities: 
We use derivative financial instruments to reduce the cash flow variabil- 
ity associated with the purchase price for a portion of future natural 
gas purchases associated with our Gas Distribution operations. Our 
strategy is to minimize fluctuations in firm gas sales prices t o  our regu- 
lated firm gas sales customers in our New York and New England service 
territories. The accounting for these derivative instruments is subject to 
SFAS 71 "Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation." 
Therefore, changes in the fair value of these derivatives have been 
recorded as a regulatory asset or regulatory liability on the Consolidated 
Balance Sheet. Gains or losses on the settlement of these contracts 
are initially deferred and then refunded to  or collected from our 
firm gas sales customers consistent with regulatory requirements. At 
December 31, 2003, these derivatives had a net fair market value 
of  $9.9 million and are reflected as a regulatory liability on the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet. 

Physically-Settled Commodity Derivative Instruments: SFAS 133 
establishes criteria that must be satisfied in order for option contracts, 
forward contracts with optionality features, or contracts that combine a 
forward contract and a purchase option contract to be exempted as 
normal purchases and sales. Based upon a continuing review of our 
physical gas contracts, we determined that certain contracts for the 
physical purchase of natural gas associated with our regulated gas utili- 
ties are not exempt as normal purchases from the requirements of SFAS 
133. Since these contracts are for the purchase of natural gas sold to 
regulated firm gas sales customers, the accounting for these contracts 
is subject to  SFAS 71. Therefore, changes in the market value of these 
contracts have been recorded as a regulatory asset or regulatory liability 
on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. At December 31,2003 these 
contracts had a net negative fair market value of $1.9 million, and are 
reflected as a $6.9 million regulatory asset and $5.0 million regulatory 
liability on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. 

Interest Rate Derivative Instruments: In May 2003, we entered into 
interest rate swap agreements in which we swapped $250 million of 
7.25% fixed rate debt to  floating rate debt. Under the terms of the 
agreements, we will receive the fixed coupon rate associated with these 
bonds and pay our swap counterparties a variable interest rate based on 

LIBOR, that is reset on a semi-annual basis. These swaps are designated 
as fair-value hedges and qualify for "short-cut" hedge accounting treat- 
ment under SFAS 133. During the twelve months ended December 31, 
2003, we paid our counterparty an average interest rate of 6.43%, and 
as a result, we realized interest savings of $1.2 million. The fair market 
value of this derivative was negligible at December 3 1, 2003. 

During 2002, we had interest rate swap agreements in which we 
swapped approximately $1.3 billion of fixed rate debt to floating rate 
debt. Under the terms of the agreements, we received the fixed coupon 
rate associated with these bonds and paid the swap counterparties a 
variable interest rate that was reset on a quarterly basis. These swaps 
were designated as fair-value hedges and qualified for "short-cut" 
hedge accounting treatment under SFAS 133. In 2002, we terminated 
two of these interest rate swap agreements with an aggregate notional 
amount of $1.0 billion. The remaining swap, which had a notional 
amount of $270.0 million, was terminated on February 25, 2003. We 
received $18.4 million from our swap counterparties as a result of the 
latter termination, of which $8.1 million represented accrued swap 
interest. The difference between the termination settlement amount 
and the amount of accrued interest, $10.3 million, was recorded as a 
reduction to  interest expense in the first quarter of 2003. This swap was 
used to hedge a portion of our outstanding promissory notes to  LIPA. 
As discussed in Note 6 "Long-Term Debt," we called a portion of these 
promissory notes during the first quarter of 2003. 

Additionally, we had an interest rate swap agreement that hedged 
the cash flow variability associated with the forecasted issuance of a 
series of commercial paper offerings. This hedge expired in March 2003. 

Weather Derivatives: The uti l~ty tariffs associated with KEDNE's opera- 
tions do not contain weather normal~zation adjustments. As a result, 
fluctuations from normal weather may have a significant positive or 
negative effect on the results of these operations. To mitigate a substan- 
tial portion of the effect of fluctuations from normal weather on our 
financial position and cash flows, we sold heating degree-day call 
options and purchased heating-degree day put options for the 
November 2002-March 2003 winter season. Wi th  respect to sold call 
options, KeySpan was required to make a payment of $40,000 per heat- 
ing degree day to  its counterparties when actual weather experienced 
during the November 2002 - March 2003 time frame was above 4,470 
heating degree days, which equates to  approximately 1 % colder than 
normal weather. With respect to  purchased put options, KeySpan would 
have received a $20,000 per heating degree day payment from its 
counterparties when actual weather was below 4,150 heating degree 
days, or approximately 7% warmer than normal. Based on the terms 
of such contracts, we account for such instruments pursuant to  the 
requirements of ElTF 99-2, "Accounting for Weather Derivatives." In this 
regard, such instruments were accounted for using the "intrinsic value 
method" as set forth in such guidance. During the first quarter of 2003, 
weather was 10% colder than normal and, as a result, $11.9 million 
was recorded as a reduction to revenues. 



In October 2003, we entered into heating-degree day call and put 
options t o  mitigate the effect of fluctuations from normal weather on 
KEDNE's financial position and cash flows for the 200312004 winter 
heating season - November 2003 through March 2004. With respect to  
sold call options, KeySpan will be required to  make a payment of 
$27,500 per heating degree day to its counterparties when actual 
weather experienced during this time frame is above 4,440 heating 
degree days, which equates to approximately 2% colder than normal 
weather, based on the most recent 20-year average for normal weather. 
The maximum amount KeySpan may be required to  pay on its sold call 
options is $5.5 million. With respect to  purchased put options, KeySpan 
will receive a $27,500 per heating degree day payment from its counter- 
parties when actual weather s below 4,266 heating degree days, or 
approximately 2% warmer than normal. The maximum amount 
KeySpan may receive on its purchased put options is $1 1 million. The 
net premium cost for these options was $0.4 million. We account for 
these derivatives pursuant to  the requirements of ElTF 99-2. During the 
fourth quarter of 2003, weather, as measured in heating degree-days, 
was slightly warmer normal and, as a result, a $0.5 million benefit was 
recorded through revenues. 

Derivative contracts are primarily used to  manage exposure to  mar- 
ket risk arising from changes in commodity prices and interest rates. In 
the event of non-performance by a counterparty to a derivative con- 
tract, the desired impact may not be achieved. The risk of counterparty 
non-performance is generally considered a credit risk and is actively 
managed by assessing each counterparty credit profile and negotiating 
appropriate levels of collateral and credit support. We believe that our 
credit risk related to the above mentioned derivative financial instru- 
ments is no greater than the risk associated with the primary contracts 
which they hedge and that the elimination of a portion of the price risk 
reduces volatility in our reported results of operations, financial position 
and cash flows and lowers overall business risk. 

Long-term Debt: The following tables depict the fair values and 
carrying values of KeySpan's long-term debt at December 31, 2003 
and 2002. 

[ in  Thonundi o/Dolluri) 
Year Ended December 31, 2003 2002 

First Mortgage Bonds $ 178,438 $ 180,666 

~ - ~ -~ 

( in  Thourundi ofD~l1ari j  

2003 2002 

First Mortgage Bonds $ 153,186 $ 163,625 
Notes 3,456,425 2,985,000 
Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds 648,500 648,500 
Authority Financing Notes 66,005 66,005 
Promissory Notes 155,422 602,427 
MEDS Equity Units 460,000 460,000 
Master Lease 412,300 - 
Tax Exempt Bonds 128,275 - 

$5,480,113 84,925,557 

Our subsidiary debt is carried at an amount approximating fair 
value because interest rates are based on current market rates. All other 
financial instruments included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet such as 
cash, commercial paper, accounts receivable and accounts payable, are 
also stated at amounts that approximate fair value. 

NOTE 9. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 
On November 8, 2000, KeySpan acquired Midland Enterprises LLC 
("Midland"), an inland marine transportation subsidiary, as part of the 
Eastern acquisition. In its order approving the acquisition, the SEC 
required KeySpan to sell this subsidiary by November 8, 2003 because 
Midland's operations were not functionally related to KeySpan's core 
utility operations. On July 2, 2002, the sale of Midland to  lngram 
Industries Inc. was completed and net proceeds of $175.1 million 
were received from the sale. 

Discontinued operations for the year ended December 31,2001 
included an anticipated after-tax loss on disposal of $30.4 million. As a 
result of a change in the tax structuring strategy related to the sale of 
Midland, in the second quarter of 2002 we recorded an additional 
provision for city and state taxes and made adjustments to the estimates 
used in the December 31,2001 loss provision. These changes resulted 
in an additional after tax loss on disposal of $19.7 million. 

Notes 3,893,158 3,441,619 
Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds 683,354 674,828 
Authority Financing Notes 66,005 66,005 
Promissory Notes 158,837 61 6,240 
MEDS Equity Units 495,880 525,918 
Tax Exempt Bonds 129,558 - 



The following is selected financial information for Midland for the 
period January I ,  2002 through July 2,2002 and the year ended 
December 31, 2001: 

[in Thrrandr o/DoI/urrJ 

2002 2001 

Revenues $1 16,149 $266,792 
Pre-tax income (loss) (4,624) 18,489 
Income tax (expense) benefit 1,268 (7,571) 
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (3,356) 10,918 
Estimated book gain on disposal 5,980 44,580 
Tax expense associated with disposal (22,286) (74,936) 
Estimated loss on disoosal (1 6.306) (30.356) 
Loss from discontinued operations $ (1 9,662) $ (1 9,438) 

NOTE 10. ROY KAY OPERATIONS 
During 2001, we undertook a complete evaluation of the strategy, 
operating controls and organizational structure of the Roy Kay 
companies - plumbing, mechanical, electrical and general contracting 
companies acquired by us in January 2000. We decided to discontinue 
the general contracting business conducted by these companies based 
upon our view that the general contracting business is not a core 
competency of these companies. Certain remaining activities engaged in 
by the Roy Kay companies have been integrated with those of other 
KeySpan energy-related businesses. During 2002, substantially all of the 
remaining field work on outstanding construction projects was complet- 
ed. We are now engaged in the finalization of claims and collections 
and, as a result, their operations will continue to be consolidated in our 
Consolidated Financial Statements until such time as this process is 
complete. During 2003 KeySpan incurred $1 1.4 million in operating 
losses which reflected provisions made for the resolution of outstandinq 
claims and change orders, as well as additional costs incurred in connec- 
tion with the collection of  outstanding contract balances. 

For the year ended December 31, 2001, the Roy Kay companies 
incurred an after-tax loss of $95.0 million ($137.8 million pre-tax) 
reflecting: (i) unanticipated costs to  complete work on certain construc- 
tion projects; (ii) the impact of inaccuracies in the books of these com- 
panies relating to  their overall financial and operational performance; 
(iii) discontinuance costs of the general contracting activities of those 
companies, including the write-off of goodwill, and certain account and 
retainage receivables; and (iv) operating losses. For the years ended 

December 31, 2002 and 2001 the Roy Kay companies recorded operat- 
ing losses of $10.8 million and $137.8 million respectively. KeySpan 
and the former Roy Kay companies are currently engaged in litigation 
relating to the termination of the former owners, as well as other 
matters relating to the acquisition of the Roy Kay companies. (See 
Note 7 "Contractual Obligations and Contingencies" - Legal Matters.) 

NOTE 11. CLASS ACTION SETTLEMENT 
During 2001, we reversed a previously recorded loss provision regarding 
certain pending rate refund issues relating to  the 1989 RlCO class action 
settlement. This adjustment resulted from a favorable United States 
Court of Appeals ruling received on September 28, 2001, overturning a 
lower court decision, and resulted in a positive pre-tax adjustment to  
earnings of $33.5 million, or $20.1 million after-tax. This adjustment 
has been reflected as a $22.0 million reduction to  operations and main- 
tenance expense and a reduction of $1 1.5 million to interest expense on 
the Consolidated Statement of Income. 

NOTE 12. KEYSPAN GAS EAST CORPORATION 
SUMMARY FINANCIAL DATA 
KEDLl is a wholly owned subsidiary of KeySpan. KEDLl was formed on 
May 7, 1998 and on May 28, 1998 acquired substantially all of the 
assets related to the gas distribution business of LILCO. KEDLl provides 
gas distribution services to customers in the Long Island counties of 
Nassau and Suffolk and the Rockaway peninsula of Queens county. 
KEDLl established a program for the issuance, from time to  time, of up 
to $600 million aggregate principal amount of Medium-Term Notes, 
which will be fully and unconditionally guaranteed by the parent, 
KeySpan Corporation. On February 1, 2000, KEDLl issued $400 million 
of 7.875% Medium-Term Notes due 2010. In January 2001, KEDLl 
issued an additional $1 25 million of Medium- Term Notes at 6.9% due 
January 2008. The following condensed financial statements are 
required to  be disclosed by SEC regulations and set forth those of KEDLI, 
KeySpan Corporation as guarantor of the Medium- Term Notes and our 
other subsidiaries on a combined basis. 



STATEMENT OF INCOME 

I ln  Tho~i~nndr of Dollarrl 

Year Ended December 31, 2003 Guarantor KEDLl Other Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated 

Revenues $ 507 $1,046,931 $5,868,230 6 (507) $6,915,161 
Operating Expenses 

Purchased gas - 574,009 1,921,093 - 2,495,102 
Fuel and purchased power - A 414,633 - 414,633 
Operations and maintenance 1 1,340 137,223 1,857,233 - 2,005,796 
Intercompany expense 5,282 3,570 (3,570) (5,282) - 
Depreciation and amortization (53) 77,603 496,524 - 574,074 
Operating taxes - 77,503 340,733 - 418,236 

Total Operating Expenses 16,569 869,908 5,026,646 (5,282) 5,907,841 
Gain on sale of property - 13,974 1,149 A 15,123 
Income from equity investments 108 - 19,106 - 19,214 
Operating Income (Loss) (1 5,954) 190,997 861,839 4,775 1,041,657 
Interest charges (209,505) (62,992) (299,399) 264,202 (307,694) 
Other income and (deductions) 621,151 (8,636) 54,429 (699,415) (32,471) 
Total Other Income and (Deductions) 41 1,646 (71,628) (244,970) (435,213) (340,165) 
Income Taxes (Benefit) (28,663) 40,796 265,178 - 277,311 
Earnings from Continuing Operations $ 424,355 $ 78,573 $ 351,691 $(430,438) $ 424,181 
Cumulative Change in Acounting Principle - - (37,451) A (37,451) 
Net Income $ 424.355 $ 78.573 B 314.240 B(430.438) $ 386.730 

( In  Thouinrids o/DoI/ari) 
Year Ended December 31,2002 Guarantor KEDLl Other Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated 

Revenues $ 463 $810,601 $5,160,065 $ (463) $5,970,666 
Operating Expenses 

Purchased gas 
Fuel and purchased power 
Operations and maintenance 
lntercompany expense 
Depreciation and amortization 
Operating taxes (2,149) 80,056 303,860 - 381,767 

Total Operating Expenses 13,904 650,892 4,385,386 (2,772) 5,047,410 
Gain on sale of property - 317 4,413 - 4,730 
Income from equity investments 104 - 13,992 14,096 
Operating Income (Loss) (13,337) 160,026 793,084 2,309 942,082 
Interest charges (200,920) (62,520) (295,209) 257,145 (301,504) 
Other lncome and (deductions) 565,262 7,835 60,222 (633,068) 251 
Total Other Income and (Deductions) 364,342 (54,685) (234,987) (375,923) (301,253) 
Income Taxes (Benefit) (26,683) 36,746 233,416 - 243,479 
Earnings from Continuing Operations $ 377,688 S 68,595 $ 324,681 $(373,614) $ 397,350 
Discontinued Operations - - (1 9,662) - (1 9,662) 
Net Income $ 377,688 $ 68,595 $ 305,019 $(373,614) S 377,688 



(171 Tbo~mriiii o/DolIarr) 

Year Ended December 31,2001 Guarantor KEDLl Other Subsidiaries Eliminations Consolidated 

Revenues $ 504 $889,693 $5,743,422 $ (504) $6,633,115 
Operating Expenses 

Purchased gas - 464,780 1,706,333 - 2,171,113 
Fuel and purchased power - - 538,532 - 538,532 
Operations and maintenance (24,537) 45,106 2,094,190 - 2,114,759 
Intercompany expense 278 87,738 (87,738) (278) - 
Depreciation and amortization 4,273 56,274 498,591 - 559,138 
Operating taxes 1,094 91,204 356,626 - 448,924 

Total Operating Expenses (1 8,892) 745,102 5,106,534 (278) 5,832,466 
Income from equity investments - - 13,129 - 13,129 
Operating Income (Loss) 19,396 144,591 650,017 (226) 813,778 
Interest charges (230,618) (65,206) (264,286) 206,640 (353,470) 
Other income and (deductions) 426,346 9,72 1 5,326 (447,316) (5,923) 
Total Other Income and (Deductions) 195,728 (55,485) (258,960) (240,676) (359,393) 
Income Taxes (Benefit) (9,130) 28,319 191,504 - 210,693 
Earnings from Continuing Operations $224,254 $ 60,787 $ 199,553 $(240,902) $ 243,692 
Discontinued Operations - - (1 9,438) - (1 9,438) 
Net Income $224,254 $ 60,787 $ 180,115 $(240,902) $ 224,254 



BALANCE SHEET 

(ln Thoujandi o/Doi/arrJ 

Year Ended December 31, 2003 Guarantor KEDLl Other Subsidiaries Eliminations Consol~dated 

Assets 
Current Assets 

Cash and temporary cash investments $ 97,567 $ 1,554 $ 106,630 $ - $ 205,751 
Accounts rece~vable, net 3,298 209,151 1,243,459 - 1,455,908 

Other current assets 3,250 130,994 590,996 - 725,240 
104,115 341,699 1,941,085 - 2,386,899 

Equity Investments 4,475,949 1,123 153,520 (4,382,027) 248,565 
Property 

Gas - 1,899,375 4,622,876 - 6,522,251 

Other - - 6,150,355 6,150,355 

Accumulated depreciation and depletion - (31 2,204) (3,466,099) - (3,778,303) 
1,587,171 7,307,132 - 8,894,303 

Intercompany Accounts Receivable 3,105,571 - 1,191,394 (4,296,965) - 
Deferred Charges 374,076 237,870 2,485,071 - 3,097,017 
Total Assets $8,059,711 $2,167,863 $1 3,078,202 $(8,678,992) $14,626,784 

Liabilities and Capitalization 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable $ 125,892 $ 165,613 B 850,092 $ - $ 1,141,597 
Notes payable 481,900 - - - 481,900 
Other current liabilities 129,168 16,125 80,026 - 225,319 

736,960 181,738 930,118 - 1,848,816 
Intercompany Accounts Payable - 116,197 2,596,202 (2,712,399) - 
Deferred Credits and Other Liabilities 

Deferred income tax (48,059) 256,882 1,064,828 - 1,273,651 
Other deferred credits and l~abilities 532,062 179,919 925,839 - 1,637,820 

484,003 436,801 1,990,667 - 2,911,471 
Capitalization 

Common shareholders' equity 3,707,785 782,223 3,553,967 (4,382,027) 3,661,948 
Preferred stock 83,568 - - - 83,568 
Long-term debt 3,047,395 650,904 3,497,699 (1,584,566) 5.61 1,432 

Total Capitalization 6,838,748 1,433,127 7,051,666 (5,966,593) 9,356,948 
Minority Interest in Subsidiary Companies - - 509,549 - 509,549 
Total Liabilities & Capitalization $8,059,711 $2,167,863 $13,078,202 $(8,678,992) $14,626,784 



Year Ended December 31.2002 Guarantor KEDLl Other Subsidiaries Eliminations consolidated- 

Assets 
Current Assets 

Cash & temporary cash investments $ 88,308 $ 6,472 B 75,837 $ - $ 170,617 
Accounts receivable, net 23,982 208,512 1,299,559 - 1,532,053 
Other current assets 1.757 79,206 423,596 .. - 504,559 

114.047 294.190 1.798.992 - 2,207.229 . . . . 

Equity Investments 3,797,964 1,469 201,675 (3,736,379) 264,729 
Property 

Gas - 1,773,028 4,352,501 - 6,125,529 

Other - - 4,807,724 - 4,807,724 

Accumulated depreciation and depletion - (282,832) (3,065,829) - (3,348,661) 

lntercompany Accounts Receivable 
Deferred Charges - -  339,443 192,652 2,391,405 - 2,923,500 
Total Assets $7,870,969 5 1,978,507 $1 1,198,862 $(8,068,288) $1 2,980,050 

Liabilities and Capitalization 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts payable $ 132,966 B 68,772 $ 894,916 $ - $ 1,096,654 
Notes payable 91 5,697 - - - 91 5,697 
Other current liabilities 107,605 104,975 30,302 - 242,882 

1 ,I 56,268 173,747 925,218 - 2,255,233 
Intercompany Accounts Payable - 178,843 2,071,682 (2,250,525) - 

Deferred Credits and otherl iabil i t ies 
Deferred income tax (43,110) 139,715 780,408 - 877,013 
Other deferred credits and liab~lities 481,964 138,209 744,688 - 1,364,861 

438,854 277,924 1,525,096 - 2,241,874 
Capitalization 

Common shareholders' equity 2,983,214 647,089 3,050,668 (3,736,379) 2,944,592 
Preferred stock 83,849 - - - 83,849 
Lonq-term debt - - 3,208,784 700,904 3,395,777 (2,081,384) 5,224,081 

Total Capitalization 6,275,847 1,347,993 6,446,445 (5,817,763) 8,252,522 
Minority Interest in Subsidiary Companies - - 230,421 - 230,421 
Total Liabilities & capitalization $7,870,969 $1,978,507 $1 1,198,862 9(8,068,288) $1 2,980,050 



- 
(In 7 hoiilandr of Dnilar!) 

Ypar Ended December 31 2003 Guarantor KEDLl Other Subsld~ar~es Consolidated 

Operating Activities 
Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Operating Activities $(547,516) $ 162,786 $1,569,373 $1,184,643 
lnvesting Activities 

Capital expenditures - (1 30,275) (881,441) (1,011,716) 
Proceeds from the sale of property and subsidiary stock 15,123 294,573 309,696 
Investments in subsidiaries - - (21 1,370) (21 1,370) 

Issuance of note receivable (55,000) - - (55,000) 
Net Cash (Used in) Investing Activities (55,000) (1 15.1 52) (798,238) (968,390) 
Financing Activities 

Proceeds from equity issuance 
Treasury stock issued 
Redemption of LlPA promissory notes 
lssuance of debt, net of payments 
Redemption of preferred stock 
Payment of commercial paper 
Common and preferred stock dividends paid 
Other 
Net intercompany accounts 873,944 (52,552) (82 1,392) - 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities 61 1,775 (52,552) (740,342) (181,119) 
Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 9,259 $ (4,918) $ 30,793 $ 35,134 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period 88,308 6,472 75,837 170,617 
Cash and Cash E~uivalents at End of Period $ 97,567 1 1,554 $ 106.630 $ 205.751 

(In Thoujandi of L)oIlnrrl 
Year Ended December 31, 2002 Guarantor KEDLl Other Subsidiaries Consolidated 

Operating Activities 
Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Operating Activities $ (97,981) $ 188,955 $ 640,518 $ 731,492 

Investing Activities 
Capital expenditures - (146,450) (914,572) (1,061,022) 
Other - 903 151,358 152,261 

Net Cash (Used in) Investing Activities - (145,547) (763,214) (908,761) 
Financing Activities 

Treasury stock issued 86,710 - - 86,7 10 
Issuance (payment) of debt, net 327,247 - (35,711) 291,536 
Common and preferred stock dividends paid (256,656) - (256,656) 
Other 70,299 - (3,255) 67,044 
Net intercompany accounts (41,311) (36,936) 78,247 - 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities 186,289 (36,936) 39,281 188,634 
Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 .  88,308 $ 6,472 $ (83,415) $ 11,365 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period - 159,252 159,252 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period $ 88,308 $ 6,472 $ 75,837 B 170,617 



- - 

[In Thnninndi of Doliarr) 
Year Ended December 31 2001 Guarantor KEDLl Other Subs~diaries Consolidated 

Operating Activities 
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 121,028 $ 64,294 $ 704,859 $ 890,181 

Investing Activities 
Capital expenditures - (1 31,568) (928,191) ' (1,059,759) 
Other - - 18,452 18,452 

Net Cash (Used in) Investing Activities - (131,568) (909,739) (1,041,307) 
Financing Activities 

Treasury stock issued 88,786 - - 88,786 
Issuance (payment) of debt, net 248,213 125,000 3,706 376,919 
Common and preferred stock dividends paid (251,502) - (251,502) 
Other 10,582 - 2,264 12,846 
Net intercompany accounts (217,107) (57,726). 274,833 - 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities (1 2 1,028) 67,274 280,803 227,049 
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 - 8 -  $ 75,923 $ 75,923 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period - - 83,329 83,329 
Cash and Cash Eauivalents at End of Period % - B - B 159 257 B 159752 

NOTE 13. WORKFORCE REDUCTION PROGRAMS 
As a result of the Eastern and EN1 acquisitions, we implemented early 
retirement and severance programs in an effort to  reduce our work- 
force. The early retirement program was completed in December 2000, 
at which time KeySpan recorded a charge of $51.4 million to reflect ter- 
mination benefits related to  employees who voluntarily elected early 
retirement. In addition, KeySpan recorded a $13.8 million liability associ- 
ated with severance programs; Eastern and EN1 had previously recorded 
an additional liability of  $8.9 million. The combined liability, therefore, 
was $22.7 million. During the year ended December 31, 2001, we 
reduced this liability by $4.1 million as a result of lower than anticipated 
costs per employee and recorded a corresponding reduction to goodwill. 
During 2002, we paid $3.5 million for the program and, in total, $13.6 
million was distributed to employees during the past two years. The 
remaining liability of $5.0 million was reversed and recorded to earnings 
in 2002. 

NOTE 14. SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS PLAN 
On March 30, 1999, our Board of Directors adopted a Shareholder 
Rights Plan (the "Plan") designed t o  protect shareholders in the event of 
a proposed takeover. The Plan creates a mechanism that would dilute 
the ownership interest of a potential unauthorized acquirer. The Plan 
establishes one preferred stock purchase "right" for each outstanding 
share of common stock to  shareholders of record on April 14, 1999. 
Each right, when exercisable, entitles the holder to  purchase 1/100th of 
a share of  Series D Preferred Stock, at a price of $95.00. The rights gen- 
erally become exercisable following the acquisition of more than 20 per- 
cent of our common stock without the consent of the Board of 
Directors. Prior to becoming exercisable, the rights are redeemable by 
the Board of Directors for $0.01 per right. If not so redeemed, the rights 
will expire on March 30, 2009. 

NOTE 15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (UNAUDITED) 
KeySpan is currently analyzing proposals from interested investors t o  
participate in the equity portion of a leveraged lease financing of a new 
250 MW combined cycle electric generating facility located at the exist- 
ing Ravenswood electric generating facility site. KeySpan is seeking to  
arrange for the lease to be consummated in late April to  coincide with 
the commencement of full commercial operation of the new facil~ty. At 
the closing, the new facility will be acquired by the lessor from our sub- 
sidiary, KeySpan Ravenswood, LLC, and simultaneously leased back to  it. 
All obligations of our subsidiary under the lease will be unconditionally 
guaranteed by KeySpan. We anticipate that this lease transaction will 
generate cash proceeds equivalent to the fair market value of  the 
facility, currently anticipated to be approximately $360 million. It is 
expected that the cash proceeds from this transaction will be used to 
redeem outstanding commercial paper. It is intended for this lease 
transaction to qualify as an operating lease under SFAS 98 "Accounting 
for Leases: SaleILeaseback Transactions Involving Real Estate; Sales-Type 
Leases of Real Estate; Definition of the Lease Term; an Initial Direct Costs 
of Direct Financing Leases, an amendment of FASB Statements No.13, 
66, 91 and a rescission of FASB Statement No. 26 and Technical Bulletin 
No. 79-1 1 ." The lease will have a term of approximately 35 years and 
operating lease expense is anticipated to  be between $ 1  5 million to 
$17 million per year. Lease payments will fluctuate from year to  year, 
but are substantially paid over the first 16 years. 



On February 27, 2003 KeySpan and KeySpan Facilities Income Fund 
(the "Fund") announced that the Fund has entered into an agreement 
to  sell 15.617 million units of the Fund at a price of $12.60 per unit 
for gross total proceeds of approximately CDN$196.8 million. The 
proceeds of the offering will be used to  acquire a 35.91% interest in the 
business of KeySpan Energy Canada Partnership ("KeySpan Canada") 
from KeySpan. KeySpan will receive net proceeds of approximately 
CDN8186.3 million (or approximately US$139 million), i f te r  commis- 
sions and expenses. This offer is subject to regulatory approvals and 
is expected to close on or about April 1, 2004. After closing, the 
Fund's ownership in KeySpan Canada will increase from 39.1 % 
to 75%. Keyspan's ownership of KeySpan Canada will decrease to  
approximately 25%. 

NOTE 16. SUPPLEMENTAL GAS AND OIL DISCLOSURES 
(UNAUDITED) 
This information includes amounts attributable to 100% of Houston 
Exploration and KeySpan Exploration and Production, LLC at December 
31, 2003. Shareholders other than KeySpan had a minority interest of 
approximately 45% in Houston Exploration at December 31, 2003, 
34% in 2002and 33% in 2001. Gas and oil operations, and reserves, 
were located in the United States in all years. 

~- ~ 

(ln 'Ilou~andr of  Dolhrr) 
At December 31. 2003 2002 2001 

Unproved properties 
not being amortized $ 142,905 $ 110,623 $ 195,478 

Properties being amortized - 
productive and nonproductive 2,429,891 1,917,287 1,590,014 

Total capitalized costs 2,572,796 2,027,910 1,785,492 
Accumulated depletion (1,159,509) (968,713) (791,194) 
Net capitalized costs $ 1,413,287 $1,059,197 $ 994,298 

COSTS INCURRED IN PROPERTY ACQUISITION, EXPLORATION 
AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES 

( I n  Thourandr of Dollan) 
At December 31, 2003 2002 2001 

Acquisition of properties - 
Unproved properties $ 61,484 $ 14,600 $ 31,718 
Proved properties 171,297 90,004 85,435 

Exploration 66,259 28,343 74,497 
Development 170,493 139,108 191,927 
Asset retirement obliaation 31 858 - - - ,--- 
Total costs incurred $501,391 $272,055 $383,577 

( l n  Thourandr o/Dnildrr) 

At December 31, 2003 2002 2001 

Revenues $497,948 9 356,233 $404,584 
Production and lifting costs 63,591 44,822 37,574 
Shipping and handling costs 10,388 9,450 7,850 
Deoletion 205.118 177.548 173.566 
Total expenses 279,097 231,820 218,990 
Income before taxes 218,851 124,414 185,594 
Income taxes 76,598 42,519 64,118 
Results of ooerations 9142.253 $ 81.895 9 121.476 

* (Excluding corporate overhead and interest costs) 

SUMMARY OF PRODUCTION AND LIFTING COSTS 

(In Thu~andr o,/Dollor~) \ 

A t  December 31, 2003 2002 2001 , 

Pumping, gauging and other labor $10,975 $ 7,846 $ 5,342 
Compressors and other rental 

equipment 
Property taxes and insurance 
Transportation 
Processing fees 
Workover and well stimulation 
Repairs, maintenance and supplies 
Fuel and chemicals 
Environmental, regulatory and other 
Severance taxes 15,959 9,622 1 1,395 
Total ~roduction and liftina costs 9 63.591 944.822 $37.574 

The gas and oil reserves information is based on estimates of proved 
reserves attributable to the interest of Houston Exploration and KeySpan 
Exploration and Production, LLC as of December 31 for each of the 
years presented. These estimates principally were prepared by 
independent petroleum consultants. Proved reserves are estimated 
quantities of natural gas and crude oil which geological and engineering 
data demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future 
years from known reservoirs under existing economic and operating 
conditions. 

Costs included in development costs to  develop proved undevel- 
oped reserves for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 
were $49.4 million, $1 1.0 million and $19.9 million, respectively. 



At December 31, 2003 2002 2001 

Proved Reserves 
Beginning of year 614,734 585,659 545,858 
Revisions of previous estimates (32,433) (1 5,324) (39,994) 
Extensions and discoveries 140,632 105,798 86,401 
Production (1 00,130) (1 07,507) (90,754) 
Purchases of reserves in place 89,380 48,777 84,148 
Sales of reserves in place - (2,669) - 

Proved reserves - End of year (1) 712,183 61 4,734 585,659 
Proved developed reserves 

Beginning of year 435,629 448,921 431,536 
End of Year (2) 488,012 435,629 448,921 

(I) lncludes minority interest of 318,417, 208,516, and 188,077 in 2003, 2002, and 
2001, respectively 

(2) lncludes minority interest of 2 18,190, 148.81 land 148,593 in 2003, 2002, and 
200 1, respectively 

At December 31. 2003 2002 2001 

Proved reserves 
Beginning of Year 9,548 10,234 7,912 
Revisions of previous estimates (3,542) (5) (289) 
Extension and discoveries 117 342 3,061 
Production (1,514) (1,025) (536) 
Purchases of reserves in place 3,753 483 115 
Sales of reserves in place - (481) (29) 

Proved reserves - End of year (1) 8,362 9,548 10,234 
Proved developed reserves 

Beginning of year 2,413 2,479 2,126 
End of year (2) 4,273 2,413 2,479 

(I) Includes minority interest of 3,739, 2,256 and 2,186 in 2003, 2002, and 
200 1, respectively 

(2) lncludes minority interest of 1,9 10, 824 and 821 in 2003, 2002, and 
200 1, respectively 

The standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows was pre- 
pared by applying year-end prices of gas and oil to the proved reserves. 
The standardized measure does not purport, nor should it be inter- 
preted, to present the fair value of gas and oil reserves of Houston 
Exploration or KeySpan Exploration and production LLC. An estimate 
of fair value would also take into account, among other things, the 
recovery of reserves not presently classified as proved, anticipated future 
changes in prices and costs, and a discount factor more representative 
of the time value of money and the risks inherent in reserve estimates. 

STANDARDIZED MEASURE OF DISCOUNTED FUTURE NET CASH 
FLOWS RELATING TO PROVED GAS AND OIL RESERVES 

(In Thnwnndi o,fDollarr) 

At December 31, 2003 2002 2001 

Future cash flows $4,375,781 $2,951,622 81,580,077 
Future costs - 

Production (769,892) (495,097) (31 6,421) 
Development (378,547) (263,926) (227,158) 

Future net inflows before 
income tax 3,227,342 2,192,599 1,036,498 

Future income taxes (853,425) (559,853) (221,324) 
Future net cash flows 2,373,917 1,632,746 815,174 
10% discount factor (853,403) (528,829) (228,988) 
Standardized measure of 

discounted future 
net cash flows (1) $1,520,514 $1,103,917 $ 586,186 

(I) lncludes minority interest of $672,620, $361,435 and 8182,555 in 2003, 2002 
and 2001, respectively 

Costs included in future development costs related to  proved unde- 
veloped reserves for the years ending December 31, 2004, 2005 and 
2006 are $96.3 million, $135.4 million, and 910.5 million, respectively. 

CHANGES IN STANDARDIZED MEASURE OF DISCOUNTED FUTURE 
NET CASH FLOWS FROM PROVED RESERVE QUANTITIES 

( I n  Thoiiiandi 01 Dollnrr) 

At December 31, 2003 2002 2001 

Standardized measure - 
beginning of year $1,103,917 $ 586,186 $ 2,165,759 

Sales and transfers, 
net of production costs (492,328) (285,603) (359,163) 

Net change in sales and transfer. 
prices, net of production costs 384,299 589,632 (2,250,252) 

Extensions and discoveries and 
improved recovery, net of 

related costs 434,311 242,055 1 17,326 
Changes in estimated future 

development costs (9,352) (6,453) (23,395) 
Development costs incurred 

during the period that reduced 
future development costs 81,025 42,075 75,652 

Revisions of quantity estimates (1 23,954) (36,368) (52,928) 
Accretion of discount 142,296 68,986 293,581 
Net change in income taxes (236,551) (21 5,369) 666,373 
Net purchases of reserves 

in place 254,030 99,741 51,674 
Sales of reserves in place - (3 1,488) (1 33) 
Changes in production rates 

(timing) and other (17,179) 50,523 (98,308) 
Standardized measure - 

end of year $1,520,514 $1,103,917 $ 586,186 



AVERAGE SALES PRICES AND PRODUCTION COSTS PER UNIT DRILLING ACTIVITY (NET) 

At December 31, 2003 2002 2001 At December 31, 2003 Producing D rY Total - 
Average Sales Price* Net developmental wells 84.4 20.0 104.4 

Natural gas ($/Ma 5.23 3.16 4.09 Net exploratory wells 5.4 7.0 12.4 
Oil, condensate and natural 

gas liquid ($/Bbl) 28.26 24.06 23.09 
At December 31.2002 Producino D rv Total 

Production cost per Net developmental wells 65.1 9.4 74.5 
equivalent Mcf ($) 0.58 0.42 0.40 Net exploratory wells 4.0 2.2 6.2 

* Represents the cash price received which excludes the effect of any hedging 
transactions. 

At December 31,2001 Producing Dry Total 

ACREAGE Net developmental wells 51.9 10.2 62.1 

A t  December 31, 2003 Gross Net 
Net exploratory wells 5.3 4.3 9.6 

At December 31, 2003 ~- Gross Net Developmental 12.0 9.2 
Gas wells 2,435.0 1,748.0 
Oil wells 31 .O 15.9 

NOTE 17. SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED) 
The following is a table of financial data for each quarter of KeySpan's year ended December 31,2003. 

(in Thourandr of Dollnri. Exctb: ?PI Share Anounfj) ,~ ' 
Quarter Ended Quarter Ended ~ u a % r  Ended Quarter Ended 

313 1/03 6/30/03 9130103 1213 1/03 
Operating revenues 2,512,525 1,408,152 1,131,814 1,862,670 
Operating income 456,694 138,229 107,923 338,811 
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations 243,091 (5,938) 12,585 174,443 
Cumulative change in accounting principle 174 - - (37,625) 
Earnings (loss) for common stock 241,804 (7,399) 11,124 135,357 
Basic earnings per common share from continuing 

operations less preferred stock dividends (a) 1.54 (0.05) 0.07 1.08 
Change in accounting principle (a) - - - (0.23) 
Basic earnings per common share (a) 1.54 (0.05) 0.07 0.85 
Diluted earnings per common share (a) 1.53 (0.05) 0.07 0.84 
Dividends declared 0.445 0.445 0.445 0.445 

(a) Quarterly earnings per share are based on the average number of shares outstanding during each quarter Because of the changing number of common shares outstanding in each quartet 
the sum of quarterly earnings per share does not necessarily equal earnings per share for the year. 

The following is a table of financial data for each quarter of KeySpan's year ended December 31, 2002. 

(ln Thourosnndr o/DoI/arr, E x ~ e p ~  Per Share Amounfr) 

Quarter Ended Quarter Ended Ouarter Ended Ouarter Ended 

Operating revenues 
Operating income 
Earnings from continuing operations 
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations 
Earnings for common stock 
Basic earnings per common share from continuing 

operations less preferred stock dividends (a) 
3asic earnings per common share from discontinued operations (a) 
3asic earnings per common share (a) 
Iiluted earnings per common share (a) 
lividends declared 0.445 0.445 0.445 0.445 1 .  

1) Ouarterly earnings per share are based on the average number of shares outstanding during each quarter Because of the changing number of common shares outstanding in each quartet 
ie sum of quarterly earnings per share does not necessarily equal earnings per share for theyear. 4. 



Selected Financial Data 

( ln  Thourandr o~Dollar~, E.rcep Pn Share Arnornrr) 

Year Ended December 31. 206l  2002 2001 2000 1999 

lncome Summary 
Revenues 
Gas Distribution 
Electric Services 
Energy Services 
Energy Investments and other 609,371 447,101 498,3 18 31 0,096 153,370 
Total revenues - 6,915,161 5,970,666 6,633,115 5,080,702 2,954,613 

Operating expenses 
Purchased gas for resale 2,495,102 1,653,273 2,171,113 1,408,680 744,432 
Fuel and purchased power 414,633 395,860 538,532 460,841 17,252 
Operations and maintenance 2,005,796 2,101,897 2,114,759 1,659,736 1,091,166 
~e~rec ia t i on ,  depletion and amortization 574,074 514,613 559,138 330,922 253,440 
Early retirement and severance charges - - - 65,175 - 

Operating taxes 418,236 381,767 448,924 421,936 366,154 
Total - operating expenses 5,907,841 5,047,410 5,832,466 4,347,290 2,472,444 
Gain on sale of property 15,123 4,730 - - - 

Income from equity investments 19,214 14,096 13,129 20,010 15,347 
Operating income 1,041,657 942,082 81 3,778 753,422 497,516 
Other deductions (340,165) (301,253) . (359,393) (233,410) (1 02,543) 
Income taxes 277,311 243,479 2 10,693 217,262 136,362 
Earnings from continuing operations 424,181 397,350 243,692 302,750 258,611 

Discontinued Operations 
Income (loss) from operations, net of  tax - (3,356) 10,918 (1,943) 
Loss on disposal, net of  tax - (1 6,306) (30,356) - - 

Loss from discontinued operations - (1 9,662) (1 9,438) (1,943) - 

Cumulative change in accounting principles (37,451) - 

Net income 386,730 377,688 
Preferred stock dividend requirements 5,844 5,753 5,904 18,113 34,752 
Earnings for common stock $ 380,886 $ 371,935 $ 218,350 $ 282,694 $ 223,859 
Financial Summary 
Earnings per share (%) 2.41 2.63 1.58 2.10 1.62 
Cash dividends declared per share ($) 1.78 1.78 1.78 1.78 1.78 
Book value per share, year-end (8) 22.94 20.67 20.73 20.65 20.26 
Market value per share, year-end (8) 36.80 35.24 34.65 42.38 23.19 
Shareholders, year-end 75,067 78,281 82,300 86,900 90,500 
Capital expenditures (8) 1,011,716 1,061,022 1,059,759 925,257 725,670 
Total assets ( 8 )  14,626,784 12,980,050 1 1,789,606 1 1,307,465 6,730,691 
Common shareholders' equity (8) 3,661,948 2,944,592 2,890,602 2,815,816 2,712,325 
Redeemable preferred stock ($) - - - - 363,000 
Preferred stock (8) 83,568 83,849 84,077 84,205 84,339 
Long-term debt (8) 5,611,432 5,224,081 4,697,649 4,116,441 1,682,702 
Total capitalization (8) 9,356,948 8,252,522 7,672,328 7,016,462 4,479,366 



KeySpan Corporation Directors and Officers 

Robert B. Catell Alan H. Fishman 
Chairman and President and 
Chief Executive Officer Chief Executive Officer 
KeySpan Corporation Independence Community 

Bank 
Andrea 5. Christensen 
Partner J. Atwood lves 
Kaye Scholer LLP Former Chairman and 

Chief Executive Officer 
Eastern Enterprises 

Committees of the Board 

Executive Committee Audit Committee 

Robert B. Catell, Alan H. Fishman, 
Chairman Chairman 

Alan H. Fishman Andrea 5. Christensen 
J. Atwood lves James L. Larocca 
James R. Jones Stephen W. McKessy 
Stephen W. McKessy 
Edward D. Miller 

James R. Jones 
Chairman and 
Chief Executive Officer 
Manatt Jones Global 
Strategies, LLC 

James L. Larocca 
Dean and 
Distinguished Professor 
Southampton College 
Long Island University 

Compensation 
and Management 
Development Committee 

Edward D. Miller, 
Chairman 

James R. Jones 
James L. Larocca 
Stephen W. McKessy 

Gloria C. Larson 
of Counsel 
Foley Hoag LLP 

Stephen W. McKessy 
Retired Vice Chairman 
Pricewa terhousecoopers 

Corporate 
Governance and 
Nominating 
Committee 

James R. Jones, 
Chairman 

Andrea 5. Christensen 
James L. Larocca 
Gloria C. Larson 
Vikki L. Pryor 

$, 
B 

i; 
Edward D. Miller ;9 

Former President i 
and Chief Executive Officer 
AXA Financial, Inc. -I 

Vikki L. Pryor 
President and 
Ch~ef Executive Officer 
SBLI USA Mutual Life 
Insurance Company, Inc 

Office of the Chairman Executive Vice Presidents 

Robert B. Catell Wallace P. Parker Jr. John A. Caroselli 
Chairman and President Execu five Vice President 
Chief Executive Officer Energy Delivery and and Chief Strategy Officer 
KeySpan Corporation Customer Relationship Group 

Gerald Luterman 
Robert J. Fani Steven L. Zelkowitz Executive Vice President 
President and President and Chief Financial Officer 
Chief Operating Officer Energy Assets 

and Supply Group 

Anthony Nozzolillo Nickolas Stavropoulos 
Execu five Vice President Executive Vice President 
Electric Operations 

New England 

i' 
KeySpan Energy Delivery \. 

Lenore F. Puleo 
Executive Vice President 
Shared Services 

{ ' 
i I .  
f 

Senior Vice Presidents k 
h 

John J. Bishar, Jr. John F. Haran H. Neil Nichols Colin P. Watson 
Senior Vice President, Senior Vice President Senior Vice President Senior Vice President 
General Counsel and KeySpan Energy Delivery Corporate Development Strategic Marketing and 
Secretary and Chief Engineer and Asset Management E-Business 

Joseph F. Bodanza, Jr. David J. Manning Michael J. Taunton Elaine Weinstein 
Senior Vice President Senior Vice President Senior Vice President Senior Vice President 
Regulatory Affairs and Corporate Affairs and Treasurer Human Resources 
Chief Accounting Officer and Chief Diversity Officer 

Other Officers 5. 

Theresa A. Balog Lawrence 5. Dryer Cassandra R. Schultz 
Vice President and Vice President and Vice President and 
Controller General Auditor Chief Risk Officer 



A A , - ,  . . , -. , %  * Y - - , , , . - - . . , - - . . , . - - . ,>,- . > 
, , - , .  . .  . .- 

. .. . , . 

. - > -  - . *  2 _ .  - 

dividend income, and are, therefore, taxable (subject to review 
KeySpan Corporation by the IRS). Tax Forms 1099-Div were mailed by January 31, 2004. 
One MetroTech Center Please consult your tax advisor for further information. 
Brooklyn, New York 1 1201-3850 

Declaration ' Record Payment 
The Annual Meeting of Shareholders o f  KeySpan Corporation will Date Date - --- . -- Date - -- - - - - -- - - - 
be held at 10:OO a.m. Eastern Time, on Thursday, May 20, 2004, at Dec. 18, 2003 Jan. 14, 2004 ~ e b .  1, 20@--- 
KeySpan Corporation, One MetroTech Center, Brooklyn, New York. -Mar. 10, 2004 Apr. 16,'2004 May 1,2004 

Jun. 30, 2004 Jul. 14, 2004 Aug. 1,2004 
. - 

KeySpan common stock is traded prtmarily on the New York Stock Sept. 15, 2004 Oct. 13, 2004 Nov. 1,2004 

p Exchange (NYSE) under the trading symbol 'KSE.' ~ e y ~ p a n  'MEDS' Dec. 15, 2004 Jan. i2, 2005 ' Feb. 1,2005 

Convertible securities are piimarily traded on the NYSE under 

; the ticker KSE.PRA. The Hourton Exploration Company is primarily Please direct inq$ries to: ' 
3 traded on the NYSE under the trading symbol 7HX.' Daily stock 
2 

KeySpan Corporation 
$ quotes are listed in most major newspapers under the headings . Stock Plans Group 

'KeySpan' and 'HoustEx,' respectively. One MetroTech Center 
&- - 
o' - 22nd Floor 
X .c .. = 
a ~ r o o k l ~ n ,  New York 11201-3850 
m - ,  . 

The ~ e ~ ~ p a n  investor Program is an Open EnrollmentlDividend Or call: 1-718-403-3196 E-mail: financial@keyspanenergy.com 
P z Reinvestment Plan. The Plan offers individuals a convenient 

and cost-effective way of purchasing KeySpan common stock. Inquiries from security analysts, stockt;rokers, investment 
This Plan is open to  everyone (NOT just existing shareholders). - - managers and other members of the financial community should 

S There is no enrollment fee for joining the Plan: be addressed to George Laskaris, Director of Investor Relations, 
< I 

at 1-718-403-2526, or by e-mail, glaskarisQkeyspanenergy com. We welcome your participation in the KeySpan lnvestor Program. Y company information, including financial reports, is available at I 

If you are interested in receiving Program material, please contact I 

KeySpan's Stock Transfer Agent, EquiServe (electronic request line) http:llinvestor.keyspanenergy.com. 1 
I 

at 1-866-238-5345 (1 -866-2-FULFIL). 6 1 
1 I 

To enroll in the Plan, individuals must complete an application EquiServe Trust Company, N.A. 
YI 

';m and mail in an initial investment of at least $250, or authorize Investment Plan Services 
u 

I 
2 electronic deductions of at least $25, Individuals may also enrorl in P.O. Box 43069 1 

the Plan via our web site http:iiinvestor.keyspanenergy.corn. Providence, Rl 02940-3069 

X Call: 1-800-482-3638 i 
I 

h r a 
Eligibility: Open Enrollment , .-. m - The Company files ah annual report on Form 10-K with the 

.K 

- None Securities and Exchange Commission, which includes additional 
m 
C information about the Company. The Company has filed 

i 
1 

0 1 
S ?1 ~ i n h u r n :  $250 Minimum: 525 the CEOICFO certification required by Section 302 and 906 of 

Maximum: $150,000 
B Maximum: $150,000 . the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 as an exhibit to its Form 10-K. 
P 

Weekly on Thursday , This report is available to shareholders upon request to $ I 

a . Open Market (as of January 2004) lnvestor Relations. 
i 
L 
a Daily 
m 
O, $5.00 t 5 cents per share 3 , .  Deloitte & Touche LLP 

I 
a 
I a Yes 2 World Financial Center 
U 

E 
2 jl , Yes New York, NY 10281 . - 
c 
m . ,  Yes 1-2 12-436-2000 
a 

" 
- 

$ Keyspan's annual common dividend is $1.78 per share. All of the For more information on KeySpan, or for copies of our 
& dividends paid to  holders of common stock of KeySpan Corporation press releases and quarterly reports, please visit our web site at 
5 during the calendar year 2003 are considered to be ordinary http:llinvestor.keyspanenergy.com. 
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